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November30, 2020

To the Honorable Henry Kuspa,
Members of the City Council,
and Citizens of the City of Oak Forest, lllinois:

lllinois state statute requires that all gengratpose local governments publish, within six
months ofthe close of each fiscal year, a complete set of financial statements presented in
conformity with United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and audited
in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of indepdicdastd
certified public accountants. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue thé @aily
Forest Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year épdiécBO0,

2020

7KH &%$)5 FRQVLVWYV Rl PDQDJHPHQW W KWHH KW M\ H\Q WIDAOLF
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability

of all information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these
representations, management has established a dwmpiee internal control framework that

LV GHVLIQHG ERWK WR SURWHFW WKH &LW\JV DVVHWYV IURF
UHOLDEOH LQIRUPDWLRQ IRU WKH SUHSDUDWLRQ RI WKH &
GAAP. Because the cé RI LOQOWHUQDO FRQWUROV VKRXOG QRW RX
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather
than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement.

As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this CAFR is complete

and reliable in all material aspects.

6LNLFK //3 D ILUP RI LQGHSHQGHQW OLFHQVHG FHUWLILHC
financial statements for éhfiscal year endedypril 30, 2020 thereby providing reasonable
DVVXUDQFH WKDW WKH VWDWHPHQWY DUH IUHH RI PDWHUL
involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amourdsselogures in the

finandal statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made

by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Based upon the
audit, the independent auditor concluded that there was a reasonable besisléong an
XQPRGLILHG RSLQLRQ WKDW WKH &LW\TV |LApD Q02000 VWD W |
DUH IDLUO\ SUHVHQWHG LQ FRQIRUPLW\ ZLWK *$$3 7KH ,QC
as the first component of the Financial Sectiothf report.

-V -



GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to
DFFRPSDQ\ WKH EDVLF ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWYVY LQ WKH
Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complemieatMD&A and should

EH UHDG LQ FRQMXQFWLRQ ZLWK LW 7KH &LW\YV 0" $ FDQ
,QGHSHQGHQW $XGLWRUYV 5HSRUW

City Profile

The City of Oak Forest was initially incorporated as a Village in 1947 and then incorporated

as aCity in 1973. It is a homeule municipality under the lllinois Constitution. The City

is located in southwestern Cook County approximately 25 miles southwest of downtown
&KLFDJR $V Rl WKH &HQVXV LWV SRSXODWAERQ ZDV
assessed valuation is located in Cook County.

The City operates under the Courdayor form of government. Its legislative authority is
vested in a sevemember council, each elected from their respective wards. The Mayor, the
City Clerk and the Teasurer are elected-large. Each council member, the Mayor, the City
Clerk, and the Treasurer serve concurrent,-f@ar terms. The affairs of the City are carried
out through the City Administrator. As &¥pril 30, 202Q the City employed approximately
250 persons of which approximately4d@ere full time.

7KH &LW\ &RXQFLO FRQVWLWXWHY WKH &LW\TV SULPDU\ SR
policy, approves the annual budget, levies taxes, authorizes the payment of bills, approves bids
and contrad, and adopts ordinances.

The City provides a full range of municipal services, including public safety; fire protection;
ambulance services; highway and street maintenance and reconstruction; building code
enforcement; public improvements; economic depsalent; planning and zoning;
transportation; water and sewer services; and general administrative services.

Major Initiatives

2Q0QH Rl WKH &LW\fV PDLQ LQLWLDWLYHYV LV UHGHYHORSLQ
including the Gateway Development &etnorthwest corner of 159th Street and Cicero
$YHQXH 7KLV DUHD LV ORFDWHG LQ WKH &LW\TV 7,) ,,, 'LV
a pedestrian friendly, downtown district centered around the 159th Street Metra train station.

The completedievelopment in this area includes retail space, a bank and a nestdtain.

The City also has six other TIF Districts located in its boundaries. The goal is to redevelop the
areas and increase the equalized assessed valuation to assist all tarsgqlibd longrun.



In FY 20, the city continud working with developers to plan future residential and commercial
projects in its major corridors. These projects include apartment buildings, hotels and
restaurants.Thesewill have a positive impact@ WKH &LW\JV VDOHV WD[ LQFRF
taxes.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

7KH OD\RU &LW\ &RXQFLO DQG VWDII DUH LQWHQW RQ PI
condition, while continuing to provide the highest level of public sentwés residents. The
&LW\YV ILQDQFLDO SRVLWLRQ DV UHIOHFWHG LQ WKH ILQ]|
perhaps, best understood when it is considered from the broader perspective of the environment
within which the City operates.

Local Economy 7 KH &LW\fV UHYHQXHVY LQFUHDVHG VOLJKWO\ WKI
tax, utility tax and income tax in the amount @.&million in FY20. The City reported
approximately $2 million from these sources IRY19, or a4.5% increase fro prior year.

6LQFH WKH &LW\ UHSRUWHG PLOOLRQ LQ hHavefindhRP WKHYV
returned to preecessioramounts. Effective July 1, 2012, the City implemented a 1% home

rule sales tax to provide sufficient revenues to ofésleer deficient revenues and to maintain

service levels and fund capital improvement projects. dityecollected approximately $3..

million in FY20.

Water and sewer revenues increased slightly. Gallons sold dect@asitbn gallons 0r2%.
The City is still billing 169 million gallons less inFY20 than in FY09, a22% reduction
resulting from foreclosures, vacancies and bankruptcies.

Fortunately, the City has diversified revenue streams, which helped protect it from the sharp
economic d QW XUQV 7KH &LW\fV PDMRU UHYHQXH VRXUFHV L
VWDWH LQFRPH WD[HV DQG XWLOLW\ WD[HV 2DN )RUHVW
employer even though it downsized its operations and reduced its number of employees
from 1,500 to 525.

-Vi -



7KH &L WAd&gualized assessed valuation (EAV)488,344,805which represents E/b
decrease in real estate values as compared to the étfifalized assessed valuation. This
decrease is mainly due to tlassessment appealShetotal EAV is still27% less than 2010
values. The significant decrease was the result of the decline in market value of residential
and commercial property due to the housing market crisis. Surrounding municipalities
reported similar declines in EAVThH &LW\fV HFRQRPLF EDVH UHPDLQV V
revenue resources necessary to fund governmental services at current ldgelsver,
continuing to increase the levy while EAV is not growing, even shrinking, is unsustainable for
many households andusinesses. The City consistently reviews its revenue portfolio to
identify any additional revenue resources and explores ways to reduce costs through shared
services with other local governments.

Annual Budget Process +Prior to May 1, the City adopts laalanced budget in which
expenditures are not allowed to exceed reasonably estimated revenues and other available
funds at the same time maintaining recommended fund balances. Budget preparation is
directed by specific goals and objectives as develogeth& Mayor, City Council and
departments. As part of the annual budget review process, the City will project fund revenues
and expenditures for two years beyond the budget year and compare the projected balances to
the fund balance policy. This allowsetiCity to identify potential problems early enough to
correct them. A public hearing is conducted prior to approval of the budget.

The City also maintains budgetary control through the use of a purchase order/encumbrance
accounting systenfPurchase orders are approved prior to being encumbered. Compliance with
purchasing policies is consistently monitored.

Long-term Financial Planning +The City continues to address capital improvement projects

by maintaining a rolling fiveyear capital imppvement plan. The plan identifies ti&eL W\ § V

needs for technology, machinery and equipment, vehicles, building improvements, and
infrastructure. The City anticipates spendidg6$nillion in capital improvement projects in

FY21. The majority of the CkfV QHHGYV DUH LQIUDVWUXFWXUH UHODW
and a sanitary sewer replacement. Bond proceeds, motor fuel tax andut®rsales tax

represent the main funding sources for these projects.

Financial Policies +7KH & LW\TV F R#hardidl katicey prvvitle direction to assure

that the City practices sound fiscal management. The financial policies outline procedures for
budgeting, revenue, expenditures, reserves, capital improvements, debt, cash, and financial
reporting.

-Vii -



The CityfV UHVHUYH SROLFLHV UHT X-839%dDbf lexpg it es @opetett WR H
against the need to reduce service levels or raise taxes and fees due to temporary revenue
shortfalls or unpredicted, on&/ LPH H[SHQGLWXUHYV 7KH &lfovthgyY FXUUL
General Fund as oApril 30, 2020 is approximately %$.2 million, or 23.76 of annual
expenditures. Thiacrease in fund balance in the amount@@&000 was becaustate shared

revenues were greater than budgeted as a result of an improvimgrgcoAlso, a fulitime

position remained unfilled for the fiscal year7 KH FLW\{V WDUJHW IXQG EDO
expenditures, or $5.PLOOLRQ 6LQFH WKH &LW\YV IXQGSH5MOOODQFH S
totals $56 million, it doesmeet thepolicy requirement

7KH &LW\TV EXGJHW SROLFLHVY UHTXLUH WKH &LW\ WR DGR
HISHQGLWXUHY ZLOO QRW EH DOORZHG WR H[FHHG UHDVRQ
policies require that the Water and Sewer Fbadselfsupporting. To accomplish this, the

City charges a base rate, per meter, in the amount of $15 for single family residence and
commercial property and $5 per unit for multiit residential buildings in addition to the water
consumed in that quarteln FY20, the base charge genid $5%,000 inrevenues. In May

202Q the City Council approved an annual water and sewer rate increase to offset increases
from the City of Chicago, the Village of Oak Lawn and its own operations.tidhg water

rate was increased t®@®7per 1,000 gallons and the tier 2 water rate was increasdd 1415

per 1,000 gallons. The increased sewer rate per 1,000 gallong d@s $

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the Un@¢ates and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Oak
Forest for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended April
30, 20B. This was theleventhconsecutivgrear that the City received this prestigious award.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized CAFR. This report satisfied both generally accepted accounting
principles and otheapplicable requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. We believe that our current

CAFR meets the Certificate of Achievement Program requirements and we are submitting it
to GFOA to determine its eligibility for certdation.

- viii -



The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated
services of the entire Finance Department staff. Each member of the departsnererily
appreciated for his or her contribution to this repant.addition, without the continued
leadership and support of the Mayor, City Council, City Administrator, and department heads,
preparation of this report would not have been possible.

Respectfully submitted,

Colleen M. Julian
Finance Director
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1415 West Diehl Road, Suite 400
Naperville, IL 60563

630.566.8400
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The Honorable Mayor
Members of theCity Council
City of Oak Forestlllinois

We have audited theccompanyindinancial statementsf the governmental activitie#)e business
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund infornoétiba City of Oak
Forest lllinois (the City)asof and for the year endépril 30, 2020, and the related notes to financial
statementsyhich collectively comprise th& L Whe$i¥ financial statemenés listed in the table of
contents.

ODQDJHPHQWYIYVY 5HVSRQVLELOLW\ IRU WKH )LQDQFLDO 6WDWHI

Management is responsible for the preparatiahfair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and far presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

$XGLWRUYV 5HVSRQVLELOLW\

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on oWwedaitnot

audit the invetment in joint venture, which represe@t36percent an®.57percent, respectively, of

the assets and net position of the governmental activities. Those statements were audited by other
auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opirsofariras it relates to the amounts
included for the investment in joint venture, is based solely on the report of the other adiors.
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
AmericaandGovermment Auditing Standardssued by the Comptroller General of the United States
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit nvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
LQ WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWY 7KH SURFHGXUHYV VHOHFWF
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the finataiaiments, whether due to fraud or

error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevagiitipfihée
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropria@ in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of th€ity fV LQWHUQDO FRQWURO $FFRUGLQJO\ ZH H[SUI
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used ameasomableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaingdfigient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions

Opinions

In our opinion, thebasicfinancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, thaespectivefinancial position of thegovernmental activitiesthe businesgype
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information @fitthef Ogk
Forest lllinois as ofApril 30, 2020, and therespectivechanges in financial positipand where
applicable,cash flows thereoffor the year then ended atcordancavith accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Change in Accounting Principle

The Village adopted GASB Statement No. Bi#juciary Activities which established standards
for reporting fiduciary funds and modified certailisclosures in the notes to the financial
statementOur opinion is not modified with respect to these matters

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requiréhé¢hat
PDQDJHPHQWYV GLVFXVVLRQ DQG DQDO\WVLY DQG RWKHU UHT.
table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, isreshjby the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, econamibistorical context. We have

applied certain limitegbhrocedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries

of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparingrtheatiofo for
FRQVLVWHQF\ ZLWK PDQDJHPHQWIYV UHVSRQVHV W&RAIRXU LQ°
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express

an opinion or provide any assurance on the infownatiecause the limited procedures do not

provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively compi. VH W K Hasgclfimah§iiad statements. Tharoductory sectiongombining

and individual fund financial statements and schedslgsplemental datand statistical section

as listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additialysisaand are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial
statementand schedulesnd he supplemental dateie the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relatdirectly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the



basicfinancial statements. The information Heeen subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements aedtain additional procedes, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare thasic financial statements or to theasic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordariceauditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections hagebeen subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance witisovernment Auditing Standardse also issued a report datddvember 30,

2020 RQ RXU FRQVLGHUDWLRQ RI WKH &LW\fV LQWHUQDO FRQYV
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulatimmtracts, grant agreements, and

other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on

the internal contl over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an

audit performed in accordance wiGovernment Auditing StandardsQ FRQVLGHULQJ WKH
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Napervillg Illinois
November 302020
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CITY OF OAK FOREST
ODQDJHPHQWSV 'LVFXVVLRQ DQG $QDO\VLYV
April 30, 2020

As management of the City @fak Forestwe offer readers of these financial statements this narrative overview
and analysis of th& L Wiih§ncial activities for the fiscal year end&gril 30,2020 Sincethis documentocuses

RQ WKH FXUUHQW \HDUTV Dari\turietiKnokivfacts Htgho@dte @at iR Eobj@hdtievwith
the & L Win@ncial statements.

Financial Highlights

x The City 1V D \ahMdHdférred outflows of resourcesceededts liabilities and deferred inflows of
resourcest April 30, 2020by $8,920,127 Of this amount, §36,217,29%is unrestricted At April 30,
202Q the governmental activities reported pessition of $(5,393,087, of which §35,151,363 was
unrestricted

x The City previouslyimplementedGASB StatemeniNo. 75, Accounting andFinancial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OR&B¢h required the city to recognize an additional
$6.5million in liability. The City previously implemented GASB 68 requiring the recording36f2in
net pension liability ints financial statements.The City{ Met position excluding the impact of tise
accounting standardsvould be $0.6 million. Historically, only the net pension obligatiofassetwas
reported in the financial statementgth the unfunded actuarial aceduliability reported in the notes to
the financial statements and reqdiseipplementary informationGASB 68and 75required the City to
record thenetpension liabilityand total OPEB liabilityon the face of itfinancial statements, but it is not
a new liability and has been previously disclosed. The City is acutely aware of this liability.

x TheCity 1V f(pkitiwhincreased by $951,08&luring the fiscal year endinfgpril 30, 2020(FY20). The
governmental ngoositionincreased by £264,853and the businedype activities nepositiondecreased
by $%(313,765.

X The governmental activities revenue wa3 8million, an increase of $,5660000r 6%. The expenses
were £5.7million, an increaseof $1,3350000r 5.5%.

X The businessype activities revenue wag.$ million, an increaseof $78,0000r 1%. The expenses were
$7.6 million, adecrease of $25000 or4.1%.

X The total cost of alCity programsncreasedy $1 million or 3.1%.
Overview of theFinancial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introductionQibytfiddasic financial statements
which comprise three componentovernmemwide financial statementsund financial statemenisand rotes
to the financal statementsThis report also contains additiorsalpplementatlata

Governmentwide Financial Statements

The governmerwide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overvievCiy th§
finances in a manner similar to a privatctor business. The governmandle financial statementsan be found
on pagegl-6 of this report.

x The staément of nepositionpresents information on all of ti&ty § ¥ssetsaand deferred outflowand
liabilities and deferred inflowswith the difference between the two reported agpasition Over time,
increases or decreases in pesitionmay serve aa useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the City is improving or deteriorating.
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during the most recent fiscal year. All changes inpoation are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues &
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in figlre fis
periods.

x Governmentwide financial statementgportfunctions of theCity that areprincipally supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activiti#®e City J Yovernmental activities include
generalgovernmentpublic safety, highways andstreets andinterest oongtermdebt.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segrec
for specific activities or objectives. THaty, like other local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance and related legal requirements. All@ityifefinds can be divided into
three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

x Gowvernmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmel
activities in the governmerntide financial statements. However, governmental fund financial statements
focus on neaterm inflows anautflows of spendable seurces They also focusn balances of spendable
resourcesvailable at the end of the fiscal year. This information is useful in evaluatir@jtth® Near
term financing requirements.

X Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that ajotreenmentwide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information for governnfen@ddandgovernmental activities in
the governmenwide financial statements. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement oévenues, expenditures, and changes in fhathnces provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison.

x The City maintains15 individual governmental funds.Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet anthagovernmetal fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in funtalances for the Generalind the Motor Fuel Taxund TIF Ill Capital Projects Fund
and TIFVII Capital Projects-und all of which are considered to be major funds. Data fronother
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentiadiordual fund data for each of
these nofmajor governmental funds is providedtive form of combining statements in this report

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the goverwigafi nancialstatements, only in more
detail. The City businesgype activities include Waterworks and Sewerage and Commuter Parkind hese
functions are intended to recovel ait a significant portiorof their costs through user fees and charges. The
basc proprietary fund financial statements can be found on fEl#&S of this report.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the berpefities outsidéhe government. Fiduciary
funds are not reflected in the governmemde financialstatements because the resources of those funds are not
available to support th€ity 1 Yrograms. The accountingsed for fiduciary funds is similar toghused for
proprietary funds. The fiduciary funds utilized by gy are the) L U H | L Jakd\Pidlidé/Flension Trust Funds.
The basic fiduciary fund financiatatements can be found on pa®)@47 of this report.
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Notes to the Financi&@tatements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding ddtthe@rovided in the
governmentwide and fund financial statements. The notes tditlamcial statements can be found on pades
68 of thisreport.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this reppres¢sas certain required
supplementary information concerning funding progress forQitg { Mlinois Municipal Retirement Fund
(IMRF) andPolice and AL U H | L Jeknpldyieé Wé&insion obligatienRequired supplementary information can be
found on page69-82 of this report. The combining statements referred to earlieommection with nommajor
governmental funds are presentsunediately following theequired supplementary information. Combining
and individual fund statements aschedules can be found on pag8<l.16 of thisreport.

Governmentwide Financial Analysis

As stated earlier, ngositonPD\ VHUYH RYHU WLPH DV D XV H IfKhéncialpGsitierD ik U |
largest part of theCity § Wet position reflects itsinvestment in capital assets (land, buildingdrastructure,
equipmentandvehicleg less anyelated debt used Bcquire those assets that is still outstanding.dibeuses
these capital assetspgmvide services to citizens; consequently, these assetstaaeailable for future spending.
Although theCity T Wivestment in its capitaassets is reported net ofaked debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed tepay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themsel\
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
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Following is a statement of net position:

Governmental Businesstype
Activities Activities Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Current and other assets 16,563,541 14,679,691 1,162,499 1,815,236 17,726,040 16,494,927
Capital assets 38,361,912 37,757,686 26,269,400 27,377,700 64,631,312 65,135,386

Total Assets 54,925,453 52,437,377 27,431,899 29,192,936 82,357,352 81,630,313
Pension items 6,974,643 5,652,197 205,978 681,390 7,180,621 6,333,587
Unamortized loss on refunding 573,154 652,248 297,178 346,642 870,332 998,890

Total deferred outflows of resources 7,547,797 6,304,445 503,156 1,028,032 8,050,953 7,332,477
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 62,473,250 58,741,822 27,935,055 30,220,968 90,408,305 88,962,790
Long-term liabilities 53,757,027 52,268,534 11,689,008 13,735,029 65,446,035 66,003,563
Other liabilities 4,098,560 4,005,835 1,421,590 1,519,415 5,520,150 5,525,250

Total liabilities 57,855,587 56,274,369 13,110,598 15,254,444 70,966,185 71,528,813
Pension items 4,309,106 4,463,674 511,243 339,545 4,820,349 4,803,219
Unavailable property taxes 5,701,644 5,661,719 - - 5,701,644 5,661,719

Total deferred inflows of resources 10,010,750 10,125,393 511,243 339,545 10,521,993 10,464,938
Net Position:

Invested in capital assets 26,746,595 25,227,204 15,379,146 15,754,638 42,125,741 40,981,842

Restricted 3,011,681 2,729,286 - - 3,011,681 2,729,286

Unrestricted (35,151,363) (35,614,430) (1,065,932) (1,127,659) (36,217,295) (36,742,089)

Total net position (5,393,087) (7,657,940) 14,313,214 14,626,979 8,920,127 6,969,039
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows ant
Net Position 62,473,250 58,741,822 27,935,055 30,220,968 90,408,305 88,962,790
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The & LW\ TV F Re? pokiH iBcreased2 million to $8.9 million during FY20.

Fallowing is a statement of changes in pesition

Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services

Operating Grants &ontributions

Capital Grants & Contributions
General Revenues:

Property Tax

Income Tax

State Sales and U3ax

Other Taxes

Investment Income

Other

Transfers
Total Revenues and Transfers

Expenses:
Public Safety
Highways & Streets
General Government
Water
Commuter Parking Lot
Interest on LT Debt

Total Expenses

Excess (deficiency)

Change in Net Position

Net Position, May 1
Change in accounting principle
Net Position, May 1 Restated

Net Position, April 30

Governmental Businesstype
Activities Activities Total

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
3,366,646 3,583,605 7,455,348 7,389,842 10,821,994 10,973,447
1,279,301 845,161 - - 1,279,301 845,161
477,978 81,918 - - 477,978 81,918
13,001,046 12,189,538 - - 13,001,046 12,189,538
3,031,960 2,714,802 - - 3,031,960 2,714,802
4,458,442 4,336,576 - - 4,458,442 4,336,576
1,874,344 2,070,786 - - 1,874,344 2,070,786
11,992 20,003 1,489 (4,489) 13,481 15,514
283,214 376,499 15,321 8,959 298,535 385,458

208,900 200,000  (208,900) (200,000) - -

27,993,823 26,418,888 7,263,258 7,194,312 35,257,081 33,613,200
17,771,201 16,582,212 17,771,201 16,582,212
3,729,571 3,797,193 3,729,571 3,797,193
3,712,562 3,366,340 3,712,562 3,366,340
- - 7,326,549 7,636,587 7,326,549 7,636,587
- - 250,474 265,752 250,474 265,752
515,636 648,290 - - 515,636 648,290
25,728,970 24,394,035 7,577,023 7,902,339 33,305,993 32,296,374
2,264,853 2,024,853  (313,765) (708,027) 1,951,088 1,316,826
2,264,853 2,024,853  (313,765) (708,027) 1,951,088 1,316,826
(7,657,940) (4,631,834) 14,626,979 15,484,914 6,969,039 10,853,080
(5,050,959) (149,908) - (5,200,867)
(7,657,940) (9,682,793) 14,626,979 15,335,006 6,969,039 5,652,213
(5,393,087) (7,657,940) 14,313,214 14,626,979 8,920,127 6,969,039

Net positionfrom governmental activitiemicreased 3.3 million andnetpositionfrom businesgype activities
decreased 14,000). The total net position increas&a million.
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Property taxes, which repres&8nm of the revenue fathe City § ®ctivities increased. 7% or $812000from
FY19. Total property taxes received fo¥20 were 33 million. The City received 4.5 million in salesand use
tax for FY20. This representsnaincreaseof $122,000 or 2.8% from last year. State income tax revenues
increased $17,000in FY20to $3 million, an increase ofl1.7%.

Revenues for th€€ity are generated from a number of sources fmmdhe most partare dependent on different
financial factors. This relative mix of revenue sources, as illustrated in the chart below, providesnong
stability.

CITY OF OAK FORST
REVENUE BY SOURCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2020

GRANTS &
CONTRIBUTIONS OTHER

1%
5% INTEREST REVENUE
0%
PROPERTY TAXES
37%

OTHER TAXES
26%

CHARGES FOR
SERVICES
31%
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The chart below illustrates the breakdown of program costs for governmental activities.

CITY OF OAK FOREST
EXPENDITURE BY PROGRAM - GOVT ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2020

INTEREST ON GENERAL GOVT

HIGHWAY & DEBT 14%
STREETS 2%
15%

\PUBLIC SAFETY

69%

Financial Analysis of the& L WRUfhids

As noted earlier, th€ity uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with fietated legal
requirements. The focus of ti&ty § Jovernmental funds is to provide information on Aeam inflows,
outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such informsitimeful in assessing financing requirements.
Unrestrictedl XQG EDODQFH PD\ VHUYH DV D XVHIXO PHDVXUH RI D JRY|
at the end of the fiscal year. TH&ty | \governmental funds reported combined ending fund balaotes
$7,855,736($(1,108,504 is unassigned

The general fund is the primary operating fund ofGltg. During the yearfund balancencreasedn the general
fund by $02,266 The endhg fund balancés $5,180,992at April 30, 202Q This is approximatel3.7% of the
*HQHUDO )XQGYV DQQXDO RSHUDWLQJ H[SHQGLWXUHV

Other major governmental funds inclubetor Fuel TaxFundandTIF Il Capital Projects Fund These funds

are reported separately in the governmental foaldnce sheetna in the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances on/gaged9-10.
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TheMotor Fuel Tax~und reportsan increasdo fund balance in the amount &26,962and ending fund balance
in the amount of 836,611 The City spent approximately 73,000 on its routine annual street resurfacing
programin FY20.

The TIF Il Project Fund reportsdecrease to fund balance in the amount&if,832and ending fund balance in
the amount of @,394,40). TIF Il Project Fund property tax revenugscreasedrom $522,088in FY19 to
$430,022in FY20, a difference of $2,0660r 18%. TIF Il reported property tax revenue of $893,638 in FY10
TIF 11l property tax revenues iIRY20 are stillapproximately$464,000 less than the increment received before
the financial crisis.

In addition to the housing market crisis, anotteason that the revenue has declined so dramatically is because
Cook Countydecreased thproperty valuesised tocalculak property tax revenueffective tax year 2009For
example, assessment levels for commercial property were decreased from 38% to 25% and residential asses:
levels were decreased from 20% to 10Rlawever, theassessment levels for thaseyearused to calculate tax
increment financing revenueenenot decreased. As a result, many properties fell below the base and therefor
did not generatacremental property tavevenue. The City evaluadsolutionsincluding extending thduration

of theTIF Il District or refunding the debt service FY 17, The TIFIIl extension was approved atie bonds
wererefunced TIF Il also plans to borrow from contiguous TIF districts and the General Fiihdavenues
increase from future development. The kiagnm projections in TIFI are positive.

Proprietary Funds

TheCity operateswo proprietary fundincludingWaterworks and Sewerage and Commuter ParkingTlhase
functions are intended to recavall or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges.
Unrestricted nepositionfor businesgype activitieswvas $(1,065,932 at April 30, 202Q an increase of 61,727

The Commuter Parking Lot reports unrestrictedposition of $310,144 contributing tathe deficit net position
for businesgype activities. The net position decreas#87,863when compared to last year.

The Water and Sewer fund reports unrestricted net positiofr65F88. Water and sewer revenuéscreased
slightly because @lons solddecreased.2 million gallons o0r2%. Negativenetposition isalsoreflective of the
decreas®f 169 million gallonsof water and sewdrilled in FY20 compared to FYO®re-recession sales data.
This isa22% reduction, resulting from foreclosures, vacancies and bankruptikktionally, the City of Oak
Forest billedb96million gallons,or 90%, of the661 million gallonspurchasedmainly due tdosses fromeakage

and inaccurate meterEherefore, the City pay290000 for@ PLOOLRQ JDOORQV RI ZDWHU \
City replaced all water meters to properly bill unrecorded usage and implemented a leak detection program.
a result, losses hawdecreased approximatel9 million gallons, or a $20,000 savings, in thdfth year of the
program.

The City has been proactive in addressing the negative posiliba.deceasedusage meant that th@ity J V
charges for water and sewer were insufficimn the fund to be seupporting. Effective December 1, 2010,
the City Councilapproved dase rate, per meter, in the amountXd Br singlefamily residence and commercial
property and $5 per unit for mulinit residential buildings in addition to theater consumed in that quarter. The
base ratevas expected tgenerate annual revenues exceeding $500y@0i¢h should create enough reventee
adequately support expenditurds.FY20, the base charge generate&600 in revenues.

In May 202Q City Council approvd an annualwaterand sewerate increaséo offset increases from the City of
Chicago the Village of Oak Lawrand its own opations. The tier 1 water rate was increased®t@&per 1,000
gallons and the tier 2 water rate was increaseti@a$per 1,000 gallons. The increased sewer rate per 1,000 gallons
was $.16.
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Budgetary Highlights

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Final
General Fund: Budget Actual
Revenues:
Taxes $ 15,183,258 $ 15,180,27E
Intergovernmenta 4,066,857 4,327,510
Other 3,246,293 3,052,255
Total 22,496,408 22,560,040
Expenditures:
Expenditures 23,123,246 21,838,680
Total 23,123,246 21,838,680
Other Financing Sources (Use
Sale of Capital Asset 3,000 1,000
Proceeds from Note Issuan 308,000 350,000
Transfers In 701,800 -
Transfers Out (125,000) (470,094)
Total Other Financing Sources (Us¢ 887,800 (119,094)

Change in Fund Balanc $ 260,962 $ 602,266

The General Funeeportedan increasén fund balancef $602000for the year endedpril 30,2020 The budget
projected asurplusof $261,000, so there is @ositivebudget variance of311,000. General Fund revenue was
higher than expected mainly besa state shared revenues were greater than budgeted as a result of an improvi
economy.Also, a fulktime position remained unfilled for the fiscal year.

Capital Asset Administration

Change in Capital Assets

Net
Balance Additions/ Balance
May 1, 2019 Deletions April 30, 2020
Non-Depreciable Assets:
Land $ 4,341,953 $ 200,000 $ 4,541,95:
Construction in Progress 279,610 39,113 318,723
Other Capital Assets: - -
Infrastructure 36,567,281 227,092 36,794,373
Buildings 10,649,772 270,000 10,919,772
Equipment 2,829,257 306,510 3,135,767
Vehicles 5,495,796 3,699 5,499,495
Accum. Depreciation on (22,405,983) (442,188) (22,848,171)
Capital Assets
Totals Governmental $ 37,757,686 $ 604,226 $ 38,361,91Z

MD&A 9



BusinessType Activities
Change in Capital Assets

Net
Balance Additions/ Balance
May 1, 2019 Deletions April 30, 2020
Non-Depreciable Assets:
Land $ 1,308,296 $ - $ 1,308,29¢
Construction in Progress 384,672 384,672
Other Capital Assets: - -
Infrastructure 24,120,608 24,120,608
Parking Lot 2,443,850 2,443,850
Buildings 3,559,819 3,559,819
Equipment 15,541,420 15,541,420
Vehicles 1,443,062 (29,500) 1,413,562
Accum. Depreciation on (21,424,027) (1,078,800) (22,502,827)
Capital Assets
Total BusinessType $ 27,377,70C $(1,108,300) $ 26,269,40(
GRAND TOTAL $ 65,135,38€ $ (504,074) $ 64,631,312

TheCityfV LQYHVWPHQW LQ FDSLWDO DVVHWV LQFOXGHV ODQG EX
investment in capital assets asAqiril 30, 2020was $4.6million (net of accumulated depreciation).

This year,approximatelyl.4 linear miles of strets were resurfaced, includiglwardDrive from Tudor Road
to JamedDrive and 157" Streetfrom Pine Drive to RidgelandAvenue The total cosbf the road prograrwas
approximately $73,000

In FY20, the City alsgurchased a new fire truckhetotal costwas$652,000, of which $350,000 was financed
Additional information on th€ity  tapital assetsan be found on pag8§-31 of this report.
Debt Administration

The City had total outstanding bonded debi$aP,85Q0000at April 30, 202Q This entire amount is backed by
the full faith and credit of th€ity. During the year, $,030,0000f bondswereretired.

The City had a balance on its line of credits in the amoufitlg805,853at April 30, 2020 During the year,
$1,053000 of principal was retiredThe city also borrowed $350,000 from the lllinois Finance Authority to
purchase a new fire truck.

TheCityfV ILQDQFLDO rRey&lbyVvIs8R (n ADANin connection with the issuance of General
Obligation RefundingBonds, Series 2GR and General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series6B01S&P
maintainedW KH &itetaflAA-. S&P noted the following in its report

X Adequate economy, with projected per capita effective buying incorb@la®o and market value per
capita of $2,796 that is gaining advantage from access to a broad and diverse metropolitan statistic
area (MSA);

X Adeguate management, with "standardafinial policies and practices under our Financial Management
Assessment (FMA) methodology;
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X Adeguate budgetary performance, with an operating surplus in the general fund but an operating defici
the total governmental fund leviel fiscal 2016

x Very stong budgetary flexibility, with an available fund balance in fiscal626fL21% of operating
expenditures;

x Very drong liquidity, with total government available cash I#.1% of total governmental fund
expenditures and27.446 of governmental debt servicand access to external liquidity we consider
strong;

X Adequate debt and contingent liability position, with debt service carrying charg@s5%f of
expenditures and net direct debt that14.9% of total governmental fund revenwd a large pension
and other postemployment benefit (OPEB) obligation and the lack of a plan to sufficiently address th
obligation, butrapid amortization witiy0.8% of debt scheduled to be retired in 10 years; and

X Strong institutional framework score.

ORRG\finheD WKH &LW\TV ER@AuUiLBIRV19QTheRdp@t cited th€ity's moderately sized tax
base;strong wealth and income profileatisfactory financial profile despite somewhat limited opegéimd
liquidity andelevated debt and pension liabilities rationale for the rating.

Additional information on th€ity  Mng-term debt can be found on pa@2s37 of thisreport.
Economic Factors

The pension funds reportexdecreaseo net positiorof $321,074in FY20. The investment returns for the police
and fire pension funds wer&.% and2.8%, respectively The actuarial assumption for investment retusns
7%. So, the policeand firepension fund investment returns were lgss assumedPerformancesigherthan

the actuarial assumption could ultimatddgnefit the City because higher investment returns decrease the
contributions owed by th€ity. Conversely, lower investment returns will increase contributions owed by the
City.

TheCity 1V VD O H N takdpd incdhe@axcreased t&$6.2 million, or an increase o#.5% in FY20. The

City reported $6.2 million in FY08 from these taxesthese revenuesgual thgre-recession amountg&ffective

July 1, 2012, the City implemented a 1% home rule sales tax to provide sufficient revenues to offset other defici
revenues. The City collected approximately3$nillion in FY20, which is mainy used to fund capital purchases.

The City 1 Mngtermgoal is b maintainthe General Fund balane€25% ofexpenditure®r $5.3 million. The
fund balance at the end B¥20 is $.2 million, an increase of 602000. Since theC L W\  VbdlXmQeBlus
working cash of $48,000 totals $% million, it mees the policyrequirement

Water and sewer revendecreasedlightly. Gallons of water and sewer soletreasedL2 million or 2% from
FY19. The City is still billing169 million gallons less irfFY20 than in FY09, &22% reduction, resulting from
foreclosures, vacancies and bankruptcies.

7KH &L WA @dqualized assessed valuation (EAV) 438,344,805which represents #%6 decrease in real
estate values as compared to the&€&jualized assessed valuation. Tdasrease is mainly due essessment
appeals Thetotal EAV is still Z7% less than 2010 values. The significant decrease was the result of the declin
in market value of residewadi and commercial property due to the housing market crisis. Surrounding
PXQLFLSDOLWLHY UHSRUWHG VLPLODU GHFOLQHV LQ ($9 7KH &L
resources necessary to fund governmental services at current [Elglgver, continuing to increase the levy
while EAV is not growing, even shrinking, is unsustainable for many households and businHEsseSity
consistently reviews its revenue portfolio to identify any additional revenue resanctesplores ways teduce

costs through shared services with other local governments
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TheCity is currently pursuing a number of economic development projects, mostly distiiiEts. The mixed

use development oh5%h and Cicero Avenue stalled in FY10 due to the inability to secure commercial and
residentiakenantsas aresult of the housing market crisidn FY20, the city continud working with developers

to plan future residential and commercial projects in itgomcorridors. These projectsinclude apartment
buildings, hotels and restauran@nce completedhéesewill have a positive impacton ti@gty fV VDOHV WD|
and real estate taxes.

The COVID-19 pandemic in the United States has caused busirsegptibn through mandated and voluntary
closings of multiple City locations. While the disruption is expected to be temporary, there is considerab
uncertainty around the duration and lelegm impact of the pandemic. The City is continuously monitdnmng

this matter may impact its operating results. However, any related financial impact and the duration cannot
reasonably estimated at this time. Despite the challenges that continue to be posed by the economic environi
and the uncertainty with seashared revenues, potential state legislative issues, and the dO\andemic,
WKH &LW\TV IXQG EDODQFH SROLFLHY DQG ILVFDO FRQVHUYDWLY

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview ditlgef] #hances. Questions concerning any

of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed
theFinance Directqrl5440S. Central Aveaug Oak ForestIL 60452
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables (net, where applicable,
of allowances for uncollectibles)
Property taxes
Intergovernmental
Accounts
Other
Internal balances
Prepaid expenses
Investment in joint venture
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension items - IMRF
Pension items - Police Pension
Pension items - Firefighters' Pension
Pension items - OPEB
Unamortized loss on refunding

Total deferred outflows of resources
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Accrued interest payable
Deferred revenue
Deposits payable
Line of credit
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred property taxes
Pension items - IMRF
Pension items - Police Pension
Pension items - Firefighters' Pension
Pension items - OPEB

Total deferred inflows of resources
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for
Highways and streets
Public safety
Debt service
Economic development
Working cash
Unrestricted (deficit)

TOTAL NET POSITION (DEFICIT)

Governmental  Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

$ 7,739,694 $ - $ 7,739,694
5,701,644 - 5,701,644
1,052,704 - 1,052,704
- 1,968,776 1,968,776
624,112 - 624,112

904,315 (904,315) -
341,172 98,038 439,210
199,900 - 199,900
4,860,676 1,692,968 6,553,644
33,501,236 24,576,432 58,077,668
54,925,453 27,431,899 82,357,352
314,918 177,142 492,060
3,834,092 - 3,834,092
1,907,262 - 1,907,262
918,371 28,836 947,207
573,154 297,178 870,332
7,547,797 503,156 8,050,953
62,473,250 27,935,055 90,408,305
695,268 287,999 983,267
439,235 86,279 525,514
151,585 142,810 294,395
12,697 - 12,697
51,464 1,600 53,064
1,607,597 - 1,607,597
2,748,311 902,902 3,651,213
52,149,430 11,689,008 63,838,438
57,855,587 13,110,598 70,966,185
5,701,644 - 5,701,644
846,083 475,921 1,322,004
841,838 - 841,838
1,496,230 - 1,496,230
1,124,955 35,322 1,160,277
10,010,750 511,243 10,521,993
67,866,337 13,621,841 81,488,178
26,746,595 15,379,146 42,125,741
886,611 - 886,611
464,889 - 464,889
833,483 - 833,483
411,628 - 411,628
415,070 - 415,070
(35,151,363) (1,065,932) (36,217,295
$ (5393,087)$ 14,313,214 $ 8,920,127

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges Grants and Grants and
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS Expenses for Services Contributions  Contributions
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental Activities
General government $ 3,712562 $ 1,565,476 $ - $ 6,880
Public safety 17,771,201 1,584,753 247,053 -
Highways and streets 3,729,571 216,417 1,032,248 471,098
Interest and fiscal charges on
long-term debt 515,636 - - -
Total governmental activities 25,728,970 3,366,646 1,279,301 477,978
Business-Type Activities
Waterworks and sewerage 7,326,549 7,292,709 - -
Commuter parking 250,474 162,639 - -
Total business-type activities 7,577,023 7,455,348 - -
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT $ 33,305,993 $ 10,821,994 $ 1,279,301 $ 477,978




General Revenues
Taxes
Property
Sales and use
Telecommunications
Utility
Other
Intergovernmental - unrestricted
Investment income
Miscellaneous
Transfers in (out)

Total
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION (DEFICIT), MAY 1

NET POSITION (DEFICIT), APRIL 30

Net (Expense) Revenue and Change in Net Positio

Governmental  Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
$  (2,140,206) $ - (2,140,206
(15,939,395) - (15,939,395
(2,009,808) - (2,009,808
(515,636) - (515,636)
(20,605,045) - (20,605,045
- (33,840) (33,840)
- (87,835) (87,835)
- (121,675) (121,675)
(20,605,045) (121,675) (20,726,720
13,001,046 - 13,001,046
3,470,256 - 3,470,256
350,667 - 350,667
1,052,716 - 1,052,716
422,106 - 422,106
4,069,001 - 4,069,001
11,992 1,489 13,481
283,214 15,321 298,535
208,900 (208,900) -
22,869,898 (192,090) 22,677,808
2,264,853 (313,765) 1,951,088
(7,657,940) 14,626,979 6,969,039
$ (5393,087)$ 14,313214 % 8,920,127

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

April 30, 2020
Motor Fuel TIF 1
General Tax Capital Projects  Nonmajor Total
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 2,857,890 $ 880,695 $ 54,415 $ 3,946,694 $ 7,739,694
Receivables (net, where applicable,
of allowances for uncollectibles)
Property taxes 4,918,370 - - 783,274 5,701,644
Intergovernmental 958,831 93,873 - - 1,052,704
Other 624,112 - - - 624,112
Due from other funds - - - 904,315 904,315
Prepaid items 341,172 - - - 341,172
Advances to other funds 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
TOTAL ASSETS $ 11,200,375 $ 974,568 $ 54,415 $ 5,634,283 $ 17,863,641
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 449,181 $ 87,957 $ 10,177 $ 147,953 $ 695,268
Accrued payroll 439,235 - - - 439,235
Deposits payable - - - 51,464 51,464
Deferred revenue 12,697 - - - 12,697
Line of credit 199,900 - - 1,407,697 1,607,597
Advances from other funds - - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
Total liabilities 1,101,013 87,957 1,510,177 1,607,114 4,306,261
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable property taxes 4,918,370 - - 783,274 5,701,644
Total deferred inflows of resources 4,918,370 - - 783,274 5,701,644
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 6,019,383 87,957 1,510,177 2,390,388 10,007,90%
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable - advances 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
Nonspendable - prepaid items 341,172 - - - 341,172
Restricted
Highways and streets - 886,611 - - 886,611
Public safety - - - 464,889 464,889
Debt service - - - 833,483 833,483
Economic development - - - 411,628 411,628
Capital projects - - - 137,518 137,518
Working cash - - - 415,070 415,070
Unrestricted
Assigned for public improvements - - - 1,756,861 1,756,861
Unassigned (deficit) 3,339,820 - (1,455,762) (775,554) 1,108,504
Total fund balances (deficit) 5,180,992 886,611 (1,455,762) 3,243,895 7,855,736
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES $ 11,200,375 $ 974,568 $ 54,415 $ 5,634,283 $ 17,863,641

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

April 30, 2020

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 7,855,736

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds 38,361,912

Net pension liability for the lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund is shown
as a liability on the statement of net position (811,710)

Net pension liability for the Police Pension Fund is shown as a liability on
the statement of net position (25,068,840

Net pension liability for the Firefighters' Pension Fund is shown as a
liability on the statement of net position (8,847,507,

The OPEB liability is not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
is not reported in the governmental funds (6,286,870

Differences between expected and actual experiences, assumption changes,
net differences between projected and actual earnings, and contributions
subsequent to the measurement date for the lllinois Municipal Retirement
Fund are recognized as deferred outflows and inflows of resources on
the statement of net position (531,165)

Differences between expected and actual experiences, assumption changes,
and net differences between projected and actual earnings for the
Police Pension Fund are recognized as deferred outflows and inflows
of resources on the statement of net position 2,992,254

Differences between expected and actual experiences, assumption changes,
and net differences between projected and actual earnings for the
Firefighters' Pension Fund are recognized as deferred outflows and inflows
of resources on the statement of net position 411,032

Differences between expected and actual experiences, assumption changes,
and net differences between projected and actual earnings for the
OPEB liability are recognized as deferred outflows and inflows
of resources on the statement of net position (206,584)

Long-term assets and liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds

Bonds payable (11,380,000
Notes payable (350,000)
Unamortized bond premium (458,471)
Unamortized loss on refunding 573,154
Investment in joint venture is shown as an asset on the statement of net position 199,900

Accrued interest payable is not recorded in governmental funds but is recorded
on the statement of net position (151,585)

Compensated absences payable is not due and payable in the current period and,

therefore, is not reported in the governmental funds (1,694,343,
NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ (5,393,087

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

Motor Fuel TIF 11
General Tax Capital Projects  Nonmajor Total
REVENUES
Taxes $ 15,180,275 $ 213,530 $ 430,022 $ 3,044,811 $ 18,868,638
Licenses and permits 545,645 - - - 545,645
Intergovernmental 4,327,510 1,033,346 - - 5,360,856
Charges for services 1,072,494 - - - 1,072,494
Fines and forfeitures 250,178 - - - 250,178
Investment income 3,813 1,380 599 6,200 11,992
Miscellaneous 1,180,125 - - 23,995 1,204,120
Total revenues 22,560,040 1,248,256 430,621 3,075,006 27,313,923
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 3,079,251 - 20,761 210,126 3,310,138
Public safety 16,446,986 - - 247,180 16,694,166
Highways and streets 2,301,483 921,294 - - 3,222,777
Debt service
Principal - - 255,000 1,025,000 1,280,000
Interest and fiscal charges 10,960 - 216,182 288,486 515,628
Total expenditures 21,838,680 921,294 491,943 1,770,792 25,022,709
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 721,360 326,962 (61,322) 1,304,214 2,291,214
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 1,000 - - - 1,000
Issuance of notes 350,000 - - - 350,000
Transfers in - - - 1,678,994 1,678,994
Transfers (out) (470,094) - - (1,000,000) (1,470,094
Total other financing sources (uses) (119,094) - - 678,994 559,900
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 602,266 326,962 (61,322) 1,983,208 2,851,114
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), MAY 1 4,578,726 559,649 (1,394,440) 1,260,687 5,004,622
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), APRIL 30 $ 5,180,992 $ 886,611 $ (1,455,762)$ 3,243,895 $ 7,855,736

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES -
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 2,851,114

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different
because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures; however, they are capitalized
and depreciated in the statement of activities 1,767,851

Some expenses in the statement of activities (e.g., depreciation) do not require the use
of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in

governmental funds (1,476,761
Contributions of capital assets are reported only in the statement of activities 470,000
The loss on disposal of capital assets is reported only in the statement of activities (156,864)

Proceeds from the issuance of notes are reported as other financing sources in the
governmental funds but not in the statement of activities (350,000)

The repayment of the principal portion of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure
when due in governmental funds but as a reduction of principal outstanding in the
statement of activities 1,280,000

Amortization of premium on bonds is reported as a reduction of interest expense on the
statement of activities 64,259

Amortization of the loss on refunding is reported as an expense on the statement of
activities (79,094)

The change in accrued interest payable on long-term debt is reported as an expense on the
statement of activities 14,827

The change in the net pension liability and deferred inflows and outflows for the lllinois
Municipal Retirement Fund is reported only in the statement of activities 178,855

The change in the Police Pension Fund net pension liability and deferred inflows and
outflows of resources is not a source or use of financial resources (1,182,882

The change in the Firefighters' Pension Fund net pension liability and deferred inflows
and outflows of resources is not a source or use of financial resources (267,683)

The change in the OPEB liability, deferred inflows, and deferred outflows is not a
current financial resource and, therefore, is not reported in the governmental funds (294,312)

The change in the investment in joint venture is not a current financial resource and,
therefore, is not reported in the governmental funds (470,000)

The change in compensated absences payable is shown as an expense on the statement
of activities (84,457)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 2,264,853

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

April 30, 2020
Business-Type Activities
Waterworks Commuter
and Sewerage Parking Lot Total
CURRENT ASSETS
Receivables (net where applicable,
of allowances for uncollectibles)
Accounts $ 1,968,776 $ - $ 1,968,776
Prepaid expenses 93,146 4,892 98,038
Total current assets 2,061,922 4,892 2,066,814

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Assets not being depreciated

Assets being depreciated
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net capital assets being depreciated

Net capital assets
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension items - IMRF
Pension items - OPEB
Unamortized loss on refunding

Total deferred outflows of resources

384,672 1,308,296 1,692,968

44,635,409 2,443,850 47,079,259
(21,621,710) (881,117) (22,502,827

23,013,699 1,562,733 24,576,432

23,398,371 2,871,029 26,269,400

23,398,371 2,871,029 26,269,400

25,460,293 2,875,921 28,336,214

159,920 17,222 177,142

28,836 - 28,836
297,178 - 297,178
485,934 17,222 503,156

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 25,946,227 2,893,143 28,839,370

(This statement is continued on the following page.)
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (Continued)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

April 30, 2020
Business-Type Activities
Waterworks Commuter
and Sewerage Parking Lot Total
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 285,917 $ 2,082 $ 287,999
Accrued payroll 80,847 5,432 86,279
Deposits payable 1,600 - 1,600
Due to other funds 670,231 234,084 904,315
Accrued interest payable 142,810 - 142,810
Compensated absences payable 109,757 - 109,757
OPERB liability 8,145 - 8,145
Bonds payable 785,000 - 785,000
Total current liabilities 2,084,307 241,598 2,325,905
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Compensated absences payable 69,568 - 69,568
OPEB liability 189,256 - 189,256
Net pension liability - IMRF 412,196 44,390 456,586
Bonds payable 10,973,598 - 10,973,598
Total long-term liabilities 11,644,618 44,390 11,689,008
Total liabilities 13,728,925 285,988 14,014,913
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension items - IMRF 429,651 46,270 475,921
Pension items - OPEB 35,322 - 35,322
Total deferred inflows of resources 464,973 46,270 511,243
Total liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources 14,193,898 332,258 14,526,156
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 12,508,117 2,871,029 15,379,146
Unrestricted (deficit) (755,788) (310,144) (1,065,932
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 11,752,329 $ 2,560,885 $ 14,313,214

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

Total operating revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES
EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION
Water operations
Sewer operations
Parking operations

Total operating expenses excluding
depreciation

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
DEPRECIATION

Depreciation
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Miscellaneous income
Investment income
Interest expense
Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS

TRANSFERS
Transfers (out)

Total transfers
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION, MAY 1

NET POSITION, APRIL 30

Business-Type Activities

Waterworks Commuter

and Sewerage Parking Lot Total
$ 7,292,709 $ 162,639 $ 7,455,348
7,292,709 162,639 7,455,348
4,702,624 - 4,702,624
1,146,083 - 1,146,083
- 188,822 188,822
5,848,707 188,822 6,037,529
1,444,002 (26,183) 1,417,819
1,046,648 61,652 1,108,300
397,354 (87,835) 309,519
15,321 - 15,321
1,517 (28) 1,489
(431,194) - (431,194)
(414,356) (28) (414,384)
(17,002) (87,863) (104,865)
(208,900) - (208,900)
(208,900) - (208,900)
(225,902) (87,863) (313,765)
11,978,231 2,648,748 14,626,979
$ 11,752,329 $ 2,560,885 $ 14,313,214

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Miscellaneous receipts

Net cash from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interfund activity
Interest allocated to other funds

Net cash from noncapital financing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal payments on long-term debt
Principal payments on line of credit
Interest payments on long-term debt

Net cash from capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received

Net cash from investing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, MAY 1

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, APRIL 30

Business-Type Activities

Waterworks Commuter
and Sewerage Parking Lot Total
$ 7,203,129 $ 162,639 $ 7,365,768
(4,462,821) (37,273) (4,500,094
(1,587,050) (160,604) (1,747,654
15,321 - 15,321
1,168,579 (35,238) 1,133,341
461,331 35,266 496,597
- (28) (28)
461,331 35,238 496,569
(750,000) - (750,000)
(499,923) - (499,923
(422,438) - (422,438)
(1,672,361) - (1,672,361
1,517 - 1,517
1,517 - 1,517
(40,934) - (40,934)
40,934 - 40,934
$ - $ - $ -

(This statement is continued on the following page.)
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
(LOSS) TO NET CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash from operating activities
Depreciation
Miscellaneous receipts
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Deferred outflows - IMRF
Deferred outflows - OPEB
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Compensated absences payable
Deferred inflows - IMRF
Deferred inflows - OPEB
Net pension liability - IMRF
OPEB liability

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Business-Type Activities

Waterworks Commuter

and Sewerage Parking Lot Total
$ 397,354 $ (87,835) $ 309,519
1,046,648 61,652 1,108,300
15,321 - 15,321
(89,580) - (89,580)
(3,643) (471) (4,114)
436,771 47,037 483,808
(8,396) - (8,396)
(159,707) 1,690 (158,017)
13,150 (492) 12,658
30,621 - 30,621
150,895 16,250 167,145
4,553 - 4,553
(678,492) (73,069) (751,561)
13,084 - 13,084
$ 1,168,579 $ (35,238) $ 1,133,341

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

April 30, 2020

ASSETS

Cash and equivalents

Investments
U.S. Treasury and U.S. agency obligations
State and local obligations
Corporate bonds
Money market mutual funds
Equity mutual funds
Common stock

Receivables
Accrued interest

Prepaid expenses

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Total liabilities

NET POSITION RESTRICTED
FOR PENSIONS

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Pension
Trust

1,568,188

14,341,211
1,185,995
5,225,898
1,064,325

18,700,030

10,085,322

137,613
30,614

52,339,196

9,077

9,077

52,330,119




CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer $ 3,133,014
Employee 617,963
Total contributions 3,750,977
Investment income
Net depreciation in fair
value of investments (1,162,507
Interest earned 1,482,267
Total investment income 319,760
Less investment expense (224,434,
Net investment income 95,326
Total additions 3,846,30¢
DEDUCTIONS
Pension benefits and refunds 4,080,631
Contractual services 86,746
Total deductions 4,167,377
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (321,074
NET POSITION RESTRICTED
FOR PENSIONS
May 1 52,651,193
April 30 $ 52,330,119

See accompanying notes to financial statements.




CITY OF OAK FOREST , ILLINOIS
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of tkity of Oak Forestlllinois (the City) have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
as applied to government units (hereinafter referred to as generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP)). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standagktting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principlesThe more significant othe City'$ accounting policies are described
below.

a. Reporting Entity

The Cityis a municipal corporation governeg aseveamembercouncil consisting

of six aldermenand theMayor. As required byGAAP, these financial statements
presentthe City and its component units, entities for which the government is
considered to be financially accountaliended component units, although legally
separate entities, are, in substance, pahe€City§ operations and so data from these
units are combinedith data of the primary government.

The City§ financial statements includiduciary component units
Police Pension Employees Retirement System

7KH &LW\Y{V SROLFH HPSOR\HHV SDUWLFLSDWH LQ
Retirement System (PPERSIPPERS functions for the benefit of these
employees and is governed by a fimember pension board. Two members are
DSSRLQWHG E\ WKH &LW\YfV OD\RU RQH HOHFWHG
elected police employees constitute the pension board. Thés@bligated to

fund all PPERS costs not funded by PPERS participants based upon actuarial
valuations, which creates a financial burden on the City. The State of lllinois is
authorized to establish benefit levels and the City is authorized to approve the
actuarial assumptions used in the determination of contribution levels, which
results in the PPERS being fiscally dependent upon the City. PPERS is reported

as a pension trust fund. PPERS does not issue aaitamel financial report.
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
a. Reporting Entity (Continued)
FirefightersJPension Employees Retirement System

7KH &LW\YV VZRUQ ILUHILJKWHUYKS\CHUWVIFR IS Q WLHR QQ
Retirement System (FPERS). FPERS functions for the benefit of these
employees and is governed by a fmember pension board. Two members are
DSSRLQWHG E\ WKH &LW\fV OD\RU RQH HOHFWHG S|
fire employees constitute the pension board. The City is obligated to fund all
FPERS costs not funded by FPERS participants based upon actuarial valuations,
which creates a financial on the City. The State of lllinois is authorized to
establish benefit leveland the City is authorized to approve the actuarial
assumptions used in the determination of contribution levels, which results in

the FPERS being fiscally dependent on the City. FPERS is reported as a pension

trust fund. FPERS does not issue a stalode financial report.

b.  Fund Accounting

The Cityuses funds to report on its financial position andctienges in its financial
position Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid
financial management by segregating teami®ns related to certaaity functions or
activities.

A fund is a separate accounting entity with a-balancing set of accounts.

Fundsare classified into the following categoriegovernmental, proprietayyand
fiduciary.

Governmental funds are used to account for all or makedlity $ general activities,

including the collection and disbursement of restricted or committed monies (special
revenue funds), the funds committed, restrictedassigned for the acquisitiom o
construction of capital assets (capital projects furtle)funds committed, restricted

or assigned for the servicing of lotgrm debt (debt service fundsgnd the funds

restricted to the extent that only earnings, and not principal, may béougeoposes

WKDW VXSSRUW WKH &LW\{V. Bhd Bangml FFvndsSudad RAD Q HQ W
account for all activities of the City not accounted for in some other fund.

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those foundanvéie

sector, where the determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound financial
administrationGoods or services from such activities can be provided either to outside
parties (enterprise funds) or to other departments or agencies priwitrih the City
(internal service funds).
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b.

Fund Accounting (Continued)

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties,
including other governments. ThetZutilizes pension trust funds which are generally
used to account for assets that the City holds in a fiduciary capacity and are fiduciary
component units of the City.

GovernmerlWide and Fund Financial Statements

The governmentwvide financial satements (i.e., the statements ofpegitionand the
statement ofctivitie9 report information on all of the nonfiduciary activitiestbé

City. The effect of material interfund activity has been eliminated from these financial
statementsGovernmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from busipesactivities,
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demaragés the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function, segmenor program are offset by program revenu@isect expenses

are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segmesgram
revenues includél) charges to cusimers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment
and(2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particulanriction or segment axes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds,
and fiduciary funds, even though tredtér are excluded from the governmuemtde
financial statementsMajor individual governmental funds and major individual
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

The Cityreports the following major governmental funds
The General &nd isthe City$ primary operating fundt accounts for all
financial resources of the general government, except those accounted for in
another fund.
The Motor Fuel Tax Fund igsed to account for allotments of motor fuel taxes
to be used for street maintenance and for grant revenues and expenditures related
to road projectsThe City has elected to report this fund as a major fund.

The TIF Il Capital Projects Fund is usea daccount for capital projects and the
restricted incremental revenue in the TIF Il District.
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
c. GovernmemWide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
The City reports théllowing major proprietary funs

The Waterworks and Sewerageand accounts for the provision of water and
sewer services to the residents of the CAtly.activities necessary to provide
such services are accounted for in this fund including, butlimited to,
administration, operations, financing and related debt service, and billing and
collections.

The Commuter Parkinigot Fund accounts fdhe activities necessary to provide
parking to commuters and the fees collected for serVive City tas elected to
report this fund as a major fund.

The City reports the following fiduciary funds:

The Police Pension Fundnd Firefighterq/Pension Fund accourfor the
activities of the accumulation of resources to pay pension ¢ssurces are
contributed by members at rates fixed by state statutes and by the City which
uses the annual property tax levy to fund the employer contribution.

d. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Basis of Presentation

The governmenwvide financial statements are reportesing the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and
pension trusfund financial statement®kevenues and additions are recorded when
earred and expenses and deductions are recorded when a liability is inBuoetty

taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied (i.e., intended to
finance).Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as alltgligibi
requirements imposed by the provider have been @perating revenues and
expenses are directly attributable to the operation of the proprietary funds.
Non-operating revenue/expenses are incidental to the operations of these funds.

Governmental dnd financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accaumtiegthe
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized susceptible to
accrual (i.e., when thdyecome both measurable and availab¥easurablé means

the amount of the transaction can be determined *awndilable” means collectible
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current periodFor this prposethe Cityconsiders revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal peeadept forsales taxes
and telecommunicationtaxes which use a 9fay period The City recognizes
property taxes when they c@me both measurable and available in the year intended
to finance.Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred.
Principal and interest on general letegm debt are recorded as expenditures when
due.
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Sales taxes oweffom the state at year end, franchise taxes, licenses, charges for
services, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and are recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.
Income and motor &l taxes and fines collected and held by the state or county at year
end on behalf ofhe Cityalso are recognized as revenbmes and permits revenues

are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received
in cash.

In applying the susceptible accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues (i.e.,
federal and state grants), the legal and contractual requirements of the numerous
individual programs are used as guidelifdsnies that are virtually unrestricted as to
purpose of expenditure, which are usually revocable only for failure to comply with
prescribed compliance requirements, are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or
earlier if the susceptibl® accrual criteria are met.

The Cityreports unearned venue andleferredéinavailable revenue on its financial
statementsDeferred/umavailable revenues arise when a potential revenue does not
meet both the available criteria for recognition in the current period, under the
modified accrual basis of accountingnearned revenue arises when a revenue is
measurable but not earned under the accrual basis of accoltgeyned revenues

also arise when resources are received by the City before it has a legal claim to them
or prior to the provision of services, a$en grant monies are received prior to the
incurrence of qualifying expenditurel subsequent periods, when both revenue
recognition criteria are met, or when the City has a legal claim to the resources, the
liability and deferred inflows of resource rfainearned andleferreddnavailable
revenue are removed from the financial statements and revenue is recognized.

Cash and Investments

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash fldatws,City$ proprietary funsiconsider all
highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

Investments

Investments with a maturity of less than one year when purchasedegotiable
certificates ofdeposit and other nonparticipating investments are stated at cost or

amortized cost. Investments with a maturity greater than one year when purchased and
all investments of the pension trust funds are stated at fair.value
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOU NTING POLICIES (Continued)

e.

Cash and Investments (Continued)
Investments (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in anorderly transactiobetweemmarket participantat themeasirement date

Interfund Receivables/Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as é&therto/from other
funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) ladvances to/from other funds

(i.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund loang)l other outstanding balances
between funds are reported #sie to/from other funds.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost, which appraées market, using the first/first-out
(FIFO) method.The costs of governmental fund inventories, if any, are recorded as
expenditures when purchased.

PrepaidtemsExpenses

Payments made to venddos services that will benefit periods beyond the date of this
report are recorded as prepaid items/expeasdsare expensed when consumed.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipmentangibles and
infrastructure asets (e.g., roads, bridgeand storm sewer$, are reported in the
applicable governmental or busindgpe activities columns in the governmawitie
financial statementCapital assets are defined the Cityas assets with an initial,
individual cost of more tha®10,000and an estimated useful life in excess of one year
and any amount for landsuch assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated
historical cost if purchased or construct&bnated capital assets are recorded at
acquistion valueat the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset

or materially extend asset lives are not capitalisegrovements are capitalized and
depreciated over the remaining useful lieéshe relatedtapitalassets, as applicable.
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Capital Assets (Continued)

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed Property, plantand equipmentre depreciated using the straiglre
method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 30-50
Building improvements 10-50
Equipment 5-25
Vehicles 5-35
Infrastructure- stormsewers 80
Infrastructure sanitary sewers 80
Infrastructure- water maiis 80
Infrastructure- other 1550

Compensated Absences

It is the City$ policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation
and sick payenefits.

Vested or accumulated vacation leavel sick payre reported as an expenditure and

a fund liability of the governmental fund that will pay it once retirement or separation
has occurredvested or accumulated vacation and sick leave of gy funds and
governmental activities are recorded as an expense and liability of those funds as the
benefits accrue to employees.

Long-Term Obligations

In the governmentvide financial satementsand proprietary funds in the fund
financial statenents, longterm debtand other longerm obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, busidgps activities or
proprietary fund financial statemen&ond premiums and discounts, as wellbay
gains(losses) on refundingsre deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds.
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or disBouodt.
issuance costs are expensed in the year of issuance.
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES (Continued)

K.

Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current paeddce amount of

debt issued is reported as athirancing source$remiums received on debt issuances

are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as
other financing usedssuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are ogfed as expenditures.

FundBalancefNet Position

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds reypms$pendable fund balance

for amounts that are either not in spendable form or are legally or contractually
required to be maintained inta&estrictions of fund balance are reported for amounts
constrained by legal restrictions from outside parties for use for a specific purpose,
externally imposed by outside entities or from enabling legislation adopted by the City.
Committed fundbalance is constrained by formal actions of the City Council, which

LV FRQVLGHUHG WKH &L W\ ffMaking BKthbxitWFonidNaetionsR1 G HF L
includeordinances approved by ti@ty Council Assigned fund balance represents

amounts constrained bW KH &LW\fV LQWHQW WR XVHheNCKHP IRU D
has not adopted a formal fund balance policy; therefbeeatithority to assign fund

balance has been delegatedheCity Treasurer and Finance Directs directed by

the City Council Any residual fund balance in the General Fund and any deficit fund
balance of any other governmental fund are reported as unassigned.

The City has not yet adopted a flow of fund policy; therefore, in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 54, the default flowfohds has been applied which prescribes
that the funds with the highest level of constraint are expendediffirestricted or
unrestricted funds are available for spending, the restricted funds are spent first.
Additionally, if different levels of unigricted funds are available for spending, the
City considers committed funds to be expended first followed by assigned funds and
then unassigned funds.

In the governmenwide financial statements, restricted pesitionis legally restricted

by outside parties for a specific purpodeRQH RI WKH &L Wpdshotwdsuted UL FW H C
from enabling legislation adopted by the Cigt investment in cat assetss the book

value of capital assets less anystandingong-term debt outstanding that was issued to
construct or acquire the capital assets.
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
m. Interfund Transactions
Interfund services are accounted for as revenues, expenditures, or expenses.

Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses
initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as
expenditures/expensesin  the reimbursing fund and as reductions of
expenditures/expensesthme fund that is reimbursed.

All other interfund transactions, except interfund services and reimbursements, are
reported as transfers.

n. Use ofEstimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity WERAAP requires
management to malestimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses
during the repdimg period.Actual results could differ from those estimates.

0. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This sepiacncial statement
element,deferred outflows of resourcesepresents a consumption of assetshat
applies to a future period(s) and so widit be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expensedxpenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element,deferred inflows of resourcesgpresents an acquisition of retsetghat
applies to a future period(s) and so widit be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time.

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The Cty and pension funds categorittee fair value measurements within the fair value
hierarchy established b@ AAP. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to
measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets; Level 2puts are significant other observable inpatsgLevel 3 inputs

are significant unobservable inputs
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds, except
the pension trtY W IXQGV (DFK IXQGTV SRUWLRQ RI WKLV SRRC
VWDWHPHQWY DV 3FDVK DQG LQYHVWPHQWYV ~

,Q DGGLWLRQ FDVK DQG LQYHVWPHQWY DUH VHSDUDWHC
deposits and investments of the pension trust faneldeld separately from those of other
funds.

a. City Deposits and Investments

7KH &LW\TV LQYHVWPHQW SROLF\ DXWKRUL]JHV WKH &L
by lllinois Compiled Statute@L CS). These includeleposits/investments in insured
commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, obligations of the U.S. Treasury and

U.S. agencies, insured credit union shares, money market mutual funds with portfolios

of securities issued or guaranteed by the UnitetkStaovernmenbr agreements to
repurchase these same obligations, repurchase agreementdersharbmmercial

paper rated within the three highest classifications by at least two standard rating
services;The lllinois Fundsand the lllinois Metropolita Investment FUNMET), a
notfor-profit investment trust formed pursuant to the lllinois Municipal Code and
managed by a Board of Trustees elected from the participating members.

7KH ,OOLQRLYV 3XEOLF 7TUHDVXUHUVY , Qunds\operRte W 3RR
as a qualified external investment pool in accordance with the criteria established in
GASB Statement No. 7% ertain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants

and thus, reports all investments at amortized cost rather than matiet VYhe

investment in The lIllinois Funds by participants is also reported at amortized cost. The
lllinois Funds does not have any limitations or restrictions on participant withdrawals.

7KH ,OOLQRLY 7UHDVXUHUTV 2I1ILF HolTV¢/IXnog FONdsSHSDUDV
which may be obtained by contacting the Administrative Office at lllinois Business
Center, 400 West Monroe Street, Suite 401, Springfield, lllinois 62704.

IMET is not registered with the SEC as an investment compavgstments inMET

DUH YDOXHG DW ,0(7fV VKDUH SULFH WKH SULFH IRU
7KH &LW\YV LOQYHVWPHQW SROLF\ GRHV OLPLW LWV G}t
members of the FDIC system and are capable of posting collateral for amounts i
excess of FDIC insurance.
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

a.

City Deposits and Investments (Continued)
Deposits with Financial Institutions

It is the policy of the City to invest its funds in a manner which will provide the highest
investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash flow
demands of the City and conforming to all state and local statutes governing the
LQYHVWPHQW RI SXEOLF IXQGV XVLQJ WKH 3SUXGHQV
overall portfolb. The primary objectives of the policy are, in order of priority, safety

of principal, liquidity, and yield.

Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the event

RI EDQN IDLOXUH WKH &LWufidd 6 H 3 RN LAALW PIDA LQRWH \EM
policy requires pledging of collateral for all bank balances in excess of federal
depository msurance to be held at an independent third party institution in the name

of the City.At April 30, 2020, the City hadho uncollateralized deposits with financial
institutions.

Investments

7KH IROORZLQJ WDEOH SUHVHQWV WKH LQYHVWPHQYV
securities as of April 30, 20

Investment Maturitieg§in Yearg

Less than Greater than
Investment Type Fair Value 1 1-5 6-10 10
Repurchase agreements$ 1,203,528$ 1,203,528 $ - $ - $
TOTAL $ 1,203,528% 1,203,528 $ - $ - $

The City has the following recurring fair valueeasurements as of April 30, ZD
The repurchase agreements are valued using a matrix pricing model (Level 2 input).

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investmentn accordance with its investment policy, the Cityits its
exposure to interest rate risk by structuring the portfolio to provide liquidity for short
and longterm cash flow needs while providing a reasonable rate of return based on
the current marketnless matched to a specific cash flow, the Citysdaa directly
invest in securities maturing more than five years from the date of purchase.
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
a. City Deposits and Investments (Continued)
InvestmentgContinued)

Credit risk is the risk that thesuer of a debt security will not pay its par value upon
maturity. The City limits its exposure to credit risk by limiting investments to the types

of securities listed above; pgralifying the financial institutions, broker/dealers,
intermediaries, anddvisers with which the City will do business in accordance with

WKH &LW\fV LOQYHVWPHQW SROLF\ GLYHUVLI\LQJ WKH
of potential losses from any one type of security or from any one individual issuer will

be minimized. e securities underlying the repurchase agreements are rated AAA by
6WDQGDUG DQG 3RRUTV

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty to the investment, the City will not be able to recovevahe of its
investments that are in possession of an outside pay. OLPLW LWV H[SRVXUH
investment policy requires all security transactions that are exposed to custodial credit
risk to be processed on a delivery versus payment (DVP) bakishe underlying
investments held by an independent thpdrty custodian and evidenced by
safekeeping receipt3 he repurchase agreement held by the City is subject to custodial
credit risk as the securities are not held byralependent third pargustodian.

Concentration of credit risk is the risk that the City has a high percentage of its
investments invest in one type of investmenf. KH &LW\{V LQYHVWPHQW SR
limit the amounts that the City may invest in any one issuer.

RECEIVABLES
Property Taxes

Property taxes fo2019 attach as an eofceable lien on January 2019, on propertywalues
assessed as of the same dBtees are levied by December of the subsequent fiscal year (by
passage of a Tax Levy Ordinancé&ax bills are prepared by the County and issued on or
aboutFebruaryl, 2020and August 1, 220, and are payable in two indtaknts, on or about
Marchl, 2020 and Septembek, 2020. The County collects such taxes and remits them
periodically.Except for any early collections, the Z0thx levy collections are intended to
fund expenditures for the 20-2021 fiscal year and are not considered available for current
operations and are, therefore, shown as unavailable or deferred rasefaeril 30, 2020.

The2020tax levy, which attdwed as an enforceable lien property as of Januafy 2020,
has not been recorded as a receivable Al 30, 2020 as the tax has not yet been levied
by the City and will not be levied until Decembe2020 and, therefore, the levy isot
measurable april 30, 2020.
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year endigatil 30, 2020 was as follows:

Balances Balances
May 1 Increases Decreases April 30
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 4,341,953 $ 200,000 $ - $ 4541953
Construction in progress 279,610 145,823 106,710 318,723
Total capital assets not being depreciate! 4,621,563 345,823 106,710 4,860,676
Capital assets being depreciated
Infrastructure 36,567,281 417,203 190,111 36,794,373
Building and improvements 10,649,772 270,000 - 10919772
Equipment 2,829,257 436,813 130,303 3,135,767
Vehicles 5,495,796 874,722 871,023 5,499,495
Total capital assets being depreciated 55,542,106 1,998,738 1,191,437 56,349,407
Accumulated depreciation
Infrastructure 13,103,336 781,171 92,474 13,792,033
Buildings and improvements 3,390,992 228,296 - 3,619,288
Equipment 2,274,849 156,058 130,303 2,300,604
Vehicles 3,636,806 311,236 811,796 3,136,246
Total accumulated depreciation 22,405,983 1,475,761 1,034,573 22848,171
Total capital assets beimgpreciated, net 33,136,123 521,977 156,864 33501,236
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET $ 37,757,686 $ 867,800 $ 263,574 $ 38,361,912

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs gbtlegnmental activities as

follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets

TOTAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Balances
Decreases April 30

Balances
May 1 Increases

BUSINESSTYPE ACTIVITIES
Capital assets not being depreciated

Land $ 1,308,296 $ - - $ 1,308,296
Construction in progress 384,672 - - 384,672
Total capital assets not being depreciate! 1,692,968 - - 1,692,968
Capital assets being depreciated
Infrastructure 24,120,608 - - 24,120,608
Buildings 3,559,819 - - 3,559,819
Equipment 15,541,420 - - 15,541,420
Vehicles 1,443,062 - 29,500 1,413,562
Parking lot 2,443,850 - - 2,443,850
Total capital assets being depreciated 47,108,759 - 29,500 47,079,259
Accumulated depreciation
Infrastructure 7,804,558 315,121 - 8,119,679
Buildings 2,303,147 75,519 - 2,378,666
Equipment 9,561,258 566,928 - 10,128,186
Vehicles 935,600 89,080 29,500 995,180
Parking lot 819,464 61,652 - 881,116
Total accumulated depreciation 21,424,027 1,108,300 29,500 22,502,827
Total capital assets being depreciated, ni 25,684,732 (1,108,300) - 24,576,432
BUSINESSTYPE ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET $ 27,377,700 $ (1,108,300) $ - $ 26,269,400

5.  RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damagado
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; employee health; natural dighstesgs of
employeesand injuries tothe City§ employeesThe City participates in a risk pool, the

llinois Counties Risk Management Trust (ICRMT), for general @hiW\ ZRUNHUV
compensation and other risks. The pool is responsible for establishing the rights and
responsibilities of the member agencies and retains the risk ofTlodénit exposure to

employee health risks, the City has purchased third party intdemsurance.

For insured programs, there have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage.

Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the current year or the three prior
years.
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6. SHORT-TERM DEBT

a.

Changes irBhortTerm Liabilities

During the year ended April 30, 20 the following changes occurred in shtetm
liabilities:

Balances Balances Current
May 1 Additions Reductions April 30 Portion
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Line of credit Direct placement $ 2,158,809 $ - $ 552956 $ 1,605,853 $ 1,605,853
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES $ 2,158,809 $ - $ 552956 $ 1,605,853 $ 1,605,853
BUSINESSTYPE ACTIVITIES
Line of credit Direct placement $ 499,923 $ - $ 499,923 $ - %
TOTAL BUSINESSTYPE
ACTIVITIES $ 499,923 $ - $ 499,923 $ - $

b.

Line of Credit
Governmental Activities

On July 28, 2015, the City entered into a line of crdaéctly with a bankfo cover

any shortfalls in cash. The maximum amount that can be drawn down is $4,000,000,
and matures Jul28, 2021 The City did notdraw under the line of credit during the
year ended ApriB0, 2@0. Amounts due at April 30, 20totaled 8,605,853 Interest

is payable ab% and paid monthly.

BusinessType Activities
On October 27, 2010, the City entered into a line of codittly with a banko cover

any shortfalls in casi.he maximum amount that can be drawn dowr3i®@3000.
The line of credit matured on January 26, 2020.

7. LONG-TERM DEBT

a.

Long-Term Debt Instruments
The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and

construction of major capital facilitie&eneralbobligation bonds have been issued for
general government activitiebhe City has also issued a note payable.
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7.

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

a. LongTerm Debt Instrument&ontinued)

The businessype general obligation bonds have been issued for watks and

sewerage capital projectis addition, general obligation bonds have been issued to
refund general obligation bondSeneral obligation bonds are direct obligations and
pledge the full faith and credit of the City.

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

$9,265,000 General Obligation
Bonds, Series 2012 due in annua
installments ranging from $95,00(
to $1,140,000 with interest from 2
to 3%. The last payment is due
December 15, 2024.

$1,500,000 General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 du
in annual installments ranging frol
$100,000 to $200,000 with interes
fixed at 2.34%. The last payment
due June 15, 2024.

$6,245,000eneral Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A
due in annual installments ranging
from $250,000 to $430,000 with
interest from 2% to 4%. The last
payment is due December 15, 20

Total bonds
$350,000 Note Payable (direct
placement) dated June 24, 2019 (
in annual installmentsach
November lof $35,000 plus
interest at 1.89% through
Novemberl, 2029.

Total notes payable

Unamortized bongremium

Total deferred amounts

Fund Due
Debt Balances Reductions/ Balances Within
RetiredBy May 1 Additions  Refundings  April 30 One Year
2004A
(Debt
Service) $ 5,940,000 $ - $ 875,000% 5,065000% 890,000
1986 TIF
(Capital
Projects) 1,000,000 - 150,000 850,000 150,000
2008 TIF
(Capital
Projects) 5,720,000 - 255,000 5,465,000 265,000
12,660,000 - 1,280,000 11,380,000 1,305,000
2008 TIF
(Capital
Projects) - 350,000 - 350,000 35,000
- 350,000 - 350,000 35,000
522,730 - 64,259 458,471 -
522,730 - 64,259 458,471 -
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

a. LongTerm Debt Instruments (Continued)

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
(Continued)

Compensated absences
Net pensiodiabilities
IMRF
Police Pension
JLUHILIKWHUVY 3HC
OPEBliability

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES

Fund Due
Debt Balances Reductions/ Balances Within
Retired By May 1 Additions  Refundings  April 30 One Year
General $ 1,609,886 $ 1,180,659 $ 1,096,202% 1,694,343$% 1,148,918
General 2,147,816 - 1,336,106 811,710 -
General 22,194,055 2,874,785 - 25,068,840 -
General 7,759,848 1,087,659 - 8,847,507 -
General 5,870,172 416,698 - 6,286,870 259,393

$ 52,764,507 $ 5,909,801 $ 3,776,567 $ 54,897,741$% 2,748,311
Fund Balances Due
Debt May 1, Reductions/ Balances Within
Retired By Restated  Additions  Refundings  April 30 One Year

BUSINESSTYPE ACTIVITIES

$6,650,000 General Obligation
Bonds, Series 2015A due in annu
installments ranging from $150,0(

to $635,000 with interest from 3% Waterworks

to 4%.The last payment is due
December 15, 2036.

$2,955,000 General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 2015B ¢
in annual installments ranging frol

$10,000 to $765,000 with interest Waterworks

3%. The last payment is due
December 15, 2027.

$3,195,000 General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 201@Be
in annual installments ranging frol
$25,000 to $640,000 with interest
3%. The last payment is due
December 15, 2024.

Total bonds
Unamortized bond premium

Total deferred amounts

Compensated absences

and
Sewerage $ 6,170,000 $ - $ 160,000 $ 6,010,000$% 175,000
and
Sewerage 2,905,000 - 25,000 2,880,000 25,000
Waterworks
and
Sewerage 3,145,000 - 565,000 2,580,000 585,000
12,220,000 - 750,000 11,470,000 785,000
320,870 - 32,272 288,58 -
320,870 - 32,272 288,58 -
Waterworks
and
Sewerage 148,704 118,806 88,185 179,325 109,757
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

a. LongTerm Debt Instruments (Continued)

Fund Balances

Debt May 1, Balances Within

Retired By Restated  Additions  Reductions  April 30 One Year

BUSINESSTYPE ACTIVITIES
(Continued)

Waterworks
and
Sewerage/
Commuter
Net pension liability IMRF Parking $ 1,208,147 $ - $ 751561 $ 456,586
Waterworks
and
OPERB liability Sewerage 184,317 13,084 - 197,401 8,145
TOTAL BUSINESSTYPE
ACTIVITIES $14,082,038$ 131,890 $ 1,622,0B $12,591,910$ 902,902
b. Debt Service Requirements to Maturity
Annual debt service requirements to maturity arbews:
Governmental Activities
Fiscal General Obligation Bonds Note PayabletDirect Placement
Year Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 1,305,000 $ 377,210 $ 1,682,210 $ 35,000 $ 6,615 $ 41,615
2022 1,405,000 341,589 1,746,589 35,000 5,954 40,954
2023 1,485,000 300,374 1,785,374 35,000 5,292 40,292
2024 1,525,000 257,070 1,782,070 35,000 4,631 39,631
2025 1,585,000 212,515 1,797,515 35,000 3,969 38,969
2026 305,000 163,000 468,000 35,000 3,308 38,308
2027 315,000 150,800 465,800 35,000 2,646 37,646
2028 330,000 138,200 468,200 35,000 1,984 36,984
2029 340,000 125,000 465,000 35,000 1,323 36,323
2030 355,000 111,400 466,400 35,000 661 35,661
2031 370,000 97,200 467,200 - - -
2032 385,000 82,400 467,400 - - -
2033 400,000 67,000 467,000 - - -
2034 415,000 51,000 466,000 - - -
2035 430,000 34,400 464,400 - - -
2036 430,000 17,200 447,200 - - -
TOTAL $ 11,380,000 $ 2,526,358 $ 13,906,358 $ 350,000 $ 36,383 $ 386,383
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
b. Debt Service Requirements to Matur{ontinued)

BusinessType Activities

Fiscal General Obligation Bonds
Year Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 785000 $ 380,825 $ 1,165,825
2022 770,000 357,275 1,127,275
2023 850,000 334,175 1,184,175
2024 890,000 308,675 1,198,675
2025 925,000 281,975 1,206,975
2026 985,000 254,225 1,239,225
2027 965,000 224,675 1,189,675
2028 1,080,000 195,725 1,275,725
2029 335,000 162,537 497,537
2030 360,000 151,650 511,650
2031 390,000 139,050 529,050
2032 355,000 125,400 480,400
2033 480,000 111,200 591,200
2034 515,000 92,000 607,000
2035 555,000 71,400 626,400
2036 595,000 49,200 644,200
2037 635,000 25,400 660,400
TOTAL $ 11,47Q000 $ 3,265,387 $ 14,735,387

Cc. Legal Debt Margin
The City is a home rule municipality.

Article VII, Section 6(k) of the 1970 lllinois Constitution governs computation of the
legal margin.

3The General Assembly may limit by law the amount and require referendum
approval of debt to be incurred by home rule municipalities, payable from ad
valorem property tax receipts, only in excess of the following percentages of the
assessed value of its taxal#eU R S H U W\ « LI LWV SRSXODWLRQ 1
DQG OHVV WKDQ DQ DJJUHIJDWH RI RQH SHU
outstanding on the effective date (July 1, 1971) of this constitution or which is
WKHUHDIWHU DSSURYHG E\ UdubdeidUir Q& segonigc DO O Q
percentage amounts.

To date the General Assembly has set no limits for home rule municipalities.
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

d.

Note Payable Direct Placement

The Cityentered a loan agreement for the Fire Truck Revolving Loan Program through
the Office of the lllinois State Fire Marshal. The loan amount of $350,000 is payable
in annual installments of principal and interest adeeryears beginning Novembéy

2020.

8. INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES

a.

Advances

Advances from/to other funds at April 30,2Z80consisted of the following:

Advance Advance
Fund From To
General Fund $ - $ 1,500,000
TIF 11l Capital Projects Fund 1,500,000 -
TOTAL $ 1,500,000 $ 1,500,000

The purposes of the significaatlvancesre as follows:

X $1500,000advancedo the TIF Il Capital Projects Furfdom the General Fund,
to alleviate negative cash balances. Repayment is not expected within one year.

Transfers

Interfundtransferduring the yeaendedApril 30, 2020 consisted of the following:

Transfers Transfers
Fund In Out
General Fund $ - $ 470,094
Waterworks and Seweragend - 208,900
Nonmajor Governmentdunds 1,678,994 1,000,000
TOTAL $ 1678,994 $ 1,678,994
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8. INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES (Continued)
b.  Transfers (Continued)
Thepurposes of theignificant transfers aras follows:

X  $345,094transferred from th&eneral Fund to thBublic Improvements Fund
(nonmajor)Fund forfuture capital projects

X $125000transferred from th&eneral Fundo theTIF VII Capital Projects Fund
to offset thefund deficit

X $208,900transferred from th&Vaterworks and Seweradaund to thePublic
Improvements-und(nonmajor)for future capital projects

X $1,000,000 transferred from the 1996 TIF Bond Series Fund (nonmajor) to the
TIF VII Capital Projects Fund (manajor) for future capital projects.

C. Deficit Fund Balances

The following nonmajor governmentafunds reported deficit fund balances at

April 30, 2@0:
Deficit
Fund
Fund Balance
TIF IV Capital Projects Fund $ 117,251
TIF VI Capital Projects Fund 435,675
TIF VIl Fund 222,628

9. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
a. Litigation

The City is a defendant in various lawsu##though the outcome of these lawsuits is
not presently determinable, in the opinion of the @iagtorney, the resolution of these
matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.

b. Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and
adjustment by grantor agencies, prindipahe federal governmenfny disallowed
claims, including amounts a&ady collected, may constitute a liability of the
applicable fundsThe amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the
grantor cannot be determined at this time althahghCity expects such amounts, if
any, to be immaterial.
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10. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

a.

Plan Description

In addition to providing the pension benefits described, the City prowtiesr
postemployment health care benefits (OPEB) for retired employees through a
singleemployer defined benefit plan (the Plafhebenefits benefit levels, employee
contributions and employer contributions are governed by the City and can be
amended by the City through its personnel manual and union con&ractpt for the

implicit subsidy which is governed by the State Legislature an&.II8ePlan is not

accounted for as a trust fund, as an irrevocable trust has not been established to account

for the Plan. The Plan does not issue a separate repbine activity of thePlan is
UHSRUWHG LQ WKH &LW\JV-tyfe ddthiite3.PHQWDO DQG EXVLC

Benefits Provided

The City provides pre and po#tfedicare postretirement health insurance to retirees,

their spousesDQG GHSHQGHQWY HQUROOHG DWIoWwePH RI H
eligible for benefits, the employee must qualify for retiemt under one of theity T V

three retirement plan$he retirees pay the blended premilipon a retiree becoming

eligible for Medicare, the amount payable underGlig |V KHDOWK SODQ ZLOO |
by the amount payable under Medicare for those expehaeare covered under both.

The City pays the full premium for any member (and their eligible dependents)
covered under the Public Safety Employee Benefit Act (PSEBA).

Membership
At April 30, 2019 (most recent information availabl@gmbership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently

receivingbenefits 16
Active employees 115
TOTAL 131
Participating employers 1

Total OPEB Liability

The & L WatRNOPERB liability of $6484,271was measured as of April 30, ZBDand
was determined by an actuarial valuation aslay 1, 2019.
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10. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

e. Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs
The total OPEBiability at April 30, 2@0, as determined by an actuarial valuation as
of May 1, 20D, was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other
inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified
The totalOPEB liability was rolled forward by the actuary using updating procedures
to April 30, 2@0, including updating the discount rate at April 302@0as noted
below.
Actuarial cost method Entry-age normal
Actuarial value of assets Not applicable
Salary increases 3.25%
Discount rate 2.9%%
Healthcare cost trend rates 7.50% in 2@R0to an
ultimate trend of 4.50%
The discount rate used in the determination of the total OPEB liability is based on the
municipal bond rate. Thaunicipal bond rate was based on the index rate fge20
tax exempt general obligation municipal bonds rated AA or better at April 20, 20
Healthy retirees: SOA RRE018 Total Dataset Mortality Table fully generational
using Scale MR018. Disabled atirees: SOA RPF2018 Disabled Retiree
HeadcourWeighted Mortality fully generational with Scale MI®18.
f. Changes in the Total OPEB Liability
Total OPEB
Liability
BALANCES AT MAY 1, 2019 $ 6,054,489
Changes for the period
Service cost 371,326
Interest 238,516
Changes in assumptions 418,168
Changes in benefit terms -
Difference between expected
and actual experience (330,690
Benefit payments (267,539
Net changes 429,782
BALANCES AT APRIL 30, 2@0 $ 6484,271

For 2020 the change in assumptiomslated to the change the discount ratérom

3.79% to 2.92%
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10. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

a.

Rate Sensitivity

The following is a sensitivity analysis of the total OPEB liability to changes in the
discount rate and the healthcare cost trend rate. The table below presents the total
OPERB liability of theCity calculated using the discount rate2dd26 as well as wha

the City total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that

is 1 percentage point lowet.026) or 1 percentage point highes.926) than the
current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(1.92%) (2.926) (3.92%)
Total OPEB liability $ 6,997,001 $ 6484,271 $ 6,005,903

The table below presents the total OPEB liability of @iy calculated using the
healthcare rate of.50% as well as what th& L WtatRMOPEB liability would be if it

were calculated using a healthcare rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage
point higher than the current rate:

Current
Healthcare
1% Decrease Rate 1% Increase
Total OPEB liability $ 5,742,267 $ 6484271 $ 7,351,921

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended April 30, 2019, @dy recognized OPEB expense &08,553
At April 30, 220, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and

actual experience $ - $ 1,160,277
Changes in assumptions 947,207 -
TOTAL $ 947,207 $ 1,160,277
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10. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

h. OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to OPEB (Continued)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ending
April 30,
2021 $ (38,75)
2022 (38,752
2023 (38,752
2024 (38,752
205 (38,752
Thereafter (19,315
TOTAL $ (213,070

11. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

The City contributes to three defined benefit pension plans, the lllinois Municipal Retirement
Fund (IMRF), an agenmultiple-employer public employee retirement system; the Police
Pension Plarwhich is a singleemployer pension plan; and the Firefight#snsion Plan

which is also a singlemployer pension planThe benefits, benefit levels, employee
contributions, ad employer contributions for all three plans are governdil®$ and can

only be amended by the lllinois General Assemlligne of the pension plans issue separate
reports on the pension plartdowever, IMRF does issue a publicly available report that
includes financial statements and supplementary information for the plan as a whole, but not
for individual employersThat report can be obtained from IMRF, 2211 York Road, Suite
500, Oak Brook, lllinois 60528r at www.imrf.org.

The table below is a sunary for all defined benefipension plans as of and for the year
endedApril 30, 2Q20:

JLUHILJEK
IMRF Police Pension Pension Total
Net pension liability $ 1,268,296 $ 25,068,840 $ 8,847,507 $ 35,184,643
Deferred outflows of resources 492,060 3,834,092 1,907,262 6,233,414
Deferred inflows of resources 1,322,004 841,838 1,496,230 3,660,072
Pension expense 142,399 3,323,713 1,259,866 4,725,978
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11. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
a. PlanDescriptions

lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Plan Administration

All employees (other than those covered by the Pdidcé¢ QVLRQ 30DQ RU )LUH]
Pension Planhired in positions that meet or exceed the prescribed annual hourly
standard must be enrolled in IMRF as participating members.

The plan is accounted for on the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Employer and employee contributions are recognized
when earned in the year that thentributions are required, benefits and refunds are
recognized as an expense and liability when due and payable.

Plan Membership

At December 31, 2@ (plan measurement datéRF membership consisted of:

Inactive employees or thdieneficiaries

currently receiving benefits 66
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet

receiving benefits 28
Active employees 57
TOTAL 151

All employees (other than those covered by the Police Pension Plan) rpasitions

that meet or exceed the prescribed annual hourly standard must be enrolled in IMRF
as participating members. IMRF provides two tiers of pension benefits. Employees
hired prior to January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 1 benefits. For Tier 1 gegsp
pension benefits vest after eight years of service. Participating members who retire at
age 55 (reduced benefits) or after age 60 (full benefits) with eight years of credited
service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthiyefoinlan
amount equal to 1 2/3% of their final rate of earnings, for each year of credited service
up to 15 years, and 2% for each year thereatfter.

Employees hired on or after January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. Far Tier
employees, peitn benefits vest after ten years of service. Participating members who
retire at age 62 (reduced benefits) or after age 67 (full benefits) with ten years of
credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life,
in an amaint equal to 1 2/3% of their final rate of earnings, for each year of credited
service up to 15 years, and 2% for each year thereafter.

IMRF also provides death and disability benefits. These benefit provisions and all are
established by state statute.
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11.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan DescriptiongContinued)

lllinois Municipal Retirement Fun{Continued)

Contributions

Participating members are required to contribut®%.6f their annual salary to IMRF.

The City isrequired to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund IMRF as
specified by statute. The etager contributiorratefor thefiscalyearendedApril 30,

2020 was9.84% of covered payroll.

Actuarial Assumptions

7KH &LW\TV QHW S HReAsurRQ a®df DéceribeNgl, DY/ the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation performed as of the same date using the following actuarial
methods ad assumptions.

Actuarial valuation date December 31, 2@
Actuarial cost method Entry-age normal
Assumptions
Inflation 2.50%
Salary increases 3.35% t01425%
Interest rate 7.25%
Asset valuation method Fair Value

For nondisabled retirees, an IMRF specific mortality table was used with fully
generational projean scale MP2017 (base year 2@). ThelMRF specific rates were
developed from the RR014 Blue Collar Health Annuitant Mortality Table with
adjustments to matccurrent IMRF experience. For disabled retirees, an IMRF
specific mortality table was used with fully generational progecscale MP2017
(base year 2@). ThelMRF specific rates were developed from the BR4 Disabled
Retirees Mortality Table applygn the same adjustment that were applied for
nondisabled lives. For active members, an IMRF specific mortality table was used
with fully generational projeatn scale MP2017 (base year 2@). TheIMRF specific
rates were developed from the 2814 EmployedMortality Table with adjustments

to match current IMRF experience.
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11.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

lllinois Municipal Retirement FunfContinued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate usedneeasure the total pension liability was 7.25%. The projection

of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that member contributions

will be made at the current contribution rate and that the City contributions will be

made at rates equal teetdifference between actuarially determined contribution rates

DQG WKH PHPEHU UDWH %DVHG RQ WKRVH DVVXPSWLF
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current

plan members. Therefer the longterm expected rate of return on pension plan
investments of 7.25% was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability. The discount rate used to measure the total
pension liability at December 3102 was 725%.

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

(@)

(b) (a)- (b)

Total Plan Net
Pension Fiduciary Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
BALANCES AT
JANUARY 1, 2019 22,591,934 $ 19,235,971 $ 3,355,963
Changes for thperiod
Service cost 452,781 - 452,781
Interest 1,617,984 - 1,617,984
Difference between expected
andactual experience 59,255 - 59,255
Changes in assumptions - - -
Employer contributions - 403,012 (403,012
Employee contributions - 213,083 (213,083
Net investment income - 3,552,623 (3,552,623)
Benefit payments and refunds (1,002,603 (1,002,603 -
Other (net transfer) - 48,969 (48,969
Net changes 1,127,417 3,215,084 (2,087,667)
BALANCES AT
DECEMBER 31, 202 23,719,351 $ 22451055 $ 1,268,296
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11. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
a. Plan Descriptions (Continued)

lllinois Municipal Retirement Fun{Continued)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources

For the year endefipril 30, 20, the City recognized pension expense bf2399

At April 30, 20, the City reported deferred outflows msources and deferred
inflows of resources related to IMRF from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Difference between expected and actual experier $ 43,638 $ 204,420

Changes irassumption 309,204 195,825
Net difference between projected and actual

earningon pension plan investments - 921,759
Employer contributions after the measurement de 139,218 -
TOTAL $ 492,060 $ 1,322,004

$139,218eported as deferred outflows of resources relat@egnsions resulting from

the Qty T dontributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability the year enidg April 30, 2@1. Other anounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
IMRF will be recognized in pension expense for the City as follows:

FiscalYear
Ending
April 30,
2021 $ (421,590)
2022 (207,967
2023 94,446
2024 (434,051)
205 -
TOTAL $ (969,162)
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11. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
a. Plan Descriptions (Continued)

lllinois Municipal Retirement Fun{Continued)

Discount Rate Sensitivity

The following is a sensitivanalysis of the net pension liabili(gsset}to changes in

the discount rate. The table below presents the pension ligfaitiset)of the City

calculated using the discount rate %Y. DV ZHOO DV ZKDW WKH &LW\T
liability (assetwould beif it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage

point lower 6.25%) or 1 percentage point higherZB%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.25%) (7.25%) (8.25%)

Net pension liability(asset) $ 4,351,369 $ 1,268,296 $(1,272,288)

Police Pension Plan

Plan Administration

Police sworn personnel are covered by the Police Pension Plan which is a defined
benefit singleemployer pension plaAlthough this is a singkemployer pension plan,
thedefined benefits and employee and employer contributions levels are governed by
lllinois Compiled Statutes (Chapt4® - Article 5/3) and may be amended only by the
lllinois legislature.The City accourst for the Police Pension Plan as a pension trust
fund.

Plan Membership

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries

currentlyreceiving benefits 39
Inactive plan members entitled to but not

receiving benefits 4
Active plan members 41
TOTAL 84
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11.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension PlafContinued)

Benefits Provided

The Police Pension Plan provides retirement benefits through two tiers of benefits as
well asdeath and disability benefitBenefits and refunds of the plan are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the terms of thepml employees

(those hired prior to Januaty 2011) attaining the age of 50 or older with 20 or more
years ofcreditable service are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit equal to
onehalf of the salary attached to the rank held on the last day of service, or for one
year prior to the last day, whichever is greatdére annual benefit shall be increased

by 2.9% of such salary for each additional year of service over 20 years up to 30
years to a maximum of 75% of such sald&yployees with at least eight years but

less than 20 years of credited service may retire at or after age 60 and receive a reduced
benefit. The monthly benefit of a police officer who retired with 20 or more years of
service after January 1, 1977 shall be increased annually, following the first
anniversary date of retirement and be paid upon reaching the age of at least 55 years,
by 3% of theoriginal pension and 3% compounded annually thereafter.

Tier 2 employees (those hired on or after January 1, 2011) attaining the age of 55 or
older withten or more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual
retirement benefit equdb the greater of the average monthly salary obtaining by
dividing the total salary during the 48 consecutive months of service within the last of
60 months in which the total salary was the highest by the number of months in that
period; or theaverage mothly salary obtained by dividing the total salary of the police
officer during the 96 consecutive months of service within the last 120 months of
service in which the total salary was the highest by the number of months of service
in that periodPoliceol ILFHUVY VDODU\ IRU SHQVLRQ SXUSRVHV
the lesser of ¥ of the annual change in the Consumer Price Index or 3% compounded.
The annual benefit shall be increased b2 %f such salary for each additional year

of service over 20 yas up to 30 years to a maximum of 75% of such salary.

Employees with at leasényears may retire at or after age 50 and receive a reduced
benefit (i.e, 2% for each month under 59jhe monthly benefit of a Tier 2 police
officer shall beincreased annually at age 60 on the Janu@daftér the police officer
retires, or the first anniversary of the pension starting date, whichever is later.
Noncompounding increases occur annually, each January ther&hftencrease is

the lesser of 3%r % of the change in the Consumer Price Index for the proceeding
calendar year.
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11.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension PlafContinued)

Contributions

Employees are required by ILCSdontribute 9.91% of their base salary to the Police

Pension Planlf an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20 years of
service, accumulated employee contributions may be refunded without accumulated
interest.The City is required to contrilel the remaining amounts necessary to finance

the plan and the administrative costs as actuarially determined by an enrolled actuary.
Effective January 1, 2011, the City has until the year 2040 to fund 90% of the past
service cost for the Police PensioraRIHowever, the City is funding 100% of the

past service costs by 203 the year ended Aprd0, 2@0, thH &LW\V FRQWULE:
wasb4.24% of covered payroll.

Investment Policy

7KH 3ROLFH 3H@¥ERONYeSENPolicy authorizes the Fund to invest

in all investments allowed by ILCS. These include deposits/investments in insured
commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, intdresting obligations of the
U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies, intelesaring bonds of the State of lllinois or any
county, township, or municipal corporation of the State of Illinoigporate bonds,
money market mutual funds whose investments consist of obligations of the U.S.
Treasury or U.S. agencies, separate acsonn@naged by life insurance companies,
mutual funds, common and preferred stoltke Illinois Funds and IMET.

It is the policy of the Fund to invest its funds in a manner which will provide the
highest investment return with the maximum security whiteting the cash flow

demands of the Fund and conforming to all state and local statutes governing the
LQYHVWPHQW RI SXEOLF IXQGV XVLQJ WKH 3SUXGHQV
overall portfolio. The primary objectives of the policy are, in ordesradrity, safety

of principal, risk aversion, rate of return, and liquidity.

7KH )XQGYfV WDUJHW DVVHW DOORF hodifi@vndtQe WKH LQ
year ended April 30, ZD.
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11. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
a. PlanDescriptions (Continued)

Police Pension PlafContinued)

Investment PolicyContinued)

7KH )XQGYV LQYHVWPHQW SROLF\ LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZL
target allocation across asset classes:

Long-Term

Expected Real

Asset Class Target Rate of Return
U.S. Large Cap Equity 16.00% 4.9%%
U.S. Small/Mid Cap Equity 12.00% 5.4%%
International Developed Markets Equity 12.00% 7.4%%
Emerging Markets Equity 9.00% 8.4%%
US Equity- Master Limited Partnerships 2.00% 7.8%%
US Equity- Public Real Estate 10.00% 5.8®%
U.S. Corporate High Yield Fixed Income 2.00% 2.8%0
Hedge Funds 2.00% 4.12%
U.S. Fixed Income 32.00% 0.168%
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3.00% 0.90%

Securities in any one company should not exceed 5% of the totalMuedongterm
expected real rates of return are net df.@B8% factor for inflation and investment
expense. ILCS IIimg WKH )XQGTV L @yuiaswatdaDfwdks, lal variable
anruities to 65%.

ThelongWHUP H[SHFWHG UDWH RI UHWXUQ RQ WKH )XQGT\
DQ DVVHW DOORFDWLRQ VW X GtnéhRnatagdmahticengtitaiy K H ) X ¢
in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of reairof(pension

plan investment expense and inflation) were developed for each major assets class.
These ranges were combined to produce the-temg expected rate of return by

weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset aflocati
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates or arithmetic real rates of
UHWXUQ H[FOXGLQJ LQIODWLRQ IRU HDFK PDMRU DVVH
allocation as oApril 30, 20 are listed in the table above.
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11.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension PlafContinued)

Investmen€oncentrations

There are no significant investments (other thaned State§Sovernment guaranteed
REOLJDWLRQV LQ DQ\ RQH RUJDQL]DWLRQ WKDW UH
investments

InvestmenRate of Return

For theyear ended April 30, ZD, the annual moneweighted rate of return on
pension plan investments, netpeEnsion plan investment expense, \{&a83%). The
moneyweighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment
expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.

Deposits with Financial Institutions

Custodialcredit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the event

Rl EDQN IDLOXUH WKH )XQGYfVY GHSRVLWYV PD\ QRW EH
policy requires pledging of collateral for all bank balances in excess of federal
depo#ory insurance of at least 110% of the market value of deposits.

Interest Rate Risk

7KH IROORZLQJ WDEOH SUHVHQWYV WKH LQYHVWPHQW
securities as of April 30, 20:

Investment Maturitiegin Yearg

Less than Greater than
Investment Type Fair Value 1 1-5 6-10 10
U.S. Treasury obligations $ 6,132,438 $ 489,058 $ 3,239,503 $ 2,403,877 $ -
U.S. agency obligations 272,528 102 - 5,213 267,213
Corporate bonds 3,675,238 240,609 1,146,195 1,451,536 836,898
TOTAL $10,080,204 $ 729,769 $ 4,385,698 $ 3,860,626 $ 1,104,111

The Police PensiorPlan has the following recurring fair valueeasurements as of
April 30, 2Q20: The money market mutual fundeguity mutual fundsand common
stock are valued using quoted prices in active markets for identicaisadssvell
inputs) The U.S. Treasury obligationsl).S. agency obligationgand the corporate
bonds are valued usimguoted matrix pricing models ével 2 inputs)
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11.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension PlafContinued)

Interest Rate Ris{Continued)

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adveffsty the fair
value of an investment. In accordance with its investment policy, the Fund limits its
exposure to interest rate risk by structuring the portfolio to provide liquidity for all
reasonably anticipated operating requirements while providireasonable rate of
return based on the current market.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of a debt security will not pay its par value upon
maturity. The Fund limits its exposure to credit risk by primarily investing U.S.
Treasury or U.S. agency obligatioasd requiring that corporate bonds be rated as
investment grade by one of the two largest rating services at the time of pufidiease

U.S. agency obligations are ratARdA by MoodyfV 7KH FRUSRUDWH ERQG
from Baa3to Aaaby Moody Y &dBBB-to AA+ E\ 6 WDQGDUG DQG 3RRUTYV

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty to the investment, the Fund will not be able to recoverthe of its
investments that are in possession of an outside party.

7R OLPLW LWV H[SRVXUH WKH )XQGTV LQYHVWPHQW S
that are exposed to custodial credit risk to be processed on a delivery versus payment
(DVP) bass with the underlying investments held by a third party custodian and
evidenced by safekeeping receipts. The money market mutual funds are not subject to
custodial credit risk.

Concentration of credit risk is the risk that the Fund has a high perceritaige

investments invested in one type of investment. The Fund does not have a formal
written policy on the risk of loss attributed to the investments of a single issuer.
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11.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

PlanDescriptions (Continued)

Police Pension PlafContinued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability above was determined by an actuarial valuation performed
as of April 30, 2@0 using the following actuarial methods and assumptions.

Actuarialvaluation date April 30, 2@0
Actuarialcost method Entry-age normal
Assumptions
Inflation 2.50%
Salaryincreases 4.50%
Interestrate 7.00%

3.00% Tier 1
Cost ofliving adjustments 1.2%% Tier 2

Assetvaluation method Fair Value

For healthy, rortality rates were badeon the RFP2014 Mortality Table with a blue

collar adjustment, with improvement scal#-2019 applied to 2Q0. For disabled,
mortality rates were based on 115% of the heattbytality table with improvement

scale MP2016 applied to 2@0. The actuarial assumptions used in Apeil 30, 2019
valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study conducted by the
lllinois Department of Insurance dat€attober 5, 201 reflecting experience for the
years 2011 2016

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7%. The projection

of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that member contributions

will be made athe current contribution rate and thihe City contributions will be

made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates
DQRG WKH PHPEHU UDWH %DVHG RQ WKRVH DVVXPSWL
was projecteda be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current

plan members. Therefore, the leteym expected rate of return on pension plan
investments of 7% was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pensidiability .
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11. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
a. Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension PlafContinued)

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

(a) (b) (a)- (b)
Total Plan Net
Pension Fiduciary Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
BALANCES AT
MAY 1, 2019 $ 51,344,697 $ 29,150642 $ 22,194,055
Changes for thperiod
Servicecost 769,654 - 769,654
Interest 3,559,839 - 3,559,839
Changes of benefit terms 149,996 - 149,996
Differencebetween expected
andactual experience 373,051 - 373,051
Changes irassumptions (43,285) - (43,285)
Employercontributions - 2,140,831 (2,140,83)
Employeecontributions - 395,704 (395,703
Netinvestment income - (554,850) 554,850
Benefitpayments and refunds (2,519,029 (2,519,028 -
Administrativeexpense - (47,215 47,215
Netchanges 2,290,227 (584,558) 2,874,785
BALANCES AT
APRIL 30, 220 $ 53,634,924 $ 28566084 $ 25,068,840

For 202Qthe change in assumptions related to change in mortality t&bksddition,
the changes of benefit terms were due to changes in plan beeefiied under PA

101-0610 (SB 1300).
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11. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
a. Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension PlafContinued)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources

For the year ended April 30, 20, the City recognized pension expense3)883,713

At April 30, 220, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to the Police PenBilamfrom the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differencebetween expected amadtual experience $ 439,575 $ 682,302

Changes imssumption 659,248 159,536
Netdifference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments 2,735,269 -
TOTAL $ 3,834,092 $ 841,838

Amounts reported adeferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to police pension will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ending
April 30,
2021 $ 747,976
2022 863,230
2023 774,720
2024 606,328
2025 -
Thereafter -
TOTAL $ 2,992,254
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11. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
a. Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension PlafContinued)

Discount Rate Sensitivity

The following is a sensitive analysis of the net pendgialility to changes in the

discount rate. The table below presents the net pension liability of the City calculated
XVLQJ WKH GLVFRXQW UDWH RI DV ZHOO DV ZKDW Wk
if it were calculated using a discount rate thal ipercentage point lower & or

1 percentage point higher @) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6%) (7%) (8%)
Net pension liability $ 32,198,266 $ 25,068,840 $ 19,188,798

JLUHILIKWHPIA SHQVLRQ

Plan Administration

Fire sworn personnel are covered by the FirefigHfeemsion Plan which is a defined
benefit singleemployer pension plaAlthough this is a singkemployer pension plan,
the defined benefits as well as the employee eangloyer contributions levels are
mandated by lllinois Compiled Statutes (Chaptér- Article 5/4) andmay be
amended only by the lllinois legislaturéhe City accounts for the Firefightefs
Pension Plan as a pension trust fund.

Plan Membership
At April 30, 2020, the Firefighter§Pension Plan membership consisted of:

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries

currently receiving benefits 24
Inactive plan members entitled to but not

receiving benefits 2
Active plan members 26
TOTAL 52
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11.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

JLUHILIKWHUV{Cé&itimed) RQ 30DQ

Benefits Provided

7KH )LUHILIJKWHUVY 3HQVLRQ 30DQ SURYLGHV UHWLU
benefits as well as death and disability beneiemefits and refunds of the plan are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of th&iptah.
employees (those hired prior to January 1, 2011) attaining the age of 50 awitder

20 or more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual retirement
benefit equal to onbalf of the salary attached to the rank held at the date of retirement.
The annual benefit shall be increased bY2®f such salary for each dtidnal year

of service over 20 years up to 30 years to a maximum of 75% of such salary.
Employees with at leastnyears but less than 20 years of credited service may retire
at or after age 60 and receive a reduced beréfe. monthly benefit of a coved
employee who retired with 20 or more years of service after January 1, 1977 shall be
increased annually, following the first anniversary date of retirement and be paid upon
reaching the age of at least 55 years, by 3% of the original pension and 3%
compounded annually thereafter.

Tier 2 employees (those hired on or after January 1, 2011) attaining the age of 55 or
older withten or more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual
retirement benefit equal to tlgreater of the average monthly salary obtaining by
dividing the total salary during the 48 consecutive months of service within the last of
60 months inwhich the total salary was the highest by the number of months in that
period; or theaverage monthly salary obtained by dividing the total salary of the
firefighter during the 96 consecutive months of service within the last 120 months of
service in whichthe total salary was the highest by the number of months of service
inthat period) LUHILJKWHUVY VDODU\ IRU SHQVLRQ SXUSRVH’
lesser of %2 of the annual change in the Consumer Price Index or 3% compdineded.
annual benefishall be increased by 2% of such salary for each additional year of
service over 20 years up to 30 years to a maximum of 75% of such Ealgipyees

with at leastenyears may retire at or after age 50 and receive a reduced benefit (i.e.
%% for eab month under 55)The monthly benefit of a Tier 2 firefighter shall be
increased annually at age 60 on the Janudaftér the firefighter retires, or the first
anniversary of the pension starting date, whichever is I&encompounding
increases occuannually, each January thereaffBne increase is the lesser of 3% or

% of the change in the Consumer Price Index for the proceeding calendar year.
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

JLUHILIKWHUV{Cé&itimed) RQ 30DQ

Contributions

Covered employees are required to contribute 9.455% of their base salary to the
JLUHILJKWHUV f 3t+e@pdyeeQea¥ € Ddyered employment with less than

20 years of service, accumulatephployee contributions may be refunded without
accumulated interesthe City is required to finance the plan and the administrative

costs as actuarially determined by an enrolled actidfgctive January 1, 2011, the

City has until the year 2040tofund RI WKH SDVW VHUYLFHV FRVWYV |
Pension PlanHowever, the City is funding 100% of the past service costs by 2033.

For the year ended April 30,20 WKH &LW\TV FRQY2UA EXNNWEIRQ ZDV
payroll.

Investment Policy

The )LUHILJKWHUVY (&d RuMd)iRve€stmE ety authorizes the Fund to
invest in all investments allowed by ILCS. These include deposits/investments in
insured commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, indeeasing obligations

of the US. Treasury and U.S. agencies, intebestring bonds of the State of Illinois

or any county, township, or municipal corporation of the State of lllimaigorate
bonds,money market mutual funds whose investmeatssist of obligations of the

U.S. Treaury or U.S. agencies, separate accounts managed by life insurance
companies, mutual funds, common and preferred stded)linois Funds and IMET.

It is the policy of the Fund to invest its funds in a manner which will provide the
highest investmenteturn with the maximum security while meeting the cash flow
demands of the Fund and conforming to all state and local statutes governing the
LQYHVWPHQW RI SXEOLF IXQGV XVLQJ WKH 3SUXGHQV
overall portfolio. The primary obgtives of the policy are, in order of priority, safety

of principal, risk aversion, rate of return, and liquidity.

There were no changes to the investment policy duringaaeended April 30, ZD.
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11.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

JLUHILIKWHUV{Cé&itimed) RQ 30DQ

Investment PolicyContinued)

7KH )XQGYV LQYHVWPHQW SROLF\ LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZL
target allocation across asset classes:

Long-Term
Expected Real
Asset Class Target Rate of Return
Fixed Income 45.00% 1.20%
Large Cap Domestic Equity 38.9% 6.20%
Small Cap Domestic Equity 11.00% 8.00%
International Equity 5.50% 6.70%

Securities in any one company should not exceed 5% of the totalMuedongterm
expected real rates of return are net &69% factor for inflation and investment
expense. ILCS Img WKH )XQG TV L @yuiaswatdaDfwdks, lail variable
anruities to 65%.

ThelongWHUP H[SHFWHG UDWH RI UHWXUQ RQ WKH )XQGT\
Morningstar Analyst Research Cent&tocks, Bonds, Bills and Inflatidbatafor the

period of December 31, 1925 through December 319.Z0le longterm expected

rate of return on the Interiand Equity class was based on the MCSI EAFE index

for the period of December 31, @®through December 31, 201The longterm

expected rates of return are the best estimate ranges of expected future reél rates o
return (net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) for each major assets
class. Best estimates or geometric real rates of return excluding inflation for each
PDMRU DVVHW FODVV LQFOXGHG LQ WKH )XeoargV WDUJ}
listed in the table above.

InvestmenConcentrations
There are no significant investments (other thaited State§overnment guaranteed

REOLJDWLRQV LQ DQ\ RQH RUJDQL]DWLRQ WKDW UH
investments
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11.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
a. Plan Descriptions (Continued)

JLUHILIKWHUV{Cé&itimed) RQ 30DQ

InvestmenRateof Return

For the year ended April 30, 20 the annual moneweighted rate of return on
pension plan investments, net of pension plan investment expensg,7&4s The
moneyweighted rate of return expresses investment performance, imetesfment
expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.

Deposits with Financial Institutions
Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the event
RI EDQN IDLOXUH WKH )X@GYWNWHEBRVE WAR LD QFRK\W ) X C

policy requires pledging of collateral for all bank balances in excess of federal
depository insurance.

Interest Rate Risk

7KH IROORZLQJ WDEOH SUHVHQWY WKH LQYHVWPHQW
securites as of April 30, 220:

Investment Maturitieg§in Yearg

Less than Greater than
Investment Type Fair Value 1 1-5 6-10 10
U.S. Treasury obligations $ 1,307,414 $ 201,703 $ 552,367 $ 553,344 $ -
U.S. agency obligations 6,628,831 - 1,391,370 5,062,883 174,578
State and local obligations 1,185,9% 276,48 408,276 501,316 -
Corporate bonds 1,550,660 - 789,224 761,436
TOTAL $10,67290 $ 478,1® $ 3,141,237 $ 6,878,979 $ 174,578

The ) LUHILJKW H®RIAntha3 th&fvlIovRreg recurring fair valueasurements as
of April 30, 2@®0: Themoney market mutual funds aaduity mutual fundsre valued
using quoted prices in active markets for identicaltasdesvel 1 inputs)The U.S.
Treasury obligationsy).S. agency obligationstate and local obligationsnd the
corporate bondare valued using quoted matrix pricing modélevel 2 inputs)
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

PlanDescriptions (Continued)

JLUHILIKWHUV{Cé&itimed) RQ 30DQ

Interest Rate Ris{Continued)

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. In accordance with its investmelntyp the Fund limits its
exposure to interest rate risk by structuring the portfolio to provide liquidity for all
reasonably anticipated operating requirements while providing a reasonable rate of
return based on the current market.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of a debt security will not pay its par value upon
maturity. The Fund limits its exposure to credit risk by primarily investing U.S.
Treasury or U.S. agency obligatiomsd requiring thatorporate bonds arstate ad

local obligations be rated as investment grade by one of the two largest rating services

at the time of purchas@he U.S. agency obligations are rattdd D E\ ORRG\TV DQC
$$3 E\ 6WDQGDUG DQG 3RRUTV 7KH VWBEMoHERAKYG ORFD(
ORRG\TVAAD QAR $$$ E\ 6 WD Q G DThé civyipi@te bBRriddJAfd/ rated

Baalto AaaE\ ORRG\BBBB @R $$$ E\ 6WDQGDUG DQG 3RRUTV

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failuhe of t
counterparty to the investment, the Fund will not be able to recover the value of its
investments that are in possession of an outside party.

7R OLPLW LWV H[SRVXUH WKH )XQGTV LQYHVWPHQW S
that are exposed tustodial credit risk to be processed on a delivery versus payment

(DVP) basis with the underlying investments held by a third party custodian and
evidenced by safekeeping receipts. The money market mutual funds are not subject to
custodial credit risk.

Concentration of credit risk is the risk that the Fund has a high percentage of its

investments invested in one type of investment. The Fund does not have a formal
written policy on the risk of loss attributed to the investments of a single issuer.
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a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

JLUHILIJIKWHUYV {Ca&HMadLRQ 30DQ

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability above was determined by an actuarial valuation performed
as of April 30, 2@0 using the following actuarial methods and assumptions.

Actuarialvaluation date April 30, 2@0
Actuarialcost method Entry-age normal
Assumptions
Inflation 2.50%
Salaryincreases 4.50%
Interestrate 7.00%
Cost ofliving adjustments 3.00% Tier 1
1.2%% Tier 2
Assetvaluation method Fair Value

For healthy, mortality rates were based on the2ZRP4 Mortality Table with dlue

collar adjustmentprojected to 2020 usingcale MP2019. For disabledmortality

rates were based on 115% of the healthy mortality tpbdgected to 2020 usirsgale
MP-2019. The actuarial assumptions used in the April 3@02&luation were based

on the results of an actuarial experience study conducted by the Illinois Department
of Insurance dated October 5, 2017 reflecting experience for the years ZulA.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measurettital pension liability was 7%. The projection

of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that member contributions
will be made at the cuent contribution rate and thatyccontributions will be made

at rates equal to the difference betwectuarially determined contribution rates and
WKH PHPEHU UDWH %DVHG RQ WKRVH DVVXPSWLRQV
projected to be available to make all projected future bengfih@ats of current plan
members. Therefore, the longerm eyected rate of return on pension plan
investments of 7% was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.
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11. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a. Plan Descriptions (Continued)

)L U H I L J EnithPMICantinued)

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

BALANCES AT
MAY 1, 2019

Changes for thperiod
Servicecost
Interest
Changes of benefit terms
Differencebetween expected
andactual experience
Changes irassumptions
Employercontributions
Employeecontributions
Netinvestment income
Benefitpayments and refunds
Administrativeexpense

Netchanges

BALANCES AT
APRIL 30, 2@0

(&) (b) (a)- (b)
Total Plan Net
Pension Fiduciary Pension
Liability Net Position Liability

$ 31,260,399 $ 23,500,551 $ 7,759,848

487,878 - 487,878
2,167,723 - 2,167,723
154,079 - 154,079
122,121 - 122,121
(19,055) - (19,055)
- 992,183 (992,183
- 222,259 (222,259
- 650,176 (650,176
(1,561,603 (1,561,603 -
- (39,53 39,531
1,351,143 263,484 1,087,659

$ 32,611,542 $ 23,764,035 $ 8,847,507

For 202Qthe change in assumptions related to change in mortality t&bksddition,

the changes of benefit terms were due to changes in plan benefits required under PA

101-0610 (SB 1300).
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

11. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
a. Plan DescriptionsGontinued)

JLUHILIKWHUV{Cé&itimed) RQ 30DQ

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources

For the year ended April 30, 20, the City recognized pension expensel)2$9,866

At April 30, 220, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to thel U H | L JReWsidriPMy from the following
sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differencebetweerexpected and actual experienc $ 444,089 $ 1,131,018

Changes irassumption 703,316 365,212
Netdifference between projected and actual

earningson pension plan investments 759,857 -
TOTAL $ 1,907,262 $ 1,496,230

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related tol L U H | L p&A&IdiMdINO® recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ending
April 30,
2021 $ 22,028
2022 126,430
2023 124,973
2024 167,603
2025 (28,658)
Thereafter (1,344)
TOTAL $ 411,032
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

11. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a. Plan Descriptions (Continued)

JLUHILIKWHUV{Cé&itimed) RQ 30DQ

Discount Rate Sensitivity

The following is a sensitive analysis of the net pension liability to changes in the
discount rate. The table below presents the net pension liability of the City calculated
XVLQJ WKH GLVFRXQW UDWH RI DV ZHOO DVeZKDW Wik

if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lo¥gro(6
1 percentage point higher (8%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6%) (7%0) (8%)
Net pension liability $ 13,301,961 $ 8,847,507 $ 5,187,546
b.  Schedule ofiduciaryNet Position
Police Firefightersy
Pension Pension Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
U.S. Government and.S.

$ 1,552,892 $ 15,296 $ 1,568,188

agencyobligations 6,404,966 7,936,245 14,341,211
State and local obligations - 1,185,995 1,185,995
Corporate bonds 3,675,238 1,550,660 5,225,898
Money market mutual funds 1,019,477 44,848 1,064,325
Equity mutual funds 5747,482 12,952,548 18,700,030
Common stock 10,085,322 - 10,085,322

Receivables
Accrued interest 57,119 80,496 137,615
Prepaid expenses 27,075 3,539 30,614
Total assets 28,569,571 23,769,627 52,339,198
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 3,485 5,592 9,077
Total liabilities 3,485 5,592 9,077

NET POSITIONRESTRICTED
FOR PENSIONS

$ 28,566,086 $ 23,764,035 $ 52,330,121
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

11. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

c.  Schedule oChangesn FiduciaryNet Position

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer
Employee
Total contributions

INVESTMENT INCOME
Netappreciationon fair
valueof investments
Interest earned
Less investment expense
Net investment income
Total additions
DEDUCTIONS
Contractual service
Pension benefits and refunds
Total deductions
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITIONRESTRICTED
FORPENSIONs

May 1

April 30

- 66 -

Police Firefightersf
Pension Pension Total
$ 2,140,831 $ 992,183 $ 3,133,014
395,704 222,259 617,963
2,536,535 1,214,442 3,750,977
(1,187,287) 24,780 (1,162,507)
798,936 683,331 1,482,267
(166,499 (57,935 (224,439
(554,850) 650,176 95,326
1,981,685 1,864,618 3,846,303
47,215 39,531 86,746
2,519,028 1,561,603 4,080,631
2,566,243 1,601,134 4,167,377
(584,558) 263,484 (321,074)
29,150,62 23,500,551 52,651,193

$ 28,566,08 $ 23,764,035 $ 52,330,119




CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12.

13.

JOINT VENTURE
South Suburban Land Bank and Development Authority

The City is a member oSouth Suburban Land Bank aridevelopment Authority
(SSLBDA), which consists ofhreemunicipalities.SSLBDA is aseparate legal entity and
public body corporatestablished pursuant to the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act of the
State of Illinois.SSLBDA is aregional economic devgbment tool for municipalities with
limited manpower and financial resources to legally hold, manage, and develop tax or bank
foreclosed properties and put them back into productive use

SSLBDA is governed by the AuthorityBoard of Directors which consistof Local
Government Directors, Expert Directors, and Ex Officio Directtuscal Gorernment
Directors consist of an appointedpresentativdrom each member municipality. Each
commissioner has an equal vote. The officerS®EBDA areelected by a majority vote of

the Authority Boardof Directors The Authority Boardof Directorsadopts bylaws, rules
andprocedures, adopt amendments to thergovernmental Agreement, initial &tes of
incorporation or the byaws elect officers, approve policies to implement deyday
operations, adopt personnel policies and procedures, adopt policies and procedures for
contracting and procurement, progitbr an annual audit, adopt an investment policy and
establish banking arrangements, and take such other actions and steps as shall be necessary
or advisable.

Complete financial statements can be obtained fronSthegh Suburban Land Bank and
Developmat Authority, 3700 W. 18%' St., Suite B100, Hazel Creslinois 60429

The City reclaimedtwo properteswith SSLBDA duringthe year endedpril 30, 2020. The
City has an equity interest BSLBDA in the amount of $99900as ofApril 30, 2Q20.

ECONOMIC INCENTIVES /TAX ABATEMENTS

The City rebates or abates certain taxes to recruit, retain, or improve local business facilities

or their supporting public infrastructure under certain circumstances. The terms of these
arrangements are specified withiritten agreements with the businesses concefires

&LW\TY DIJUHHPHQWY ZLWK GHYHORSHUY. DUH DXWKRUL]HC

The City hasentered intcan agreement with a develogerredevelop a property within a
portion of the TIF #4 Area, to constit a store and related improvememsorder to help
finance the redevelopment, the City has agte@ay100% ofthe TIF incremental property
taxes as well as 100% of the local sales tax revenue generated from sales sourced to the
propertywithin the term of the agreement, and not to exceed $1,87I)IRE increment
funding and sales tax incentives. The term of tigge@ment is effective until the
redevelopment project area is no longer in effect or when the final payment of incremental
property taxes are paid to the develg@erd amounts due are paid annudilye total rebates
incurred dumg the year ended April 30, 20was $#10,211 The totalcumulativerebates
incurredas of April 30, 2@0was £76,260 A liability of $276,260has leen recorded as of

April 30, 2@0and is included in accounts payable.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

13.

ECONOMIC INCENTIVES/TAX ABATEMENTS (Continued)

From timeto-time, theCity has authorized special property tax incentive classifications that
have been authorized by the Cook County Board for certain commercial and industrial
properties (Chapter 74 Taxation, Article 1l Real Property Taxation, Division 2, Classification
System fo Assessment Sectiofigd-63 and 7471 of the Cook County Code). The purpose

of these special Cook County property tax incentives (generally known as Class 6, 7, and 8
incentives) is to encourage commercial and industrial development, rehabilitatiortinfexis
facilities, and reutilization of unoccupied and abandoned buildings. The goal of these special
incentive classifications is to stimulate expansion and retention of existing commercial and
industrial activities and to increase employment opportunities.

The City has approved these special incentive requests to businesses that, as a result, have
occupied vacant structures, constructed new buildings, or expanded existing facilities. It is
QRW XQFRPPRQ IRU WKH LPSURYHG SUR®HIUBYUakzed WR LQF
Assessed Value (EAV) and produce greater property tax revenue potential @atythad

the other overlapping taxing districts than would have resulted if the development had not
occurred.

Under these special incentive classificatianglifying property is eligible to be assessed at

10% of market value for a tgrear period, versus the normal assessment rate of 25% which
would otherwise apply. These special incentive classifications authorize the same level of
assessment (10%) for thaalifying property as is normally afforded to residential properties

in Cook County and results in significant tax savings for the businesses benefiting from the
incentive. The structure of these Cook County incentive programs include provision for a
two-\HDU 23UDPS XS° SHULRG DViyvand/200h@ y2at2) to moderatd D U

the transition from the special low assessment rate to the normal assessment rate, should the
incentive not to be renewed.

These special incentives are not direct tax abatements where a portion of the tax levy
extended by th€ity is waived foregone, or reduced. Instead, these special incentives affect

the determination of the overall EAV applicable to the property and taxing districts before
WKH HIWHQVLRQ RI WKH WD[LQJ GLVWULFWVY UHTXHVWHG
However, because of the discounted EAV granted to the properties, these Cook County
special incentives effectively redistribute a portion of the tax levy of each taxing district to

all of the other taxpayers within each of the overlapping taxing districts.

An approximation of the&& L WY KWWUH RI WKH WD[ LPSDFW DWWULEXWDE
by the reduced assessment rates is obtained by multiplying the discount EAV (the difference
between the EAV without incentive and the EAV with incentive) timesdikeate. The

impact under these special Cook County incentive classifications was not determinable for

the year endedpril 30, 2@0.
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets
Debt service
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Issuance of notes
Transfers in
Transfer (out)

Total other financing sources (uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30

Original Final

Budget Budget Actual
$ 15,183,258 $ 15,183,258 $ 15,180,275
639,300 639,300 545,645
3,771,857 4,066,857 4,327,510
1,227,000 1,227,000 1,072,494
262,500 262,500 250,178
7,000 7,000 3,813
1,070,740 1,110,493 1,180,125
22,161,655 22,496,408 22,560,040
3,486,513 3,485,513 3,079,251
16,308,459 16,955,465 16,446,986
2,682,268 2,682,268 2,301,483
- - 10,960
22,477,240 23,123,246 21,838,680
(315,585) (626,838) 721,360
3,000 3,000 1,000
- 308,000 350,000

701,800 701,800 -
(125,000) (125,000) (470,094)
579,800 887,800 (119,094
264,215 $ 260,962 602,266
4,578,726
$ 5,180,992

(See independent auditor's report.)



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

REVENUES
Taxes
Gas tax
Intergovernmental
Motor fuel tax
State grants
Investment income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Highways and streets
Street resurfacing
Snow and ice control
Traffic signal maintenance
Engineering services
Equipment rental
Contract crack sealing
Bike path
Sidewalk
Trees
Streetscape
159th Street culvert

Total expenditures

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30

(See independent auditor's report.)

Original and
Final Budget Actual
225,000 213,530
700,000 1,032,248
- 1,098
- 1,380
925,000 1,248,256
850,000 772,599
150,000 126,547
25,000 17,064
10,000 3,900
10,000 -
25,000 -
35,000 -
22,073 -
23,000 -

- 1,184
62,700 -
1,212,773 921,294
(287,773) 326,962
559,649
886,611




CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

Last Five Fiscal Years

FISCAL YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Actuarially determined contribution $ 460,605 $ 469,929 $ 490,432 $ 465,460 $ 421,862
Contribution in relation to the actuarially

determined contribution 460,605 469,929 490,432 465,460 421,862
CONTRIBUTION DEFICIENCY (Excess) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Covered payroll $ 3,729,279 $ 3,855,282 $ 4,176,890 $ 4,315,442 $ 4,288,736

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll 12.35% 12.19% 11.74% 10.79% 9.84%

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Theinformationpresentedvasdeterminedaspartof theactuarialvaluationsasof Januaryl of theprior calendaryear.Additional information
asof thelatestactuarialvaluationpresenteds asfollows: the actuarialcostmethodwasentry-agenormal; the amortizationmethodwaslevel
percentof pay, closed,and the amortizationperiod was 24 years;the assetvaluation method was five-year smoothedmarket; and the
significant actuarialassumptionsvere an investmentrate of return at 7.50% annually, projectedsalaryincreasesaassumptionof 3.35%to
14.25% compounded annually, and postretirement benefit increases of 3% compounded annually.

Ultimately, this scheduleshould presentinformation for the last ten years. However, until ten yearsof information can be compiled.
information will be presented for as many years as is available.

(See independent auditor's report.)



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

POLICE PENSION FUND

Last Ten Fiscal Years

FISCAL YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Actuarially determined contribution $ 1015699 $ 1,088,828 $ 1,044/452 $ 1,213817 $ 1,299,693 $ 1,374451 $ 1,787,508 $ 1,897,584 $ 2,066,068 $ 2,241,234
Contribution in relation to the actuarially

determined contribution 1,156,297 1,436,420 1,187,671 1,235,772 1,348,600 1,429,805 1,866,180 1,836,854 1,932,671 2,140,831
CONTRIBUTION DEFICIENCY (Excess) $ (140,598) $ (347,592) $ (143,219) $ (21,955) $ (48,907) $ (55,354) $ (78,672) $ 60,730 $ 133,397 $ 100,403
Covered payroll $ 3,443,655 $ 3,263,004 $ 3423409 $ 3,338,726 $ 3,443896 $ 3572975 $ 3,716,248 $ 3,793,206 $ 3,817,127 $ 3,946,628
Contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll 33.58% 44.02% 34.69% 37.01% 39.16% 40.02% 50.22% 48.42% 50.63% 54.24%

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Theinformationpresentedvasdeterminedaspartof the actuarialvaluationsasof the beginningof the prior fiscal year.Additional informationasof the latestactuarialvaluationis asfollows: the actuarialcostmethodwasentry-
agenormal;the amortizationmethodwaslevel percentof pay, closed,andthe amortizationperiodwas13 years;the assetvaluationwasat marketvalue;andthe significantactuarialassumptionsverean investmentate of return
at 7% compounded annually, and postretirement benefit increases of 3% compounded annually.

(See independent auditor's report.)



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND

Last Ten Fiscal Years

FISCAL YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Actuarially determined contribution $ 628,133 $ 619,330 $ 602,683 $ 742,896 $ 831,104 $ 868,509 $ 885,083 $ 941,242 $ 981,121 $ 986,456
Contribution in relation to the actuarially

determined contribution 728,590 740,577 745,869 763,968 877,653 902,556 970,718 859,887 953,430 992,183
CONTRIBUTION DEFICIENCY (Excess) _$ (100,457) $ (121,247) $ (143,186) $ (21,072) $ (46,549) $ (34,047) $ (85,635) $ 81,355 $ 27,691 $ (5,727)
Covered payroll $ 1,976,297 $ 1935664 $ 2,007,154 $ 2,066,760 $ 2,199,076 $ 2,136,548 $ 2,219,375 $ 2,356,004 $ 2,281,090 $ 2,389,558

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll 36.87% 38.26% 37.16% 36.96% 39.91% 42.24% 43.74% 36.50% 41.80% 41.52%

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
Theinformationpresentedvasdeterminedaspartof the actuarialvaluationsasof the beginningof the prior fiscal year.Additional informationasof the latestactuarialvaluationis asfollows: the actuarialcostmethodwasentry-

agenormal;the amortizationmethodwaslevel percentof pay, closed,andthe amortizationperiodwas13 years;the assetvaluationwasat marketvalue;andthe significantactuarialassumptionsverean investmentate of return
at 7% compounded annually, and postretirement benefit increases of 3% compounded annually.

(See independent auditor's report.)



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE EMPLOYER'S
NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

Last Five Fiscal Years

MEASUREMENT DATE DECEMBER 31, 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY
Service cost $ 424,683 $ 446,033 $ 431,950 $ 415,570 $ 452,781
Interest 1,438,806 1,523,482 1,566,615 1,557,836 1,617,984
Changes of benefit terms - - - - -
Differences between expected and actual experience 108,479 (498,728) (467,384) (127,359) 59,255
Changes in assumptions 52,537 (79,531) (705,603) 658,428 -
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (836,096) (864,294) (917,072) (951,814) (1,002,603

Net change in total pension liability 1,188,409 526,962 (91,494) 1,552,661 1,127,417
Total pension liability - beginning 19,415,396 20,603,805 21,130,767 21,039,273 22,591,934

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY - ENDING
PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

Contributions - employer

Contributions - member

Net investment income

Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions

Other

Net change in plan fiduciary net position

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - ENDING
EMPLOYER'S NET PENSION LIABILITY

Plan fiduciary net position
as a percentage of the total pension liability

Covered payroll

Employer's net pension liability
as a percentage of covered payroll

$ 20,603,805 $ 21,130,767 $ 21,039,273 $

22,591,934 $ 23,719,351

$ 473500 $ 476,990 $ 480,506 $ 490,228 $ 403,012
173,209 172,068 182,163 193,937 213,083
87,288 1,193,515 3,214,264  (1,057,297) 3,552,623

(836,096) (864,294) (917,072) (951,814) (1,002,603
(72,168) (21,407) (970,383) 236,493 48,969
(174,267) 956,872 1,989,478  (1,088,453) 3,215,084
17,552,341 17,378,074 18,334,946 20,324,424  19,235971

$ 17,378,074 $ 18,334,946 $ 20,324,424 $

19,235,971 $ 22,451,055

$ 3225731 ¢ 2,795821 $ 714,849 $ 3,355,963 $ 1,268,296
84.34% 86.77% 96.60% 85.15% 94.65%
$ 3835346 $ 3,823,741 $ 4,048,066 $ 4,277,738 $ 4,324,166
84.11% 73.12% 17.66% 78.45% 29.33%

Therewas a changewith respectto actuarialassumptionsrom 2014 to 2015to reflect revisedexpectationswith respectto mortality rates,disability rates
turnoverrates,andretirementrates.Therewasa changein the discountrate assumptiorfrom 2015to 2016. The price inflation assumptiorwas changedrom
2.75%to 2.50%,andthe salaryincreaseassumptiorwaschangedrom 3.75%- 14.50%to 3.39%- 14.25%in 2017.The discountrateassumptiorwaschanget

from 7.50% to 7.25% in 2018.

Ultimately, this scheduleshouldpreseninformationfor thelasttenyears. However,until tenyearsof informationcanbe compiled,informationwill bepresente:

for as many years as is available.

(See independent auditor's report.)



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE EMPLOYER'S
NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
POLICE PENSION FUND

Last Six Fiscal Years

MEASUREMENT DATE APRIL 30, 2015 2016 2017

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY

Service cost $ 807,230 $ 794,526 $ 731,981
Interest 2,694,077 3,093,861 3,168,512
Changes of benefit terms - - -
Differences between expected and actual experience (13,858) (859,258) 95,642
Changes in assumptions 3,334,133 104,859 83,370
Benefit payments, including refunds of member
contributions (1,849,744) (1,960,073) (2,049,926
Net change in total pension liability 4,971,838 1,173,915 2,029,579
Total pension liability - beginning 39,411,691 44,383,529 45,557,444
TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY - ENDING $ 44,383,529 $ 45557,444 $ 47,587,023

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

Contributions - employer $ 1,348,600 $ 1,429,805 $ 1,866,180
Contributions - member 425,549 349,092 360,214
Net investment income 1,135,688 (629,267) 1,865,892
Benefit payments, including refunds of member
contributions (1,849,744) (1,960,073) (2,049,926
Administrative expense (43,880) (40,689) (41,854)
Other - (5,228) -
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 1,016,213 (856,360) 2,000,506
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 24,619,461 25,635,674 24,779,314
PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - ENDING $ 25,635,674 $ 24,779,314 $ 26,779,820
EMPLOYER'S NET PENSION LIABILITY $ 18,747,855 $ 20,778,130 $ 20,807,203

Plan fiduciary net position
as a percentage of the total pension liability 57.76% 54.39% 56.28%

Covered payroll $ 3,443,896 $ 3,572,975 $ 3,716,248

Employer's net pension liability
as a percentage of covered payroll 544.38% 581.54% 559.90%

For fiscal years 2015, 2016, and 2018, there were changeswith respectto actuarial assumptionsto reflect revisec
expectationsvith respecto mortality rates,disability rates,turnoverrates,andretirementrates.For fiscal year 2017, there
were changewith respecto actuarialassumptiongo reflect revisedexpectationsvith respecto mortality rates.For fiscal
year 2019 and 2020, there were changes with respect to actuarial assumptions to reflect revised expectations witr

In addition, there were changes in plan benefits required under PA-101-0610 (SB 1300) in 2020.

Ultimately, this scheduleshouldpresentinformation for the last ten years.However,until ten yearsof information canbe
compiled, information will be presented for as many years as is available.
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2018 2019 2020
$ 734064 $ 771,344 $ 769,654
3,304,999 3,428,772 3,559,839

- - 149,996

244,008 (808,642) 373,051
(249,816) 937,650 (43,285)
(2,213,617)  (2,391,088) (2,519,028
1,819,638 1,938,036 2,290,227
47,587,023 49,406,661 51,344,697

$ 49,406,661 $ 51,344,697 $ 53,634,924
$ 1836854 $ 1,932,671 $ 2,140,831
369,929 378,639 395,704
1,430,241 1,119,806 (554,850)
(2,213,617)  (2,391,088) (2,519,028
(44,655) (47,958) (47,215)
1,378,752 992,070 (584,558)
26,779,820 28,158,572 29,150,642

$ 28158572 $ 29,150,642 $ 28,566,084
$ 21,248,089 $ 22,194,055 $ 25,068,840
56.99% 56.77% 53.26%

$ 3,793,206 $ 3,793,206 $ 3,946,628
560.16% 585.10% 635.20%

(See independent auditor's report.)



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE EMPLOYER'S
NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND

Last Six Fiscal Years

MEASUREMENT DATE APRIL 30, 2015 2016 2017
TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY
Service cost $ 621,091 $ 568,970 $ 492,491
Interest 1,698,092 1,908,284 1,918,633
Changes of benefit terms - - -
Differences between expected and actual experience 50,742 (936,930) 493,100
Changes in assumptions 1,040,983 (224,531) 46,772
Benefit payments, including refunds of member
contributions (921,763) (1,032,508) (1,150,433
Net change in total pension liability 2,489,145 283,285 1,800,563
Total pension liability - beginning 24,719,334 27,208,479 27,491,764
TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY - ENDING $ 27,208,479 $ 27,491,764 $ 29,292,327

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

Contributions - employer $ 877,653 $ 902,556 $ 970,718
Contributions - member 201,480 199,283 224,547
Net investment income 1,361,008 128,672 1,881,279
Benefit payments, including refunds of member
conributions (921,763) (1,032,508) (1,150,433
Administrative expense (31,046) (47,014) (42,344)
Other - 8,185 -
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 1,487,332 159,174 1,883,767
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 17,770,264 19,257,596 19,416,770
PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - ENDING $ 19,257,596 $ 19,416,770 $ 21,300,537
EMPLOYER'S NET PENSION LIABILITY $ 7,950,883 $ 8,074,994 $ 7,991,790

Plan fiduciary net position
as a percentage of the total pension liability 70.78% 70.63% 72.72%

Covered payroll $ 2,199,076 $ 2,136,548 $ 2,219,375

Employer's net pension liability
as a percentage of covered payroll 361.56% 377.95% 360.09%

Forfiscal years2015,2016,and2018,therewerechangewith respecto actuarialassumptionso reflectrevisedexpectation
with respectto mortality rates,disability rates,turnoverrates,andretirementrates.For fiscal year 2017, therewere change:

with respectto actuarialassumptionso reflect revisedexpectationsith respecto mortality rates. For fiscal year2019and
2020, there were changes with respect to actuarial assumptions to reflect revised expectations with respect to mort:

In addition, there were changes in plan benefits required under PA-101-0610 (SB 1300) in 2020.

Ultimately, this scheduleshould presentinformationfor the last ten years. However,until ten yearsof information canbe
compiled, information will be presented for as many years as is available.
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2018 2019 2020

$ 500,026 $ 516,039 $ 487,878

2,040,553 2,104,603 2,167,723
- - 154,079
204,937 (1,039,558) 122,121
(423,486) 911,030 (19,055)

(1,283,193)  (1,562,879) (1,561,603

1,038,837 929,235 1,351,143

29,292,327 30,331,164 31,260,399

$ 30,331,164 $ 31,260,399 $ 32,611,542

$ 859,887 $ 953,430 $ 992,183

211,551 217,424 222,259
1,474,479 1,432,994 650,176
(1,283,193)  (1,562,879) (1,561,603
(54,620) (49,059) (39,531)
1,208,104 991,910 263,484

21,300,537 22,508,641 23,500,551

$ 22,508,641 $ 23,500,551 $ 23,764,035

$ 7822523 $ 7,759,848 $ 8,847,507

74.21% 75.18% 72.87%

$ 2,356,004 $ 2,281,090 $ 2,389,558

332.03% 340.18% 370.26%

(See independent auditor's report.)



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE EMPLOYER'S
TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

Last Two Fiscal Years

MEASUREMENT DATE APRIL 30, 2019 2020
TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY
Service cost $ 352,916 $ 371,326
Interest 251,531 238,516
Changes of assumptions 767,336 418,168
Differences between expected and actual experience (1,155,106) (330,690}
Benefit payments (287,327) (267,538)
Net change in total OPEB liability (70,650) 429,782
Total OPEB liability - beginning 6,125,139 6,054,489
TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY - ENDING $ 6,054,489 $ 6,484,271
Covered payroll $ 9,699,086 $ 9,941,563

Employer's OPEB liability
as a percentage of covered payroll 62.42% 65.22%

Changes in assumptions for 2019 related to change in discount rate used from 3.97% to .
Changes in assumptions for 2020 related to change in discount rate used from 3.79% to .
Ultimately, this scheduleshould presentinformation for the last ten years. However,until ten

yearsof information can be compiled, information will be presentedor as many yearsas is
available.

(See independent auditor's report.)



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS
POLICE PENSION FUND

Last Six Fiscal Years

FISCAL YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Annual money-weighted rate of return,
net of investment expense 4.76%  (2.49%) 7.55% 5.35% 3.63%  (1.93%)

Ultimately, this scheduleshouldpreseninformationfor thelasttenyears. However,until tenyearsof information
can be compiled, information will be presented for as many years as is available.

(See independent auditor's report.)



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS
FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND

Last Six Fiscal Years

FISCAL YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Annual money-weighted rate of return,
net of investment expense 7.67% 0.71% 9.70% 6.97% 6.42% 2.79%

Ultimately, this scheduleshouldpreseninformationfor the lasttenyears. However,until tenyearsof information
can be compiled, information will be presented for as many years as is available.

(See independent auditor's report.)



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATN

April 30, 2@20

BUDGETS

The City Council follows these procedures in establishing budgets for the funds reflected in
the financial statements. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP. Annual
appropriated budgets are adopatthe fund level) for the General FundeBial Revenue
Funds, Debt ServicFunds, Capital Projects Fyitermanent Fundg&nterprisg~unds, and
Pension Trust Funds, except for the 2012 GO Bond Project Fund. The annual appropriated
budget is legally enacted and provides for a legal level of datttiee fund level. All annual
appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

a. Prior to March 1, théBudget Officers submits to the Administrative Committee a
proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following Mae1.
operating budget iedes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

b. The proposed budget is reviewed in detail in open meetings by the Administrative
Committee and subsequently submitted to the City Council.

c. A work budget approved by Citgouncil is adopted by &y 1.

d. All formal budget transfers must be approved by the City Coufiny. increases to
the final budget require open meetings before council apprBupplemental budget
adjustments were made during the fiscal year.

EXCESS OF ACTUAL EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES OVER BUDGET
(EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION)

Fund Budget Actual
1986 TIF Fund $ 277,060 $ 315,270
TIF lll Capital Projects Fund 475,100 491,943
TIF IV Capital Projects Fund 18,000 22,168
TIF V Capital Projects Fund - 13,343
TIF VI Capital Projects Fund 17,208 43,913
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES



MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

GENERAL FUND

To account for all financial resources except those accounted for in anothef fienGeneral
Fund is the general operating fund of @igy.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

TIF 1l Capital Projects Funéto account for capital projects and the restricted incremental revenue
in the TIF 1l District.



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

TAXES
Corporate
Police protection
Fire protection
Emergency management services
Road and bridge
Audit
Liability insurance
IMRF
FICA
Police pension
Fire pension
State sales
Home rule sales
Games
Hotel
Foreign fire insurance
Utility
Telecommunications
Video gaming
Gas

Total taxes

LICENSES AND PERMITS
Business and liquor
Animal
Vehicle - passenger

Total licenses and permits

INTERGOVERNMENTAL
Personal property replacement tax
Cannabis tax
Local use tax
State income tax
Federal grant
State grant
Miscellaneous grant revenue

Total intergovernmental

CHARGES FOR SERVICES
Building permits
Inspection fees
Unincorp fire protect

Original Final

Budget Budget Actual
$ 1,383,764 $ 1,383,764 $ 1,486,983
2,039,632 2,039,632 2,077,026
1,193,346 1,193,346 1,233,924
17,096 17,096 17,168
110,000 110,000 121,944
15,158 15,158 15,194
1,090,217 1,090,217 1,097,289
333,925 333,925 310,120
384,048 384,048 396,445
2,140,831 2,140,831 2,140,831
992,183 992,183 992,183
2,064,126 2,064,126 2,172,001
1,284,124 1,284,124 1,298,255
3,000 3,000 3,608
160,000 160,000 131,074
25,000 25,000 29,290
993,379 993,379 952,095
549,605 549,605 350,667
293,302 293,302 253,557
110,522 110,522 100,621
15,183,258 15,183,258 15,180,275
260,000 260,000 229,463
4,300 4,300 4,098
375,000 375,000 312,084
639,300 639,300 545,645
41,290 41,290 48,855
- - 4,576
886,395 886,395 988,186
2,817,172 2,817,172 3,031,960
- 295,000 108,093
27,000 27,000 6,880
- - 138,960
3,771,857 4,066,857 4,327,510
62,000 62,000 30,320
215,500 215,500 153,260
9,500 9,500 9,500

(This schedule is continued on the following page.)
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual
CHARGES FOR SERVICES (Continued)
Development fire protect $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ -
Rental inspect register 70,000 70,000 87,350
Rental inspect fees 10,000 10,000 -
Ambulance fees 849,000 849,000 782,064
Recycling education 10,000 10,000 10,000
Total charges for services 1,227,000 1,227,000 1,072,494
FINES AND FORFEITURES
Police fines 140,000 140,000 103,211
Red light fines 50,000 50,000 96,296
Property maintenance violation 40,000 40,000 32,698
Towing administrative fee 12,500 12,500 4,750
Circuit court fines 20,000 20,000 13,223
Total fines and forfeitures 262,500 262,500 250,178
INTEREST REVENUE
Investment income 7,000 7,000 3,813
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE
Administration 40,000 40,000 44,583
Fire 50,000 50,000 4,246
Police 160,000 163,253 183,574
Street - - 2,887
Reimburse property damage - 36,500 39,888
Lease muni property 160,000 160,000 130,023
Community central rental 25,000 25,000 50
Cable TV franchise fee 492,042 492,042 443,919
WC reimbursement police - - 154,937
WC reimbursement fire - - 25,094
WC reimbursement street - - 49,035
WC reimbursement administration - - 683
Passport fee 2,500 2,500 -
Contributions - - 12,653
Cash over (short) - - (75)
Impound recovery fee 40,000 40,000 43,000
Community development reimbursement 50,000 50,000 25,350
Building review fee 35,000 35,000 5,999
Pool registration 16,198 16,198 14,279
Total miscellaneous revenue 1,070,740 1,110,493 1,180,125
TOTAL REVENUES $ 22,161,655 $ 22,496,408 $ 22,560,040

(See independent auditor's report.)



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Administration

Mayor's salary $ 20,000 $ 20,000 $ 20,154
Clerk's salary 10,000 10,000 10,077
Treasurer's salary 10,000 10,000 10,077
Aldermen's salaries 56,000 56,000 56,432
Regular salaries 610,523 610,523 503,015
Other salaries 28,200 28,200 26,300
Overtime 5,000 5,000 2,420
Incentive pay 1,750 1,750 -

Annual sick benefit allowance - - 12,912
IMRF contributions 57,872 57,872 48,759
FICA contributions 57,310 57,310 47,441
Taxpayer advocate 4,000 4,000 4,341
457(B) match 3,675 3,675 4,000
Taxpayer advocate 1,000 1,000 -

Administrator 100 100 -

Old times picnic 2,000 2,000 2,000
Civil service 5,000 5,000 5,565
Consumer protection 4,000 4,000 3,524
Senior citizen commission 4,600 4,600 3,889
Liquor commissioner 4,000 3,000 4,000
Police and fire commission 7,600 7,600 18,158
Planning and zoning commission 7,500 7,500 3,075
Employee assistance program 3,300 3,300 3,483
Youth commission 1,000 1,000 -

Crime prevention commission 7,000 7,000 9,745
Streetscape advisory council 8,000 8,000 6,082
Veterans commission 4,000 4,000 3,110
Green steps commission 500 500 -

Friends of animal control - - 6,818
Office supplies 10,000 10,000 5,731
Printing 12,000 12,000 11,231
Postage and freight 20,000 20,000 14,884
Telephone 17,000 17,000 19,702
Advertising 5,000 5,000 4,298
Community advertising - - 652
Professional dues 22,500 22,500 23,296
Special events 4,000 4,000 5,872
Training and travel 14,750 14,750 3,725
Uniforms 500 500 476
FYI newsletter 10,000 10,000 7,529
Miscellaneous 5,000 5,000 2,767
Equipment maintenance 1,000 1,000 -

Computer maintenance 13,000 13,000 30,697
Hearing officer 1,800 1,800 1,800
Professional services 109,000 109,000 133,778
Contractual services 100,000 100,000 136,498
Audit 15,158 15,158 16,945
Legal fees - regular 150,000 150,000 159,753
Legal fees - prosecutor 20,000 20,000 20,000
Other services 55,655 55,655 50,920
Union health benefits 7,000 7,000 6,517
Unemployment insurance - - 460

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continued)

Administration (Continued)

Workers' compensation insurance

Liability insurance
Employee insurance benefit
Cadification
Computerization
Miscellaneous equipment

Total administration

Senior bus operations
Regular salaries
Other salaries
FICA contributions
Department heads
Printing
Gas and oil
Telephone
Uniforms
Vehicle maintenance
Lease payments

Workers' compensation insurance

Total senior bus operations

Cable TV committee
Other salaries
FICA contributions
Cable TV committee
Postage and freight
Telephone
Small tools
Miscellaneous expense
Equipment maintenance
Computer maintenance
Miscellaneous equipment

Total cable TV committee

Building department
Regular salaries
Other salaries
Building inspectors' salaries
Annual sick benefit allowance
IMRF contributions
FICA contributions
457(B) match
Office supplies
Printing
Gas and oil
Postage and freight

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual
$ 30,534 $ 30,534 32,812
173,788 173,788 186,394
134,452 134,452 116,197
3,000 3,000 4,358
267,800 267,800 132,923
5,000 5,000 1,723
2,131,867 2,130,867 1,947,315
- - 52
31,473 31,473 25,772
2,408 2,408 1,976
200 200 30
100 100 -
10,050 10,050 4,747
1,000 1,000 318
400 400 -
5,300 5,300 5,691
2,400 2,400 2,400
2,105 2,105 548
55,436 55,436 41,534
14,692 14,692 11,774
1,124 1,124 901
1,150 1,150 1,228
900 900 -
1,440 1,440 1,043
180 180 -
540 540 -
900 900 -
540 540 4,709
7,200 7,200 101,264
28,666 28,666 120,919
316,504 316,504 320,156
46,252 46,252 38,387
40,750 40,750 64,229
- - 4,351
29,778 29,778 30,288
31,098 31,098 31,750
3,000 3,000 1,500
1,000 1,000 1,679
1,300 1,300 2,294
3,000 3,000 1,957
1,000 1,000 1,253

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual
GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continued)
Building department (Continued)
Telephone $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 8,417
Professional dues 360 360 1,333
Training and travel 1,500 1,500 2,030
Uniforms 1,000 1,000 1,901
Miscellaneous expense 1,000 1,000 543
Equipment maintenance 500 500 -
Vehicle maintenance 4,000 4,000 7,038
Computer maintenance 6,500 6,500 13,550
Professional services 35,000 35,000 14,974
Contractual services 5,000 5,000 23,073
Legal fees - regular 2,000 2,000 -
Other services 2,666 2,666 575
Union health benefits 2,000 2,000 4,995
Employee insurance benefit 76,023 76,023 77,451
Miscellaneous equipment 2,000 2,000 3,292
Total building department 623,231 623,231 657,016
Community development
Regular salaries 158,465 158,465 151,693
IMRF contributions 14,769 14,769 14,095
FICA contributions 12,123 12,123 11,141
Office supplies 1,500 1,500 1,032
Printing 1,500 1,500 981
Postage and freight 500 500 2,423
Telephone 2,600 2,600 1,542
Community advertising 122,000 122,000 64,929
Professional dues 1,800 1,800 1,749
Training and travel 9,250 9,250 3,937
Miscellaneous 500 500 858
Equipment maintenance 200 200 -
Computer maintenance 1,800 1,800 1,726
Professional services 50,000 50,000 16,562
Union health benefits 2,000 2,000 1,000
Employee insurance benefits 30,306 30,306 29,492
Facade improvements 88,000 88,000 9,212
Property improvement fund 150,000 150,000 95
Total community development 647,313 647,313 312,467
Total general government 3,486,513 3,485,513 3,079,251
PUBLIC SAFETY
Fire department
Regular salaries 2,380,377 2,380,377 2,488,194
Other salaries 288,000 288,000 212,719
Overtime 230,000 230,000 351,124
Incentive pay 96,950 96,950 4,800
Annual sick benefit allowance - - 47,025
Future benéefit allowance 30,000 30,000 -
Pension contributions 992,183 992,183 992,183
IMRF contributions 5,761 5,761 5,800

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

PUBLIC SAFETY (Continued)

Fire department (Continued)
FICA contributions
457(B) match
Department heads
Office supplies
Gas and oil
Postage and freight
Telephone
Natural gas
Professional dues
Training and travel
Uniforms
FF protective gear
Fire prevention
Elementary age fire education
EMS supplies
Fire hoses
Miscellaneous
Equipment maintenance
Vehicle maintenance
Radio maintenance
Computer maintenance
Building maintenance
FD opticom
Collection service
Other services
Union health benefits
Workers' compensation insurance
Employee insurance benefit
Foreign fire insurance
Building improvements
Fire engine

Total fire department

Police department
Regular salaries
Other salaries
Crossing guards' salaries
Telecommunicators' salaries
Court pay
Overtime
Incentive pay
Annual sick benefit allowance
Annual vacation benefit allowance
Pension contributions
IMRF contributions
FICA contributions
457(B) match
Department heads

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual
$ 74,584 $ 74,584 $ 58,906
14,000 14,000 13,000
500 500 298
5,000 5,000 3,497
32,500 32,500 24,537
2,500 2,500 627
12,100 12,100 14,571
8,000 8,000 2,478
4,200 4,200 1,280
25,000 25,000 17,271
27,000 27,000 15,103
23,970 23,970 13,253
6,700 6,700 2,045
6,000 6,000 2,013
25,000 25,000 21,467
5,000 5,000 5,000
6,000 6,000 4,210
18,000 18,000 19,257
48,000 48,000 110,794
12,000 12,000 8,079
17,000 17,000 28,839
38,000 38,000 34,760
3,000 3,000 -
50,000 50,000 58,506
146,500 146,500 152,727
42,000 42,000 28,754
306,981 306,981 312,110
510,545 510,545 485,830
25,000 25,000 22,655
75,000 75,000 -
330,000 638,000 652,693
5,923,351 6,231,351 6,216,405
3,977,622 3,977,622 4,175,509
- - 13,157
96,372 101,902 107,416
720,921 720,921 661,624
61,500 61,500 32,919
358,901 358,901 407,226
71,620 71,620 -
71,750 71,750 81,912
46,125 46,125 -
2,140,831 2,140,831 2,140,831
69,076 69,076 79,744
132,302 132,725 131,407
26,000 26,000 12,512
2,500 2,500 615

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual
PUBLIC SAFETY (Continued)
Police department (Continued)

Office supplies $ 11,000 $ 11,000 $ 6,755
Printing 3,500 3,500 3,288
Gas and oil 146,250 146,250 62,712
Postage and freights 6,000 6,000 3,318
Telephone 44,000 44,000 41,595
Professional dues 1,500 1,500 1,695
Training and travel 53,377 53,377 54,685
Uniforms 58,460 58,460 54,546
Small tools 700 700 53
Community relations 1,500 1,500 1,180
Police stars 1,500 1,500 799
Photo and microfilm 1,000 1,000 161
Law enforcement supplies 14,000 14,000 11,435
Miscellaneous 7,500 7,500 15,352
Equipment maintenance 6,500 6,500 4,689
Vehicle maintenance 46,000 46,000 37,963
Radio maintenance 6,000 6,000 2,077
Computer maintenance 64,660 64,660 51,635
Hearing officer 4,200 4,200 5,400
Collection service 35,000 35,000 32,278
Other services 78,000 78,000 64,714
Equipment rental 10,000 10,000 7,978
Union health benefits 53,000 53,000 46,862
Workers' compensation insurance 443,713 444,266 436,687
Employee insurance benefit 1,005,187 1,005,187 991,158
SSERT 2,000 2,000 1,500
Police cadet program - 1,000 -
Vehicle purchases 230,000 255,000 261,982
Computerization - - 397
Radio equipment - 295,000 106,553
Building improvements 217,000 217,000 30,810

Total police department 10,327,067 10,654,573 10,185,129

ESDA (Civil Defense)

Other salaries 20,312 20,312 18,308
FICA contributions 1,554 1,554 1,400
Department heads 300 300 76
Office supplies 400 400 31
Gas and oil 4,125 4,125 1,868
Postage and freight 150 150 3
Telephone 3,200 3,200 3,497
Natural gas 700 700 211
Training and travel 900 900 722
Uniforms 1,300 1,300 1,416
Small tools 400 400 123
Rescue expense 600 600 70
Miscellaneous 650 650 585
Equipment maintenance 2,500 2,500 3,994
Vehicle maintenance 5,000 5,000 4,744
Radio maintenance 800 800 466
Computer maintenance 2,650 2,650 3,153

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual
PUBLIC SAFETY (Continued)
ESDA (Civil Defense) (Continued)

Building maintenance $ 7,000 $ 7,000 $ 1,382
Siren maintenance 2,100 2,100 2,360
Equipment rental 2,700 2,700 -
Miscellaneous equipment - 11,500 -
Other insurance 700 700 1,043

Total ESDA (Civil Defense) 58,041 69,541 45,452

Total public safety 16,308,459 16,955,465 16,446,986

HIGHWAYS AND STREETS
Street department

Regular salaries 1,001,356 1,001,356 1,025,328
Other salaries 25,000 25,000 22,106
Overtime 55,000 55,000 47,193
Incentive pay 12,667 12,667 -
Annual sick benefit allowance - - 14,309
Future benefit allowance 1,000 1,000 -
Annual vacation benefit allowance 5,000 5,000 -
IMRF contributions 102,561 102,561 101,710
FICA contributions 84,184 84,184 81,406
457(B) match 6,417 6,417 4,450
Department heads 500 500 462
Office supplies 2,500 2,500 1,246
Gas and oil 30,000 30,000 30,103
Telephone 6,600 6,600 9,857
Natural gas 7,500 7,500 -
Electricity 67,000 67,000 93,386
Professional dues 300 300 1,934
Training and travel 5,000 5,000 3,205
Uniforms 13,000 13,000 13,240
Small tools 3,500 3,500 3,641
Kennel supplies 2,000 2,000 2,759
Landfill 35,000 35,000 35,695
Safety - OSHA requirements 5,000 5,000 7,434
Miscellaneous 2,000 2,000 6,380
Equipment maintenance 25,000 25,000 29,956
Vehicle maintenance 23,000 23,000 28,360
Radio maintenance 2,500 2,500 773
Computer maintenance 13,400 13,400 20,623
Building maintenance 20,000 20,000 43,502
Property damage 1,500 1,500 17,166
Street maintenance - signs 25,000 25,000 13,131
Street light repairs 18,000 18,000 4,750
Patching materials 33,000 33,000 17,779
Concrete repairs 8,000 8,000 14,632
Landscaping repairs 15,000 15,000 13,129
Maintenance of sewers 15,000 15,000 11,154
Maintenance of ponds 36,000 36,000 27,017
Lawn care 73,000 73,000 53,742
Other services 1,800 1,800 555
Equipment rental 5,000 5,000 748

(This schedule is continued on the following page.)
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual
HIGHWAYS AND STREETS (Continued)
Street department (Continued)
Union health benefits $ 10,333 $ 10,333 $ 13,932
Workers' compensation insurance 123,692 123,692 115,749
Employee insurance benefit 188,227 188,227 205,549
Streetscape maintenance 41,500 41,500 34,188
Pond and creek restoration 28,500 28,500 -
Sidewalk 50,000 50,000 -
Truck (CIP) 78,000 78,000 103
PW machinery 75,000 75,000 36,630
Culvert 118,300 118,300 -
Total street department 2,501,837 2,501,837 2,209,012
Building and grounds
Regular salaries - - 223
Other salaries 43,426 43,426 39,375
IMRF contributions 1,543 1,543 1,078
FICA contributions 3,322 3,322 3,029
Natural gas - - 2,212
Electricity 1,900 1,900 -
Janitor supplies - - 167
Flags and decorations 6,000 6,000 2,985
Miscellaneous expense 540 540 -
Building maintenance 45,000 45,000 34,671
Building maintenance - range 3,000 3,000 658
Building maintenance - kennel 2,000 2,000 499
Paint 1,500 1,500 -
Building maintenance 1,400 1,400 5,717
Lawn care 1,500 1,500 1,857
Professional cleaning services 2,000 2,000 -
Liability insurance 3,300 3,300 -
HVAC 64,000 64,000 -
Total building and grounds 180,431 180,431 92,471
Total highways and streets 2,682,268 2,682,268 2,301,483
DEBT SERVICE
Interest and fiscal charges - - 10,960
Total debt service - - 10,960
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 22477240 $ 23,123,246 $ 21,838,680

(See independent auditor's report.)



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
TIF Il CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

Original and
Final Budget Actual
REVENUES
Taxes
Property taxes $ 475,350 $ 430,022
Investment income - 599
Total revenues 475,350 430,621
EXPENDITURES
General government
Building maintenance - 2,142
Professional services 10,000 665
Legal fees - regular - 9,589
159th and Cicero Gateway - 8,365
Debt service
Principal 255,000 255,000
Interest and fiscal charges 210,100 216,182
Total expenditures 475,100 491,943
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 250 (61,322)
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), MAY 1 (1,394,440
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), APRIL 30 $ (1,455,762

(See independent auditor's report.)



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Forfeited Funds Fundto account forestrictedmonies received from druglated arrests to be
used to educate and promote public awareness of drug abuse.

Emergency 911 Fundto account forestrictedtelephone access line surcharge revenues to be
used for installation and operation of the 911 emergency telephone system.

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

2004A Bond Fund to account for the accumulation i&stricted monies for the paymenttbé
&LW\TV 6HULHYV $ ERQ Gavid r8lated@dstsSDO LQWHUHVW

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
Public Improvements Fundto account for monies received from building permits assidae
the improvemenof WKH &LW\V SK\VLFDO DSSHDUDQFH LQFOXGLQJ

street light replacement.

1986 TIF Fund to account fothe redevelopment projects arastrictedincremental revenue in
WKH &LWDStdct7 ,) |,

1996 TIF Bond Series Fundo account fothe redevelopment projects arestrictedncremental
UHYHQXH LQ WKH &LW\YV 7,) ,, 'LVWULFW

2012 GO Bond Project Fundo account for the 2012 GO Bond issuance and for funds restricted
by the bond atinance for capital projects.

TIF IV Capital Projects Fundo account for the redevelopment projects and restricted incremental
UHYHQXH LQ WKH &LW\YV 7,) ,9 'LVWULFW



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued)

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS (Continued)

TIF V Capital Projects Fundto account for the redevelopment projects and restricted incremental
UHYHQXH LQ WKH &LW\YV 7,) 9, 'LVWULFW

TIF VI Capital Projects Fungto account for the redevelopment projects and restriicoeemental
UHYHQXH LQ WKH &LW\TV 7,) 9, 'LVWULFW

TIF VII Capital Projects Fund to account for capital projects and the restricted incremental
revenue in the TIF VII District.

PERMANENT FUND

Working Cash Fundto supplement other funds when cash flow difficulties are encountered



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

April 30, 2020

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Receivables

Property taxes
Due from other funds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Line of credit
Deposits payable

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable property taxes

Total deferred inflows of resources
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES

Restricted
Public safety
Debt service
Economic development
Capital projects
Working cash

Unrestricted
Assigned for public improvements
Unassigned (deficit)

Total fund balances (deficit)

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

-93 -

Special Revenue

Debt Service

Forfeited Emergency

Funds 911

Total

2004A

Bond

Total

$ 99,044 $ 366,150

$ 465,194 $ 833,483 $ 833,483

783,274

783,274

$ 99,044 $ 366,150

$ 465,194 $ 1,616,757 $ 1,616,757

$ - $ 305 $ 305 $ - -
- 305 305 - -

. . - 783,274 783,274

. . - 783,274 783,274

- 305 305 783,274 783,274
99,044 365,845 464,889 - -

- - - 833,483 833,483

99,044 365,845 464,889 833,483 833,483

$ 99,044 $ 366,150 $ 465,194 $ 1,616,757 $ 1,616,757




Capital Projects Permanent
1996 TIF 2012 GO TIF IV TIFV TIF VI TIF VI
Public Bond Bond Capital Capital Capital Capital Working

Improvements 1986 TIF Series Project Projects Projects Projects Projects Total Cash Total
$ 904,010 $ 132,016 $ 311,228 $ 137,518 $ 275,202 $ 100,802 $ 5,763 $ 366,408 $ 2,232,947 $ 415,070 $ 3,946,694
- - - - - - - - - - 783,274
904,315 - - - - - - - 904,315 - 904,315
$ 1,808,325 $ 132,016 $ 311,228 $ 137,518 $ 275,202 $ 100,802 $ 5,763 $ 366,408 $ 3,137,262 $ 415,070 $ 5,634,283
$ - $ 131,991 $ - $ - $ - $ 427 $ 4,438 $ 10,792 $ 147,648 $ - $ 147,953
- - - - 392,453 - 437,000 578,244 1,407,697 - 1,407,697
51,464 - - - - - - - 51,464 - 51,464
51,464 131,991 - - 392,453 427 441,438 589,036 1,606,809 - 1,607,114
- - - - - - - - - - 783,274
- - - - - - - - - - 783,274
51,464 131,991 - - 392,453 427 441,438 589,036 1,606,809 - 2,390,388
- - - - - - - - - - 464,889
- - - - - - - - - - 833,483
- 25 311,228 - - 100,375 - - 411,628 - 411,628
- - - 137,518 - - - - 137,518 - 137,518
- - - - - - - - - 415,070 415,070
1,756,861 - - - - - - - 1,756,861 - 1,756,861
- - - - (117,251) - (435,675) (222,628)  (775,554) - (775,554)
1,756,861 25 311,228 137,518 (117,251) 100,375 (435,675) (222,628) 1,530,453 415,070 3,243,895

$ 1,808,325 $ 132,016

$ 311,228 $ 137,518 $ 275,202 $ 100,802

$ 5763 $ 366,408 $ 3,137,262 $

415,070 $ 5,634,283

(See independent auditor's report.)



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

Special Revenue Debt Service
Forfeited Emergency 2004A
Funds 911 Total Bond Total
REVENUES
Taxes $ - $ 362,894 $ 362,894 $ 1,078,882 $ 1,078,882
Investment income (35) 484 449 1,899 1,899
Miscellaneous 1,795 - 1,795 - -
Total revenues 1,760 363,378 365,138 1,080,781 1,080,781
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government - - - - -
Public safety 5,891 241,289 247,180 - -
Debt service
Principal - - - 875,000 875,000
Interest and fiscal charges - - - 178,600 178,600
Total expenditures 5,891 241,289 247,180 1,053,600 1,053,600
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (4,131) 122,089 117,958 27,181 27,181
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - - - - -
Transfers (out) - - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - - -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (4,131) 122,089 117,958 27,181 27,181
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), MAY 1 103,175 243,756 346,931 806,302 806,302
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), APRIL 30 $ 99,044 $ 365,845 $ 464,889 $ 833,483 $ 833,483

-95-



Capital Projects Permanent

1996 TIF  2012GO  TIF IV TIFV TIF VI TIF VI
Public Bond Bond Capital Capital Capital Capital Working

Improvements 1986 TIF Series Project Projects Projects Projects Projects Total Cash Total
$ - $ 405,494 $ 807,307 $ - $ 196,146 $ 23558 $ 8,498 $ 162,032 $ 1,603,035 $ - $ 3,044,811
1,689 (24) 1,538 195 388 - 76 (599) 3,263 589 6,200
- - - - 22,200 - - - 22,200 - 23,995
1,689 405,470 808,845 195 218,734 23,558 8,574 161,433 1,628,498 589 3,075,006
- 141,525 9,380 - 651 13,343 19,953 25,274 210,126 - 210,126
- - - - - - - - - - 247,180
- 150,000 - - - - - - 150,000 - 1,025,000
- 23,745 - - 21,517 - 23,960 40,664 109,886 - 288,486
- 315,270 9,380 - 22,168 13,343 43,913 65,938 470,012 - 1,770,792
1,689 90,200 799,465 195 196,566 10,215 (35,339) 95,495 1,158,486 589 1,304,214
553,994 - - - - - - 1,125,000 1,678,994 - 1,678,994
- - (1,000,000) - - - - - (1,000,000) - (1,000,000
553,994 - (1,000,000) - - - - 1,125,000 678,994 - 678,994
555,683 90,200  (200,535) 195 196,566 10,215 (35,339) 1,220,495 1,837,480 589 1,983,208

1,201,178 (90,175) 511,763 137,323 (313,817) 90,160  (400,336) (1,443,123)  (307,027) 414,481 1,260,687

$ 1,756,861 $ 25 $ 311,228 $ 137,518 $(117,251) $ 100,375 $(435,675) $(222,628) $ 1,530,453 $ 415,070 $ 3,243,895

(See independent auditor's report.)



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FORFEITED FUNDS FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

Original and
Final Budget Actual

REVENUES
Investment income $ - $ (35)
Miscellaneous revenue
Drug forfeitures 10,000 1,795
Total revenues 10,000 1,760
EXPENDITURES
Public safety
Supplies 6,500 5,834
Community relations 1,500 -
Miscellaneous - 57
Vehicle maintenance 2,000 -
Total expenditures 10,000 5,891
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ - (4,131)
FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 103,175
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 $ 99,044

(See independent auditor's report.)



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

EMERGENCY 911 FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

REVENUES
Taxes

Emergency 911 surcharge

Investment income
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Public safety
Office supplies
Postage and freight
Telephone
Professional dues
Training and travel

Equipment maintenance

Radio maintenance

Computer maintenance
911 system maintenance

Lease payments
Computerization
Radio equipment

Building improvements

Generator

Total expenditures

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30

(See independent auditor's report.)

Original Final

Budget Budget Actual
396,000 $ 396,000 $ 362,894
200 200 484
396,200 396,200 363,378

150 150 -

50 50 -
1,000 1,000 587

150 150 -
5,000 5,000 9,278

15,000 15,000 -
22,200 22,200 795
15,000 15,000 47,245
32,000 32,000 40,491
- - 1,650
187,500 187,500 1,590
141,000 141,000 126,277
- 20,000 13,376

2,000 2,000 -
421,050 441,050 241,289
(24,850) $  (44,850) 122,089
243,756
$ 365,845




CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

2004A BOND FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

REVENUES
Taxes
Property taxes
Investment income

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30

Original and
Final Budget Actual

$ 1,053,200 $ 1,078,882

1,500 1,899
1,054,700 1,080,781
875,000 875,000
179,700 178,600
1,054,700 1,053,600

$ - 27,181
806,302

$ 833,483

(See independent auditor's report.)



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

Original and
Final Budget Actual
REVENUES
Investment income $ 1,500 $ 1,689
Total revenues 1,500 1,689
EXPENDITURES
None - -
Total expenditures - -
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 1,500 1,689
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - 553,994
Transfers (out) (930,400) -
Total other financing sources (uses) (930,400) 553,994
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ (928,900) 555,683
FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 1,201,178
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 $ 1,756,861

(See independent auditor's report.)
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

1986 TIF FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

REVENUES
Taxes
Property taxes
Investment income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General government
Refunds
Legal fees - regular
Professional services
Debt service
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), MAY 1

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30

(See independent auditor's report.)

Original and
Final Budget Actual
359,091 $ 405,494
- (24)
359,091 405,470
93,289 131,879
10,000 8,396
- 1,250
150,000 150,000
23,771 23,745
277,060 315,270
82,031 90,200
(90,175)
$ 25




CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
1996 TIF BOND SERIES FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

REVENUES
Taxes
Property taxes
Investment income

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
General government
Professional services
Legal fees - regular
Facade improvements

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (out)

Total other financing sources (uses)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, MAY 1

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30

Original and
Final Budget Actual

$ 778,392 $ 807,307
5,000 1,538

783,392 808,845

10,000 5,475
- 3,905
107,000 -
117,000 9,380
666,392 799,465

(1,000,000) (1,000,000

(1,000,000) (1,000,000

$ (333,608) (200,535

511,763

$ 311,228

(See independent auditor's report.)
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
TIF IV CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

REVENUES
Taxes
Property taxes
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
General government
Legal fees - regular
Debt service
Interest

Total expenditures

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), MAY 1

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), APRIL 30

Original and
Final Budget Actual
$ 11,894 $ 196,146
- 388
22,200 22,200
34,094 218,734
- 651
18,000 21,517
18,000 22,168
$ 16,094 196,566
(313,817
$ (117,251)

(See independent auditor's report.)
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
TIF V CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

Original and
Final Budget Actual
REVENUES
Taxes
Property taxes $ 38,957 $ 23,558
Total revenues 38,957 23,558
EXPENDITURES
General government
Legal fees - regular - 6,468
Professional services - 6,875
Total expenditures - 13,343
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 38,957 10,215
FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 90,160
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 $ 100,375

(See independent auditor's report.)
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
TIF VI CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

REVENUES
Taxes
Property taxes
Investment income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General government
Legal fees - regular
Professional services
Debt service
Interest

Total expenditures
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), MAY 1

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), APRIL 30

Original and
Final Budget Actual
$ 14,437 $ 8,498
- 76
14,437 8,574
- 19,766
- 187
17,208 23,960
17,208 43,913
$ (2,771) (35,339)
(400,336)
$ (435,675)

(See independent auditor's report.)
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
TIF VII CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

Original and
Final Budget Actual
REVENUES
Taxes
Property taxes $ 175,882 $ 162,032
Investment income - (599)
Total revenues 175,882 161,433
EXPENDITURES
General government
Building maintenance - 88
Professional services - 19,863
Legal fees - regular - 63
Property and land - 5,260
Debt service
Principal 1,200,000 -
Interest 70,649 40,664
Total expenditures 1,270,649 65,938
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (1,094,767) 95,495
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 1,125,000 1,125,000
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 1 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,125,001 1,125,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 30,234 1,220,495
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), MAY 1 (1,443,123
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), APRIL 30 $ (222,628)

(See independent auditor's report.)
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
WORKING CASH FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

Original and
Final Budget Actual
REVENUES
Investment income $ 1,500 $ 589
Total revenues 1,500 589
EXPENDITURES
None - -
Total expenditures - -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 1,500 589
FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 414,481
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 $ 415,070

(See independent auditor's report.)
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MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Waterworks and Sewerage Funid account for th@rovision of water and sewer services to the
residents of the CityAll activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this

fund including, but nolimited to, administration, operations, financing, related debt service, and
billing and collections.

Commuter Parking-ot Fund - to account for theactivities necessary to provide parking to
commuters and the fees collected for the service.



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
WATERWORKS AND SEWERAGE FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)

- 108 -

Original and
Final Budget Actual
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

Water tap-on fees 1,500 $ 3,500
Construction water fees 2,400 an
Water registration 14,000 17,190
Water sales 5,847,920 5,389,352
Water late charges 35,000 45,614
Meter sales - residential 6,000 -
Meter sales - commercial 5,000 5,164
Water shut off fee 25,000 27,561
Base charge 550,000 550,068
Sewer tap on fees 2,000 500
Sewer charges 1,365,000 1,244,469
Sewer late charges 10,000 9,308

Total operating revenues 7,863,820 7,292,709

OPERATING EXPENSES
Water operations

Regular salaries 659,291 619,659
Overtime 38,000 52,964
Incentive pay 11,042 -
Annual sick benefit allowance - 2,065
IMRF contribution 66,398 14,456
FICA contributions 54,500 49,481
457(B) match 4,092 2,500
OPEB expense - 4,898
Office supplies 2,000 260
Printing 4,000 2,225
Gas and oll 32,500 21,952
Postage and freight 12,000 14,545
Telephone 38,000 15,981
Natural gas 2,000 2,423
Electricity 96,000 82,990
Advertising 600 -
Professional dues 3,000 1,483
Training and travel 3,000 540
Uniforms 7,000 7,351
Small tools 2,000 2,152
Safety OSHA requirements 2,500 1,720
Janitor supplies 3,000 510
Water meters 15,000 2,216



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
WATERWORKS AND SEWERAGE FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

Original and
Final Budget Actual
OPERATING EXPENSES (Continued)
Water operations (Continued)

Water meter parts/testing $ 10,000 $ 1,889
Compressed gas and chemical 5,000 8,752
Miscellaneous 1,800 2,787
Equipment maintenance 15,000 9,904
Vehicle maintenance 14,000 17,729
Radio maintenance 3,000 1,928
Computer maintenance 24,000 20,673
Building maintenance 15,000 10,221
Property damage 1,000 2,425
Patching materials - 55
Concrete repairs 25,000 13,518
Landscaping repairs 10,000 4,496
Maintenance of water main 77,000 42,698
Reconditioned pumps 14,000 466
Hydrant repairs 40,000 560
Professional services 39,000 51,311
Contractual services 30,000 32,608
Audit 7,200 9,849
Engineering services 10,000 3,910
Lawn care - 358
Other services 4,500 31,842
Equipment rental 1,000 -
Union health benefits 6,600 4,479
Workers' compensation insurance 49,142 46,038
Liability insurance 147,052 154,407
Employee insurance benefit 85,437 70,680
J.U.L.LE. 4,000 3,282
Water purchases - debt service 364,101 287,550
Water purchases 3,220,560 2,956,714
Pump House 18,000 9,124
Water System Improvements 400,000 -

Total water operations 5,697,315 4,702,624

Sewer operations

Regular salaries 574,300 655,624
Overtime 14,000 68,467
Incentive pay 7,542 -
Annual sick benefit allowance - 5,044

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
WATERWORKS AND SEWERAGE FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

Original and
Final Budget Actual
OPERATING EXPENSES (Continued)
Sewer operations (Continued)

IMRF contributions $ 55,867 $ 24,196
FICA contributions 45,857 52,780
457(B) match 3,592 2,000
OPEB expense - 4,343
Office supplies 1,200 900
Printing 1,000 480
Gas and oll 15,000 8,962
Postage and freight 3,000 3,594
Telephone 6,000 2,315

Natural gas 300 -
Electricity 9,000 9,707

Advertising 400 -

Professional dues 700 -
Training and travel 2,000 455
Uniforms 4,000 5,260
Small tools 2,000 1,789
Safety OSHA requirements 2,500 4,633
Janitor supplies 200 10
Miscellaneous 500 968
Equipment maintenance 5,000 6,466
Vehicle maintenance 10,000 11,593
Computer maintenance 8,800 51,726
Concrete repairs 20,000 1,885
Landscaping repairs 10,000 2,730
Maintenance of sewers 25,000 33,318
Lift station 32,000 5,609
Audit 4,280 6,566
Engineering services 8,000 8,055

Equipment rental 1,000 -
Union health benefits 5,700 2,555
Workers' compensation insurance 31,672 28,445
Employee insurance benefit 119,527 135,608

Truck 10,600 -
Total sewer operations 1,040,537 1,146,083
Total operating expenses 6,737,852 5,848,707
OPERATING INCOME 1,125,968 1,444,002

(This schedule is continued on the following page.)
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
WATERWORKS AND SEWERAGE FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

Original and
Final Budget Actual
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Miscellaneous income $ 20,000 $ 15,321
Investment income 10,000 1,517
Bond principal payment (750,000) (750,000,
Interest expense (404,025) (414,001
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) (1,124,025) (1,147,163
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 1,943 296,839
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer (out) - (208,900)
Total other financing sources (uses) - (208,900)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION - BUDGETARY BASIS $ 1,943 87,939
ADJUSTMENTS TO GAAP BASIS
Depreciation (1,046,648
Amortization of bond premium 32,271
Amortization of loss on refunding (49,464)
Bond principal payment 750,000
Total adjustments to GAAP basis (313,841)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION - GAAP BASIS (225,902
NET POSITION, MAY 1 11,978,231
NET POSITION, APRIL 30 $ 11,752,329

(See independent auditor's report.)
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AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
COMMUTER PARKING LOT FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Commuter parking fee

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Parking lot operations

Regular salaries
IMRF contributions
FICA contributions
457(B) match
Miscellaneous expense
Liability insurance
Employee insurance benefit
Regular salaries
Overtime
Incentive pay
IMRF contributions
FICA contributions
Electricity
Vehicle maintenance
Equipment maintenance
Property damage
Street resurfacing
Patching materials
Lawn care
Union health benefits
Snow and ice control
Miscellaneous equipment

Total parking lot operations

Total operating expenses

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Investment income (loss)

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION - BUDGETARY BASIS

ADJUSTMENTS TO GAAP BASIS

Depreciation

CHANGE IN NET POSITION - GAAP BASIS

NET POSITION, MAY 1

NET POSITION, APRIL 30

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Original and
Final Budget Actual

$ 234575 $ 162,639
234,575 162,639
61,529 57,068
5,755 1,297
4,724 4,220
225 -
500 1,881
13,368 14,037
24,499 24,011
79,195 61,359
667 167
2,000 81
7,690 (169)
6,301 1,300
5,000 3,206
1,000 750
4,000 1,308
1,000 2,106
20,000 -
5,000 6,389
10,000 8,815
900 996
5,000 -
20,000 -
278,353 188,822
278,353 188,822
- (28)
- (28)
S (43778) (26,211)
(61,652)
(87,863)
2,648,748
S 2,560,885



FIDUCIARY FUNDS

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

Police Pension Fundto account for the operations of tRelice Pension Fundrinancing is
provided by employer and employee contributions and investment income.

JLUHILIKWHUV Y - 3dHaQcdUNR @Qr th¥ Qpérations of tiet UHILIKWHUVY 3HQVLR
Financing is provided by employer and employee contributions and investment income.



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION -
PENSION TRUST FUNDS

April 30, 2020
Police Firefighters'
Pension Pension Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 1,552,892 $ 15,296 $ 1,568,188
Investments
U.S. Treasury and U.S. agency
obligations 6,404,966 7,936,245 14,341,211
State and local obligations - 1,185,995 1,185,995
Corporate bonds 3,675,238 1,550,660 5,225,898
Money market mutual funds 1,019,477 44,848 1,064,325
Equity mutual funds 5,747,482 12,952,548 18,700,030
Common stock 10,085,322 - 10,085,322
Total cash and investments 28,485,377 23,685,592 52,170,969
Accrued interest receivable 57,117 80,496 137,613
Prepaids 27,075 3,539 30,614
Total assets 28,569,569 23,769,627 52,339,196
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 3,485 5,592 9,077
Total liabilities 3,485 5,592 9,077
NET POSITION RESTRICTED
FOR PENSIONS 28,566,084 $ 23,764,035 $ 52,330,119

(See independent auditor's report.)
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION -

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer
Employee

Total contributions

Investment income

Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair

value of investments
Interest earned

Total investment income
Less investment expenses
Net investment income
Total additions
DEDUCTIONS
Pension benefits and refunds
Contractual services
Total deductions

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION RESTRICTED
FOR PENSIONS

May 1

April 30

Police Firefighters'
Pension Pension Total

$ 2,140,831 $ 992,183 $ 3,133,014

395,704 222,259 617,963
2,536,535 1,214,442 3,750,977
(1,187,287) 24,780 (1,162,507
798,936 683,331 1,482,267
(388,351) 708,111 319,760
(166,499) (57,935) (224,434)
(554,850) 650,176 95,326
1,981,685 1,864,618 3,846,303

2,519,028 1,561,603 4,080,631

47,215 39,531 86,746
2,566,243 1,601,134 4,167,377
(584,558) 263,484 (321,074

29,150,642 23,500,551 52,651,193

$ 28,566,084 $ 23,764,035 $ 52,330,119

(See independent auditor's report.)
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

POLICE PENSION FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

Original and
Final Budget Actual
ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer 2,066,068 $ 2,140,831
Employee 400,000 395,704
Miscellaneous 200 -
Total contributions 2,466,268 2,536,535
Investment income
Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair
value of investments - (1,187,287
Interest earned 1,400,000 798,936
Total investment income 1,400,000 (388,351
Less investment expenses - (166,499
Net investment income 1,400,000 (554,850
Total additions 3,866,268 1,981,685
DEDUCTIONS
Pension benefits and refunds 2,235,000 2,519,028
Contractual services 100,000 47,215
Total deductions 2,335,000 2,566,243
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 1,531,268 (584,558
NET POSITION RESTRICTED
FOR PENSIONS
May 1 29,150,642
April 30 $ 28,566,084

(See independent auditor's report.)
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer
Employee
Total contributions
Investment income
Net appreciation in fair
value of investments
Interest earned
Total investment income
Less investment expenses
Net investment income
Total additions
DEDUCTIONS
Pension benefits and refunds
Contractual services

Total deductions

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION RESTRICTED
FOR PENSIONS

May 1

April 30

(See independent auditor's report.)

Original and

Final Budget Actual
$ 981,121 $ 992,183
175,000 222,259
1,156,121 1,214,442
- 24,780
945,000 683,331
945,000 708,111
- (57,935)
945,000 650,176
2,101,121 1,864,618
1,335,000 1,561,603
100,000 39,531
1,435,000 1,601,134
$ 666,121 263,484
23,500,551
$ 23,764,035




SUPPLEMENTAL DATA



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OFEXPENDITURESFOR TORT IMMUNITY PURPOSES

April 30, 220
"RUNHUVY FRPSHQVDWLRQ $ 972,389
Auto/general liability 354,838
TOTAL TORT IMMUNITY PURPOSES EXPENDITURES $ 1,327,227

Since the City levies thgroperty taxes for tort immunity/liability purposes, as requingdPublic
Act 91-068 passed by the lllinois General Assembly, the City is including the above list of tort
immunity purposes expenditures indesmprehensivannual financial report.

The CIW\ TV W D¢n by \iaHilipMrisurance purposes for tax yearl2@s levied by Cook
Countywas #,114,529 Any shortfall to cover expendituraséxcess of taxes collected is derived
from other general fund revenuafsthe City.Any excess of revenueser expenditures is carried
forward to subsequent fiscal years subject to a statutory formula.

(See independent auditor's report.)
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LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2012

April 30, 2020

Date of Issue

Date of Maturity
Authorized Issue

Interest Rates
Interest Dates

Principal Maturity Date

November 13, 2012
December 15, 2024
$9,265,000

2% to 3%

June 15 and December 15
December 15

CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Tax

Levy Interest Tax Levy Interest Due on

Year Rate Principal Interest Total June 15 Amount December 1’ Amount

2019 3% $ 890,000 $ 151,950 $ 1,041,950 2020 $ 75,975 2020 $ 75975

2020 3% 985,000 125,250 1,110,250 2021 62,625 2021 62,625

2021 3% 1,010,000 95,700 1,105,700 2022 47,850 2022 47,850

2022 3% 1,040,000 65,400 1,105,400 2023 32,700 2023 32,700

2023 3% 1,140,000 34,200 1,174,200 2024 17,100 2024 17,100
$ 5,065,000 $ 472,500 $ 5,537,500 $ 236,250 $ 236,250

(See independent auditor's report.)
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2013

April 30, 2020
Date of Issue December 12, 2013
Date of Maturity June 15, 2024
Authorized Issue $1,500,000
Interest Rates 2.34%
Interest Dates June 15
Principal Maturity Date June 15

CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Tax

Levy Tax Levy Interest Due on

Year Principal Interest Total June 15 Amount
2019 $ 150,000 $ 20,260 $ 170,260 2020 $ 20,260
2020 150,000 16,639 166,639 2021 16,639
2021 200,000 13,074 213,074 2022 13,074
2022 200,000 8,320 208,320 2023 8,320
2023 150,000 3,515 153,515 2024 3,515

$ 850,000 $ 61,808 $ 911,808 $ 61,808

(See independent auditor's report.)
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2015A

April 30, 2020

Date of Issue

Date of Maturity
Authorized Issue

Interest Rates
Interest Dates

Principal Maturity Date

October 5, 2015
December 15, 2036
$6,650,000

3% to 4%

June 15 and December 15
December 15

CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Tax
Levy Interest Tax Levy Interest Due on
Year Rate Principal Interest Total June 15 Amount December 1’ Amount
2019 3.00% $ 175,000 $ 217,025 $ 392,025 2020 $ 108,513 2020 $ 108,512
2020 3.00% 145,000 211,775 356,775 2021 105,888 2021 105,887
2021 3.00% 205,000 207,425 412,425 2022 103,713 2022 103,712
2022 3.00% 225,000 201,275 426,275 2023 100,638 2023 100,637
2023 3.00% 240,000 194,525 434,525 2024 97,263 2024 97,262
2024 3.00% 260,000 187,325 447,325 2025 93,663 2025 93,662
2025 3.00% 225,000 179,525 404,525 2026 89,763 2026 89,762
2026 3.25% 315,000 172,775 487,775 2027 86,388 2027 86,387
2027 3.25% 335,000 162,537 497,537 2028 81,269 2028 81,268
2028 3.50% 360,000 151,650 511,650 2029 75,825 2029 75,825
2029 3.50% 390,000 139,050 529,050 2030 69,525 2030 69,525
2030 4.00% 355,000 125,400 480,400 2031 62,700 2031 62,700
2031 4.00% 480,000 111,200 591,200 2032 55,600 2032 55,600
2032 4.00% 515,000 92,000 607,000 2033 46,000 2033 46,000
2033 4.00% 555,000 71,400 626,400 2034 35,700 2034 35,700
2034 4.00% 595,000 49,200 644,200 2035 24,600 2035 24,600
2035 4.00% 635,000 25,400 660,400 2036 12,700 2036 12,700
$ 6,010,000 $ 2,499,487 $ 8,509,487 $ 1,249,748 $ 1,249,739

(See independent auditor's report.)
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2015B

April 30, 2020

Date of Issue
Date of Maturity

Authorized Issue

Interest Rates
Interest Dates

Principal Maturity Date

October 5, 2015
December 15, 2027
$2,955,000

3%

June 15 and December 15
December 15

CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Tax
Levy Interest Tax Levy Interest Due on
Year Rate Principal Interest Total June 15 Amount December 15  Amount
2019 3% $ 25,000 $ 86,400 $ 111,400 2020 $ 43,200 2020 $ 43,200
2020 3% 25,000 85,650 110,650 2021 42,825 2021 42,825
2021 3% 25,000 84,900 109,900 2022 42,450 2022 42,450
2022 3% 25,000 84,150 109,150 2023 42,075 2023 42,075
2023 3% 550,000 83,400 633,400 2024 41,700 2024 41,700
2024 3% 725,000 66,900 791,900 2025 33,450 2025 33,450
2025 3% 740,000 45,150 785,150 2026 22,575 2026 22,575
2026 3% 765,000 22,950 787,950 2027 11,475 2027 11,475
$ 2,880,000 $ 559,500 $ 3,439,500 $ 279,750 $ 279,750

(See independent auditor's report.)
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016A

April 30, 2020

Date of Issue

Date of Maturity
Authorized Issue
Interest Rates

Interest Dates
Principal Maturity Date

December 13, 2016
December 15, 2035
$6,245,000

2% to 4%

June 15 and December 15
December 15

CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Tax
Levy Interest Tax Levy Interest Due on
Year Rate Principal Interest Total June 15 Amount December 15  Amount
2019 2% $ 265,000 $ 205,000 $ 470,000 2020 $ 102,500 2020 $ 102,500
2020 2% 270,000 199,700 469,700 2021 99,850 2021 99,850
2021 3% 275,000 191,600 466,600 2022 95,800 2022 95,800
2022 3% 285,000 183,350 468,350 2023 91,675 2023 91,675
2023 4% 295,000 174,800 469,800 2024 87,400 2024 87,400
2024 4% 305,000 163,000 468,000 2025 81,500 2025 81,500
2025 4% 315,000 150,800 465,800 2026 75,400 2026 75,400
2026 4% 330,000 138,200 468,200 2027 69,100 2027 69,100
2027 4% 340,000 125,000 465,000 2028 62,500 2028 62,500
2028 4% 355,000 111,400 466,400 2029 55,700 2029 55,700
2029 4% 370,000 97,200 467,200 2030 48,600 2030 48,600
2030 4% 385,000 82,400 467,400 2031 41,200 2031 41,200
2031 4% 400,000 67,000 467,000 2032 33,500 2032 33,500
2032 4% 415,000 51,000 466,000 2033 25,500 2033 25,500
2033 4% 430,000 34,400 464,400 2034 17,200 2034 17,200
2034 1% 430,000 17,200 447,200 2035 8,600 2035 8,600
$ 5,465,000 $ 1,992,050 $ 7,457,050 $ 996,025 $ 996,025

(See independent auditor's report.)
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016B

April 30, 2020

Date of Issue

Date of Maturity
Authorized Issue
Interest Rates

Interest Dates
Principal Maturity Date

December 13, 2016
December 15, 2024
$3,195,000

3%

June 15 and December 15
December 15

CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Tax

Levy Interest Tax Levy Interest Due on

Year Rate Principal Interest Total June 15 Amount December 15  Amount

2019 3% $ 585,000 $ 77,400 $ 662,400 2020 $ 38,700 2020 $ 38,700

2020 3% 600,000 59,850 659,850 2021 29,925 2021 29,925

2021 3% 620,000 41,850 661,850 2022 20,925 2022 20,925

2022 3% 640,000 23,250 663,250 2023 11,625 2023 11,625

2023 3% 135,000 4,050 139,050 2024 2,025 2024 2,025
$ 2,580,000 $ 206,400 $ 2,786,400 $ 103,200 $ 103,200

(See independent auditor's report.)
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

ILLINOIS GRANT ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY ACT
CONSOLIDATED YEAR END FINANCIAL REPORT

For the Year Ended April 30, 2020

CSFA Program
Number Name State Federal Other Total

494-00-1488  Motor Fuel Tax Program $ 921,294 $ - $ - $ 921,294

494-00-2356  REBUILD ILLINOIS Local Bond Program - - - -

494-42-0495  Local Surface Transportation Program - 1,098 - 1,098
Other grant programs and activities - 109,546 145,840 255,386
All other costs not allocated - - 32,128,215 32,128,215
TOTALS $ 921,294 $ 110,644 $ 32,274,055 $ 33,305,993

(See independent auditor's report.)
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1415 West Diehl Road, Suite 400
Naperville, IL 60563

630.566.8400

,1'(3(1'(17 $8',72596 5(3257 21 ,17(51$/ &21752/ 29(5
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorabléviayor
Members of theCity Council
City of Oak Forestlllinois

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
Americaand the standards applicable to financial audits contain@dvernment Auditing Standards

issued by the Comptroller General of the United Stdkesfinancial statements of the governmental
activities, the businedype activities, each major funpand the aggregate remaining fund information

of theCity of Oak Forestlllinois (theCity) as of and for the year endagdril 30, 2@0, and the related

notes to financial statements, which collectively comprise &eWheie financiaktatements and

have issued our report thereon datexvember 302020.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we consider&dLiivéntgmal

control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for thpurpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of&thaVvinfevhal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness & th&nt§ival corrol.

A deficiency in internal controéxists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basmat&rial weakness a deficiencyor a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of th& L Wiinfiial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. Asignificant deficiencys a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficienci€sven trese limitations, during our audit we did not identify

any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whethek théfinfuisCial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliatiteviich could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinidhe results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
or other matters that are required to be reported Uadeernment Auditing Standards

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testingroialncontrol and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
& L WintgMal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance witlisovernment Auditingtandardsn considering the& L Wiktgial control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Naperville, lllinois
November 30220
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Oak Forest, Illinois’ comprehensive annual financial report presents
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the City’s overall

financial health.
Contents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the City’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City’s
most significant local revenue source, the sales tax.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the City’s current levels of outstanding debt and the City’s
ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which the City’s financial
activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the City’s financial report relates to the
services the City provides and the activities it performs.

Page(s)

127-136

137-143

144-147

148-149

150-154

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the

comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 2011 2012 2013 2014
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Net investment in capital assets $ 10,570,603 $ 11,096,298 13,111,460 16,483,685

Restricted 3,280,748 3,169,916 3,519,172 3,576,676

Unrestricted (deficit) 1,067,430 1,713,455 1,909,274 1,510,882
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 14,918,781 $ 15,979,669 18,539,906 21,571,243
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Net investment in capital assets $ 19,746,014 $ 18,784,809 18,301,352 17,945,856

Restricted - - - -

Unrestricted (deficit) (813,005) (634,073) (351,813) (365,272)
TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES $ 18,933,009 $ 18,150,736 17,949,539 17,580,584
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Net investment in capital assets $ 30,316,617 $ 29,881,107 31,412,812 34,429,541

Restricted 3,280,748 3,169,916 3,519,172 3,576,676

Unrestricted (deficit) 254,425 1,079,382 1,557,461 1,145,610
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT $ 33,851,790 $ 34,130,405 36,489,445 39,151,827

The City implemented GASB Statement No. 75 for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2019.
The City implemented GASB Statement No. 68 for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2016.

Data Source

Audited Financial Statements
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2015

2016 2017 2018 2019

2020

18,601,875
1,656,418
1,820,026

21,449,842 $ 22,757,754 $ 24,393,750 $ 25,227,204 $
1,711,465 1,505,619 2,315,197 2,729,286
(29,565,996)  (29,887,000)  (31,340,781)  (35,614,430)

26,746,595
3,011,681
(35,151,363)

22,078,319

(6,404,689) $ (5623,627) $ (4,631,834) $ (7,657,940) $

(5,393,087)

17,486,425

(98,5;55)

$

17,796,487 $ 18,242,124 $ 16,301,897 $ 15,754,638 $

(1,321,691)  (2,256,560) (816,983)  (1,127,659)

15,379,146

(1,065,932)

17,387,570

$

16,474,796 $ 15985564 $ 15484914 $ 14,626,979 $

14,313,214

36,088,300
1,656,418
1,721,171

39,246,329 $ 40,999,878 $ 40,695,647 $ 40,981,842 $
1,711,465 1,505,619 2,315,197 2,729,286
(30,887,687)  (32,143,560)  (32,157,764)  (36,742,089)

42,125,741
3,011,681
(36,217,295)

39,465,889

10,070,107 $ 10,361,937 $ 10,853,080 $ 6,969,039 $

8,920,127
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 2011 2012 2013 2014
EXPENSES
Governmental activities
General government $ 2,737,947 $ 2,734,009 $ 3,389,791 $ 4,450,906
Public safety 12,771,014 12,381,188 12,957,272 13,654,314
Highways and streets 3,036,206 3,059,389 2,776,423 3,023,619
Interest 925,767 903,027 790,753 717,545
Total governmental activities expenses 19,470,934 19,077,613 19,914,239 21,846,384
Business-type activities
Water/wastewater 5,967,821 6,169,424 6,162,969 6,646,421
Commuter parking 266,820 268,675 250,206 283,580
Total business-type activities expenses 6,234,641 6,438,099 6,413,175 6,930,001

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
EXPENSES $ 25705575 $ 25515712 $ 26,327,414 $ 28,776,385

PROGRAM REVENUES
Governmental activities
Charges for services

General government $ 1666714 $ 1,666,714 $ 1,687,457 $ 1,757,048
Public safety 1,401,777 1,401,777 1,494,304 1,525,227
Highways and streets 154,141 154,141 168,097 225,479
Operating grants and contributions 1,001,068 1,001,068 798,488 1,052,564
Capital grants and contributions 169,136 169,136 1,180,085 2,662,807

Total governmental activities
program revenues 4,392,836 4,392,836 5,328,431 7,223,125

Business-type activities
Charges for services
Water and sewer 5,375,820 5,375,820 6,067,334 6,322,800
Commuter parking 228,564 228,564 224,322 198,351
Operating grants and contributions - - - -
Capital grants and contributions - - - -

Total business-type activities
program revenues 5,604,384 5,604,384 6,291,656 6,521,151

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
PROGRAM REVENUES $ 9997220 $ 9,997,220 $ 11,620,087 $ 13,744,276
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2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

$ 4500310 $ 3634869 $ 4008685 $ 4149878 $ 3,366,340 $ 3,712,562
13,941,018 15,742,483 16,634,213 16,251,267 16,582,212 17,771,201
3,749,574 3,400,314 3,462,891 3,731,957 3,797,193 3,729,571
675,968 650,019 706,161 652,928 648,290 515,636

22,866,870 23,427,685 24,811,950 24,786,030 24,394,035 25,728,970

6,948,754 7,182,367 7,454,679 7,581,175 7,636,587 7,326,549
270,032 282,791 309,556 305,137 265,752 250,474
7,218,786 7,465,158 7,764,235 7,886,312 7,902,339 7,577,023

$ 30,085,656 $ 30,892,843 $ 32,576,185 $ 32,672,342 $ 32,296,374 $ 33,305,993

$ 1994872 $ 1928700 $ 1,962,432 $ 1949622 $ 1,792,648 $ 1,565,476

1,564,107 1,566,329 1,593,710 1,613,584 1,570,141 1,584,753
242,933 231,473 218,256 231,055 220,816 216,417
875,293 718,709 1,173,465 779,781 845,161 1,279,301
227,609 34,566 141,335 1,995,193 81,918 477,978

4,904,814 4,479,777 5,089,198 6,569,235 4,510,684 5,123,925

6,722,653 6,927,014 7,022,096 7,188,077 7,205,317 7,292,709
208,763 208,444 207,362 196,253 184,525 162,639

- - 6,975.00 1,068 - -

6,931,416 7,135,458 7,236,433 7,385,398 7,389,842 7,455,348

$ 11,836,230 $ 11615235 $ 12,325631 $ 13,954,633 $ 11,900,526 $ 12,579,273
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (Continued)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 2011 2012 2013 2014

NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE
Governmental activities $ (15,078,098) $ (14,684,777) $ (14,585,808) $ (14,623,259)
Business-type activities (630,257) (833,715) (121,519) (408,850)

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE $ (15,708,355) $ (15518,492) $ (14,707,327) $ (15,032,109)

GENERAL REVENUES AND OTHER
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Governmental activities

Taxes
Property $ 8,955,777 $ 8,864,346 $ 8,976,246 $ 8,862,268
Sales (1) 2,178,413 2,228,673 3,171,635 3,522,340
Income (1) 2,187,043 - - -
Miscellaneous (1) 2,468,396 2,198,735 2,216,708 2,370,514
Intergovernmental - unrestricted (1) - 2,278,721 2,519,950 2,724,790
Investment earnings 57,869 35,207 19,438 15,926
Miscellaneous 186,620 139,983 450,101 158,758
Special item - - - -
Transfers in (out) 125,000 - - -
Total governmental activities 16,159,118 15,745,665 17,354,078 17,654,596
Business-type activities
Taxes
Investment earnings 66,824 9,120 (1,322) 1,917
Miscellaneous 15,581 42,322 41,009 37,978
Transfers in (out) (125,000) - - -
Total business-type activities (42,595) 51,442 39,687 39,895
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT $ 16,116,523 $ 15,797,107 $ 17,393,765 $ 17,694,491
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Governmental Activities $ 1,081,020 $ 1060888 $ 2,768,270 $ 3,031,337
Business-type Activities (672,852) (782,273) (81,832) (368,955)
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
CHANGE IN NET POSITION $ 408,168 $ 278615 $ 2,686,438 $ 2,662,382

The City implemented GASB Statement No. 68 for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2016.

(1) State shared income taxes were reclassified from taxes to intergovernmental revenues during the fiscal year ended
April 30, 2012. Use tax and personal property replacement tax were reclassified during the fiscal year ended April 30,
2016.

Data Source

Audited Financial Statements
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2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

$ (17,962,056) $ (18,947,908) $ (19,722,752) $ (18,216,795) $ (19,883,351) $ (20,605,045)

(287,370)

(329,700)

(527,802)

(500,914)

(512,497)

(121,675)

$ (18,249,426) $ (19,277,608) $ (20,250,554) $ (18,717,709) $ (20,395,848) $ (20,726,720)

$ 9475416 $ 10,273,572 $ 11,019,032 $ 11,522,303 $ 12,189,538 $ 13,001,046
3,808,436 3,245,745 3,126,457 3,275,224 3,480,168 3,470,256
2,197,260 2,069,305 2,232,773 2,058,600 2,032,547 1,825,489
2,738,447 3,692,036 3,368,660 3,311,829 3,609,449 4,069,001

16,208 10,260 9,142 21,202 20,003 11,992
233,365 585,957 747,750 325,738 376,499 283,214
- - - (1,306,308) - -

- - - - 200,000 208,900
18,469,132 19,876,875 20,503,814 19,208,588 21,908,204 22,869,898
(1,783) 6,662 4,147 (8,268) (4,489) 1,489
96,139 25,530 34,423 8,532 8,959 15,321

- - - - (200,000) (208,900)

94,356 32,192 38,570 264 (195,530) (192,090)

$ 18563488 $ 19,909,067 $ 20,542,384 $ 19,208,852 $ 21,712,674 $ 22,677,808

$ 507,076 $ 928967 $ 781,062 $ 991,793 $ 2,024,853 $ 2,264,853
(193,014) (297,508) (489,232) (500,650) (708,027) (313,765)

$ 314062 $ 631459 $ 291830 $ 491143 $ 15316826 $ 1,951,088
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 2011

2012

2013

2014

GENERAL FUND

Reserved $ 158,743 $
Unreserved - designated

Designated for Capital Projects Fund -
Unreserved - undesignated 807,595
Nonspendable - advances -
Nonspendable - prepaid items -
Unrestricted

Assigned for capital projects -

Unassigned -

78,858.00

1,487,360

56,644

2,672,598

180,228

3,928,133

TOTAL GENERAL FUND $ 966,338 $

1,566,218

$

2,729,242 $

4,108,361

ALL OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Reserved $ 7183473 $
Unreserved - reported in
Special Revenue Funds 826,218
Capital Projects Funds -
Permanent Fund -
Nonspendable -
Restricted
Highways and streets -
Public safety -
Debt service -
Economic development -
Capital projects -
Working cash -
Unrestricted
Assigned for public improvements -
Unassigned -

348,458
178,955
881,408

5,121,853
401,471

290,267
290,267

209,137
920,743

4,500,898
402,925

281,770
(494,793)

359,756
242,363
952,887
2,751,552
404,036

282,571
(2,294,507)

TOTAL ALL OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 8009691 $

7,512,679

$

5,820,680 $

2,698,658

Note: GASB Statement No. 54 was implemented for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2012.

Data Source

Audited Financial Statements
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2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

$ -3 -3 -3 - $ - $ -
958,566 958,566 1,997,186 1,670,359 1,670,359 1,500,000
338,302 392,041 387,215 349,930 345,879 341,172
453,500 466,000 481,000

2,951,226 3,389,100 2,561,666 2,912,297 2,562,488 3,339,820

$ 4701594 $ 5205707 $ 5427067 $ 49325586 $ 4,578,726 $ 5,180,992

$ - 8 - 8 - 8 - $ - 3 -

- - - 22,516 559,649 886,611

255,260 290,687 323,200 351,102 346,931 464,889
995,884 1,013,664 773,433 841,903 806,302 833,483

- - - 686,741 601,923 411,628
1,607,141 1,239,360 135,503 136,811 137,323 137,518
405,274 407,114 408,986 412,935 414,481 415,070
283,452 284,713 327,232 980,632 1,201,178 1,756,861

(3487,547)  (5038,159)  (5,135945)  (5261,463)  (3,641,891)  (2,231,316)

$ 59464 $ (1,802621) $ (3,167,591) $ (1,828823) $ 425896 $ 2,674,744
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 2011 2012 2013 2014
REVENUES
Taxes $ 13,413503 $ 13,226,574 $ 14,298,860 $ 14,679,474
Licenses and permits 604,857 592,577 597,294 585,311
Intergovernmental 4,217,204 3,964,704 4,700,085 6,754,532
Charges for services 796,140 850,761 923,230 930,185
Fines and forfeitures 420,913 356,215 397,660 421,348
Investment income 57,869 35,207 19,438 15,926
Miscellaneous 1,162,369 1,117,707 1,159,886 1,274,618
Total revenues 20,672,855 20,143,745 22,096,453 24,661,394
EXPENDITURES
General government 2,630,375 2,599,361 4,156,245 7,405,369
Public safety 13,277,588 12,753,644 12,966,699 13,601,544
Highways and streets 2,703,638 3,043,661 3,899,644 3,023,412
Capital outlay 1,500,987 - - -
Debt service
Principal 1,020,000 1,045,000 1,400,000 3,165,000
Interest 903,235 891,578 795,484 708,972
Total expenditures 22,035,823 20,333,244 23,218,072 27,904,297
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (1,362,968) (189,499) (1,121,619) (3,242,903)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 5,945 2,100 273,717 -
Bonds issued, at par 1,500,000 - 9,265,000 1,500,000
Proceeds from note issuance - - - -
Premium on bonds issued - - 599,313 -
Payment to escrow agent - - (9,255,119) -
Transfers in 1,035,344 771,518 1,940,263 1,809,723
Transfers (out) (910,344) (771,518) (1,940,263) (1,809,723)
Capital leases issued - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,630,945 2,100 882,911 1,500,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ 267,977 $ (187,399) $ (238,708) $ (1,742,903)
DEBT SERVICE AS A PERCENTAGE
OF NONCAPITAL EXPENDITURES 9.83% 11.22% 9.46% 13.88%

Data Source

Audited Financial Statements
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2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
$ 15340,858 $ 16,042,861 $ 16,817,488 $ 17,324,467 $ 18,321,338 18,868,638
647,429 613,042 636,860 642,312 606,624 545,645
4,449,824 4,445,310 4,683,460 4,091,611 4,536,527 5,360,856
1,175,211 1,142,526 1,136,716 1,238,397 1,147,412 1,072,494
352,479 338,260 373,589 325,744 213,132 250,178
16,208 10,260 9,142 21,202 20,003 11,992
1,381,501 1,338,741 1,395,061 1,341,441 1,206,799 1,204,120
23,363,510 23,931,000 25,052,316 24,985,174 26,051,835 27,313,923
4,393,428 5,332,757 6,167,441 3,585,552 3,330,525 3,310,138
14,365,785 14,466,497 15,491,457 15,424,229 15,846,552 16,694,166
4,349,330 3,479,041 3,217,980 3,454,837 3,504,092 3,222,777
1,640,000 1,790,000 860,000 1,140,000 1,190,000 1,280,000
671,364 646,329 698,286 640,033 646,860 515,628
25,419,907 25,714,624 26,435,164 24,244,651 24,518,029 25,022,709
(2,056,397) (1,783,624) (1,382,848) 740,523 1,533,806 2,291,214
10,436 425,652 70,796 103,764 167,053 1,000

- - 6,245,000 - - -
- - - - - 350,000

- - 279,781 - - -

- - (6,356,339) - - -
1,703,452 1,070,413 2,224,205 1,111,300 1,777,000 1,678,994
(1,703,452) (1,070,413) (2,224,205) (1,111,300) (1,577,000) (1,470,094)
10,436 425,652 239,238 103,764 367,053 559,900
$ (2,045961) $ (1,357,972) $ (1,143610) $ 844287 $ 1,900,859 $ 2,851,114
9.90% 10.50% 6.74% 7.74% 7.87% 7.72%
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

REVENUES BY SOURCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Property Sales* Income Use Utility Hotel/Motel Telecom Interest Other Total
2011 $ 8913129 $ 1,766,564 $ 2,187,043 $ 411,849 $ 1,112,015 $ 106,909 $ 946,457 $ 57,869 $ 5,171,020 $ 20,672,855
2012 8,864,346 1,819,537 2,278,721 409,136 1,084,038 124,682 930,133 35,207 4,597,945 20,143,745
2013 8,976,246 2,721,687 2,519,950 449,948 1,120,970 121,723 867,431 19,438 5,299,060 22,096,453
2014 8,862,268 3,035,174 2,724,790 487,167 1,237,188 128,626 802,725 15,926 7,367,530 24,661,394
2015 9,475,416 3,242,643 2,738,447 565,793 1,164,123 119,454 646,992 16,208 5,394,434 23,363,510
2016 10,273,572 3,245,745 2,979,979 668,892 1,032,593 106,022 662,113 10,260 4,951,824 23,931,000
2017 11,019,032 3,126,457 2,643,103 680,150 1,116,699 231,490 591,221 9,142 5,635,022 25,052,316
2018 11,522,303 2,536,214 2,535,647 739,010 1,091,102 147,423 507,989 21,202 5,884,284 24,985,174
2019 12,189,538 2,623,760 2,714,802 856,408 1,134,056 129,369 449,757 20,003 5,934,142 26,051,835
2020 13,001,046 2,482,070 3,031,960 988,186 1,052,716 131,074 350,667 11,992 6,264,212 27,313,923

*The City increased its home rule sales tax by 1% effective July 1, 2012.

Data Source

Audited Financial Statements

- 137 -



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

EQUALIZED ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE
OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

Last Ten Levy Years

Ratio of
Equalized

Tax Equalized Estimated Assessed Value
Levy Residential Commercial Farm Industrial Assessed Total Direct Actual to Estimated

Year Property Property Property Property Value Tax Rate Value Actual Value

2010 497,656,010 $ 74,584,685 $ 5145 $ 29,267,362 $ 601,513,202 1235 $ 1,804,539,606 33.333%
2011 428,796,006 67,529,603 5,145 26,124,997 522,455,751 1.492 1,567,367,253 33.333%
2012 386,444,256 61,993,794 5,145 23,649,754 472,092,949 1.702 1,416,278,847 33.333%
2013 358,560,906 55,669,456 5,145 22,851,197 437,086,704 1.930 1,311,260,112 33.333%
2014 335,533,103 57,587,482 14,673 13,276,607 406,411,865 2.179 1,219,235,595 33.333%
2015 324,702,457 57,232,456 14,563 11,971,477 393,920,953 2.450 1,181,762,859 33.333%
2016 337,801,070 58,499,740 14,282 11,659,569 407,974,661 2.456 1,223,923,983 33.333%
2017 384,315,137 60,676,167 11,671 11,709,664 456,712,639 2.237 1,370,137,917 33.333%
2018 370,839,913 60,167,500 91,607 11,293,170 442,392,190 2.463 1,327,176,570 33.333%
2019 364,828,943 61,819,336 91,746 11,604,780 438,344,805 2.575 1,315,034,415 33.333%

Date Sources

Cook County Assessor's Office and City records
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS

Last Ten Levy Years

Tax Levy Year 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
City of Oak Forest Rate
Corporate 0.0521 0.1840 0.2368 0.2808 0.2471 0.3495 0.3941 0.2226 0.3222 0.3655
Bond and interest 0.1565 0.1903 0.2104 0.2263 0.2568 0.2649 0.2532 0.2399 0.2500 0.2496
Police pension 0.2188 0.2387 0.2648 0.3063 0.3483 0.4439 0.4513 0.4280 0.4810 0.5266
Fire pension 0.1191 0.1422 0.1621 0.1959 0.2201 0.2449 0.2235 0.2123 0.2284 0.2318
IMRF 0.0469 0.0510 0.0583 0.0714 0.0816 0.0814 0.0845 0.0747 0.0777 0.0661
Fire protection 0.1351 0.1418 0.1507 0.1796 0.2707 0.2500 0.2333 0.2631 0.2778 0.2932
Police protection 0.2849 0.3062 0.3471 0.3682 0.4392 0.4646 0.4209 0.4331 0.4749 0.4865
Civil defense 0.0030 0.0030 0.0034 0.0028 0.0056 0.0036 0.0035 0.0037 0.0040 0.0040
Social Security 0.0526 0.0546 0.0640 0.0732 0.0827 0.0881 0.0886 0.0839 0.0894 0.0941
Auditing 0.0021 0.0024 0.0026 0.0028 0.0038 0.0040 0.0030 0.0027 0.0035 0.0036
Liability insurance 0.1631 0.1777 0.2016 0.2227 0.2231 0.2546 0.3001 0.2726 0.2538 0.2543
Total City of Oak Forest Rate 1.2342 1.4919 1.7018 1.9300 2.1790 2.4495 2.4560 2.2366 2.4627 2.5753
Acorn Public Library 0.1430 0.1680 0.1920 0.2110 0.2330 0.2430 0.2370 0.2170 0.2290 0.2370
Oak Forest Park District 0.4180 0.4830 0.5480 0.5960 0.6500 0.6720 0.6550 0.5980 0.6290 0.6540
Cook County General 0.4230 0.4620 0.5310 0.5600 0.5680 0.5520 0.5330 0.4960 0.4890 0.4540
Cook County Forest Preserve 0.0510 0.0580 0.0630 0.0690 0.0690 0.0690 0.0630 0.0620 0.0600 0.0590
Consolidated Elections 0.0000 0.0250 0.0000 0.0310 0.0000 0.0340 0.0000 0.0310 0.0000 0.0300
Bremen Township 0.0510 0.0610 0.0700 0.0780 0.0850 0.0890 0.0870 0.0810 0.0860 0.0880
Bremen General Assistance 0.0090 0.0120 0.0140 0.0160 0.0180 0.0190 0.0190 0.0180 0.0190 0.0200
Bremen Road and Bridge 0.0320 0.0390 0.0450 0.0500 0.0550 0.0580 0.0570 0.0530 0.0560 0.0580
South Cook County Mosquito Abate. District 0.0100 0.0120 0.0140 0.0160 0.0170 0.0170 0.0170 0.0160 0.0170 0.0180
Metropolitan Water Reclamation District 0.2740 0.3200 0.3700 0.4170 0.4300 0.4260 0.4060 0.4020 0.3960 0.3890
Grade Schools
District #142 2.6100 3.0800 3.5100 3.7850 4.1760 4.3780 4.2250 3.8500 3.9990 4.0960
District #144 3.3500 4.1390 4.6770 5.1850 5.9460 6.1340 6.2710 5.7470 6.8560
District #145 3.5290 4.1220 4.6240 5.0600 5.6630 5.8690 5.7550 5.1830 5.4710 5.6710
District #146 3.7420 4.5580 5.0410 5.4560 5.9060 6.1250 5.9430 5.4740 5.7490 5.8930
High Schools
District #228 3.2000 3.8770 4.3770 4.7950 5.2090 5.4010 5.2960 4.7720 4.5500 4.5070
District #230 1.8120 2.1800 2.4380 2.6410 2.7700 2.8790 2.7780 2.2870 2.4250 2.4880
South Suburban College District #510 0.3610 0.4500 0.5110 0.5590 0.5990 0.6210 0.6070 0.5780 0.6110 0.6270
Moraine Valley College District #524 0.2560 0.3110 0.3460 0.3750 0.4030 0.4190 0.4060 0.3650 0.3840 0.3930

Note: Property tax rates are per $100 of assessed valuation.
Data Source

Office of Cook County Clerk
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2017* 2008
Percentage Percentage
Equalized of Total Equalized of Total
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayers Type of Business Value Valuation Taxpayers Type of Business Value Valuation
New Albertsons Property Tax Supermarket $ 3,568,460 0.90% IRC Shopping Center $ 10,806,814 2.08%
Property Tax 7th Floor Supermarket 2,739,741 0.69% Albertsons Property Tax Grocery Store 7,356,553 1.42%
Shurgard 08059 Mini-Storage 2,725,915 0.69% KUM Management Rental Housing 3,708,010 0.71%
Inland Real Estate Shopping Center 1,897,036 0.48% Shurgard 08059 Mini-Storage 2,929,308 0.56%
Eagle Gun Club Gun Range 1,585,596 0.39% Benchmark Rustic Oaks Rental Housing 2,463,455 0.47%
George McElroy & Associates Rental Housing 1,501,016 0.38% George McElroy & Assoc. Rental Housing 2,282,267 0.44%
Benchmark Rustic Oaks Rental Housing 1,499,262 0.38% 5900 Building Corp. Office/Commercial 2,102,188 0.41%
Oak Forest Commercial/Retail 1,451,879 0.35% Austin Highland Rental Housing 2,081,343 0.40%
Austin Highland Rental Housing 1,397,980 0.34% Chicago Gaelic Park Banquet Hall/Club Facilities 1,988,277 0.38%
Nat. Sclafani Industrial Facility 1,204,320 0.33% Nat. Sclafani Industrial Facility 1,766,042 0.34%
$ 19,571,205 4.93% $ 37,484,257 7.21%

*Information for the current year is not available; therefore, the most relevant information available is presented.

Data Source

Official Statements
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Last Ten Levy Years

Collected within the

Fiscal Year of the Levy Collections Total Collections to Date

Levy Percentage in Subsequent Percentage
Year Tax Levied Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy
2010 $ 7423688 $ 7,132,153 96.07% $ 178,939 $ 7,311,092 98.48%
2011 7,794,294 7,399,854 94.94% 267,196 7,667,050 98.37%
2012 8,034,313 7,901,076 98.34% 84,413 7,985,489 99.39%
2013 8,435,289 8,239,263 97.68% 99,864 8,339,127 98.86%
2014 8,856,185 4,234,130 47.81% 4,520,001 8,754,131 98.85%
2015 9,649,111 4,508,429 46.72% 4,960,421 9,468,850 98.13%
2016 10,019,180 4,863,336 48.54% 4,982,342 9,845,678 98.27%
2017 10,214,328 5,130,147 50.23% 4,846,960 9,977,107 97.68%
2018 10,895,365 5,202,413 47.75% 5,383,024 5,202,413 47.75%
2019 11,288,586 5,566,314 49.31% NA 5,566,314 49.31%

NA - Information unavailable.
Data Source

Office of Cook County Clerk
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
SALES TAX COLLECTED BY CATEGORY

Last Ten Calendar Years

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Food $ 630378 $ 593525 $ 620,744 $ 750,647 $ 876,226 $ 1,004,054 $ 930,730 $ 1,019,963 $ 1,154,547 $ 1,124,917
Drinking and eating places 230,878 231,323 384,927 509,926 538,435 572,100 578,819 560,249 577,402 618,164
Apparel 16,974 25,920 42,180 59,241 69,679 76,223 65,910 59,891 69,669 71,222
Furniture, H.H., and radio 6,182 6,314 7,605 15,480 21,224 21,648 18,157 - 8,100 6,293
Lumber, building, and hardware 75,824 67,902 114,024 136,384 187,170 192,057 194,437 203,688 179,054 426,819
Automobile and filling stations 295,241 299,199 405,306 439,717 369,863 438,979 457,300 407,070 481,480 551,066
Drugs and miscellaneous retail 279,446 320,726 469,677 605,924 636,517 435,665 492,469 480,104 562,661 540,660
Agriculture and all others 227,322 243,357 307,015 485,970 535,520 446,536 399,311 425,650 411,908 187,768
Manufacturers - - - - 5,407 24,811 - (12,724) - -
Other 6,816 4,833 4,646 6,389 - - 7,941 25,767 21,307 19,585
TOTAL $ 1,769,060 $ 1,793,099 $ 2,356,123 $ 3,009,678 $ 3,240,041 $ 3,212,072 $ 3,145074 $ 3,169,658 $ 3,466,127 $ 3,546,494
CITY DIRECT SALES TAX RATE 1% 1% 1% 2%* 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%

*The City increased its home rule sales tax by 1% effective July 1, 2012.
Data Source

Illinois Department of Revenue
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING SALES TAX RATES

Last Ten Calendar Years

City Regional
Calendar Direct Transportation Cook State of
Year Rate Authority County Illinois
2010 (Jan-Jun) 1.00% 1.00% 1.75% 5.25%
2010 (Jul-Dec) 1.00% 1.00% 1.25% 5.25%
2011 1.00% 1.00% 1.25% 5.25%
2012 (Jan-Jun) 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 5.25%
2012 (Jul-Dec) 2.00% 1.00% 1.00% 5.25%
2013 2.00% 1.00% 0.75% 5.25%
2014 2.00% 1.00% 0.75% 5.25%
2015 2.00% 1.00% 1.75% 5.25%
2016 2.00% 1.00% 1.75% 5.25%
2017 2.00% 1.00% 1.75% 5.25%
2018 2.00% 1.00% 1.75% 5.25%
2019 2.00% 1.00% 1.75% 5.25%

Data Sources

City and County Records
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Governmental Activities Percentage
General of
Obligation Notes Debt Business-Type Total Primary Personal Per
Fiscal Year Bonds Payable Certificates Activities Government Income Capita
2011 $ 21,685000 $ - $ 600,000 $ 9,610,000 $ 31,895,000 4.28% $ 1,140.66
2012 20,840,000 - 400,000 9,195,000 30,435,000 4.00% 1,088.44
2013 20,530,000 - 200,000 8,765,000 29,495,000 3.80% 1,054.82
2014 19,065,000 - - 8,320,000 27,385,000 3.47% 979.36
2015 17,425,000 - - 7,865,000 25,290,000 3.15% 904.44
2016* 16,043,517 - - 14,504,298 30,547,815 3.73% 1,092.48
2017 15,641,249 - - 14,224,809 29,866,058 3.57% 1,068.09
2018 14,436,989 - - 13,302,900 27,739,889 3.26% 992.06
2019 13,182,730 - - 12,540,870 25,723,600 3.02% 919.95
2020 11,838,471 350,000 - 11,758,598 23,597,069 2.74% 868.40

*Qutstanding premiums/discounts are included prospectively beginning with fiscal year 2016.
Data Sources

Office of the County Clerk
City's Records
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Ratio of
Net General

Equalized Gross General Less Debt Obligation Debt Net General
Fiscal Assessed Bonded Service Net General to Equalized  Bonded Debt
Year Population (1) Value (2) Debt (3) Funds Bonded Debt  Assessed Value Per Capita
2011 27,962 $ 601,513,202 $ 31,295,000 $ 848,325 $ 30,446,675 5.06% $ 1,088.86
2012 27,962 522,455,751 30,035,000 854,544 29,180,456 5.59% 1,043.58
2013 27,962 472,092,949 29,295,000 881,408 28,413,592 6.02% 1,016.15
2014 27,962 437,086,704 27,385,000 920,743 26,464,257 6.05% 946.44
2015 27,962 406,411,865 25,290,000 952,887 24,337,113 5.99% 870.36
2016* 27,962 393,920,953 30,547,815 995,884 29,551,931 7.50% 1,056.86
2017 27,962 407,974,661 29,866,058 773,433 29,092,625 7.13% 1,040.43
2018 27,962 456,712,639 27,739,889 841,903 26,897,986 5.89% 961.95
2019 27,962 407,974,661 27,739,889 806,302 26,933,587 6.60% 963.22
2020 27,173 438,344,805 23,947,069 833,483 23,113,586 5.27% 850.61

*Qutstanding premiums/discounts are included prospectively beginning with fiscal year 2016.

Data Sources

(1) U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census

(2) Office of Cook County Clerk

(3) City's Records
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING BONDED DEBT

April 30, 2020
) @)
Percentage Amount
(D) of Debt City's
Gross Applicable Share of
Governmental Unit Bonded Debt to City* Debt
DIRECT DEBT
City of Oak Forest $ 11,838,471 100.000%  $ 11,838,471
OVERLAPPING DEBT
Cook County 2,803,851,750 0.300% 8,411,555
Cook County Forest Preserve District 140,990,000 0.300% 422,970
Metropolitan Water Reclamation District 2,274,859,669 0.300% 6,824,579
School Districts
District #142 5,507,123 58.670% 3,231,029
District #144 56,270,282 12.490% 7,028,158
District #145 24,886,296 83.030% 20,663,092
District #146 25,629,440 16.070% 4,118,651
District #228 52,500,000 29.480% 15,477,000
District #230 5,595,000 1.380% 77,211
Community College District #510 18,477,654 11.800% 2,180,363
Community College District #524 47,410,000 0.660% 312,906
Acorn Public Library District 531,000 2.500% 13,275
Tinley Park Park District 1,023,000 88.250% 902,798
Total overlapping debt 5,457,531,214 69,663,587
TOTAL DIRECT AND
OVERLAPPING DEBT $  5,469,369,685 $ 81,502,058

*Determined by ratio of assessed value of property subject to taxation in overlapping unit to value of property
subject to taxation in the City.

(3) Amount in column (2) multiplied by amount in column (1).
Data Source

Official Statement
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

April 30, 2020

The City is a home rule municipality.

Chapter 65, Section 5/8-5-1 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes governs computation of the legal
debt margin.

"The General Assembly may limit by law the amount and require referendum approval of debt
to be incurred by home rule municipalities, payable from ad valorem property tax receipts, only
in excess of the following percentages of the assessed value of its taxable property....(2) if its
population is more than 25,000 and less than 500,000 an aggregate of one
percent....indebtedness which is outstanding on the effective date (July 1, 1971) of this
constitution or which is thereafter approved by referendum...shall not be included in the
foregoing percentage amounts.”

To date, the General Assembly has set no limits for home rule municipalities.
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

Last Ten Calendar Years

(1) Equalized 2
Calendar (@D) Per Capita Assessed Personal Unemployment

Year Population Income Valuation Income Rate

2010 27,962 26,650 $ 587,134,722 $ 745,187,300 10.90%
2011 27,962 27,236 601,513,202 761,581,421 10.30%
2012 27,962 27,754 522,455,751 776,051,468 9.70%
2013 27,962 28,226 472,092,949 789,244,343 9.30%
2014 27,962 28,677 406,411,865 801,872,252 7.20%
2015 27,962 29,279 393,920,953 818,711,569 5.80%
2016 27,962 29,924 407,974,661 836,723,224 5.70%
2017 27,962 30,432 456,712,639 850,947,519 5.00%
2018 27,962 30,980 442,392,190 866,264,574 3.80%
2019 27,173 31,693 438,344,805 861,183,193 3.60%

Data Sources

(1) U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census. Per Capita Income indexed for inflation.

(2) Local Area Unemployment Statistics, Illinois Department of Employment Security
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

Current Year and Eight Years Ago

2016* 2012
% of % of
Total Total
Taxpayers Rank Employees Population Product/Service Taxpayers Rank Employees Population Product/Service
Oak Forest Hospital 1 525 1.88% Health Care Oak Forest Hospital 1 498 1.78% Hospital
Legendary Bakery 2 200 0.72% Commercial Bakery School Dist 145 2 200 0.72% Government - Public Education
Shay Health Services, Inc. 3 150 0.54% Home Health Care City of Oak Forest 3 171 0.61% Government
Transforce, Inc. 4 90 0.32% Temporary Staffing Services School Dist 142 4 170 0.61% Government - Public Education
Wille Bros. Co., Inc. 5 65 0.23% Ready Mix Concrete Vicom Productions, Inc. 5 150 0.54% Baking
In-Print Graphics 6 50 0.18% Commercial Printing Shay Health Services, Inc. 5 150 0.54% Home Health Care
S. Mechanical, Inc. 6 50 0.18% Commercial HVAC Contractor Anderson Copper & Brass Co. 7 60 0.21% Manufacturing
Fisher Lifecycle Service 8 45 0.16% Valve and Pipe Fittings Wille Bros. Co., Inc. 8 45 0.16%
Hickey Electrical Contractors 9 30 0.11%  Commercial Electrical Contractor Emerson Instrument & Valve Serv. 9 35 0.13% Motor Vehicle Sales & Services
A-Abel Roofing, Inc. 10 20 0.07% Roofing Contractor Hickey Electrical Contractors 10 30 0.11% Banking Services
Allied Building Products 10 30 0.11%

*Information for the current year and nine years ago is not available; therefore, the most relevant information available is presented.

Data Source

Official Statements

- 149 -



CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

ADMINISTRATION

City Administrator 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Collector 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Computer Technician - - - - 1 1 1 1 1 1
Finance Director 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Network Administrator 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Executive Secretary 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Finance Clerk 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Counter Clerk 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
8 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9
FIRE DEPARTMENT
Fire Chief 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Deputy Fire Chief 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Lieutenants 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
Engineers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Firefighters 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16
Secretary 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27
POLICE DEPARTMENT

Police Chief 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Deputy Police Chief 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Lieutenant 3 3 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Sergeants 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8
Police Officers 29 29 29 30 30 30 30 30 30 30
Radio Room Supervisor 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Court Clerk 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Telecommunicators 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9

Animal Control Officer - - 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
53 53 53 54 54 54 54 54 54 54
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Fiscal Year 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

Public Works Director 1 1 - - - - - - - -
Asst. PW Director 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Street Superintendent 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Water Plant Operator 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Heavy Equipment Operator 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mechanics 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Maintenance Workers 16 15 14 14 14 14 16 16 16 16
Administrative Analyst - - - - - - - - - -
Secretary 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Account Clerk 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
28 27 25 25 25 25 27 27 27 27
BUILDING DEPARTMENT
Building Commissioner 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2
Office Manager 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Ordinance Enforcement 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Secretary 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
4 4 4 4 4 5 5 5 5 5
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
Community Development Director 1 - - - - - - 1 1 1
Community Planner 1 - - - - - - - 1 1
2 - - - - - - 1 2 2
TOTAL FULL-TIME POSITIONS 122 119 117 118 119 120 122 123 124 124

Data Source

City records
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS
OPERATING INDICATORS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function/Program 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
City Clerk
Business licenses issued 298 356 379 376 349 388 392 387 371 402
Finance
Vehicle stickers issued 17,878 18,206 17,984 19,349 18,672 18,082 18,869 17,115 16,568 15,751
Accounts payable checks processed 7,452 6,712 6,982 7,227 6,235 5,442 6,170 6,079 5,546 5,496
Community Development
Building permits issued 1,092 955 1,081 1,210 3,697 1,474 1,250 1,281 1,368 1,321
Residential permits issued
New construction 4 1 1 1 4 1 1 2 5 1
Remodel 997 866 999 811 3,633 1,393 1,157 1,172 1,286 1,247
Industrial/commercial permits issued
New construction - 1 1 2 3 1 3 1 1 1
Remodel 91 87 80 42 57 79 89 106 76 72
Total building permit valuation 8,230,800 8,043,526 9,007,916 12,812,477 38,028,863 16,240,565 11,513,454 13,062,103 13,848,041 12,918,380
Public Safety
Calls for service 40,370 32,645 29,306 33,684 34,440 35,286 34,500 37,059 38,932 45,632
Officer initiated 22,423 15,152 12,118 17,529 17,752 18,880 17,275 20,232 17,411 29,523
9-1-1 7,789 8,026 7,899 7,494 7,986 8,117 8,624 8,381 8,188 8,317
Total accident investigations 405 353 622 698 669 538 511 719 958 674
Property damage 312 265 544 613 588 467 441 627 683 585
Personal injury 92 88 78 84 81 71 70 90 90 86
Fatalities 1 - - 1 - 1 - 2 - 3
Crime index part 1 offense
Homicide - - 2 - - - - - 1 1
Criminal sexual assault 2 6 3 5 3 8 12 9 8 14
Robbery 10 13 14 13 9 15 18 6 14 13
Aggravated assault/battery 19 6 15 29 18 18 11 14 21 20
Burglary 81 79 98 53 65 45 68 67 56 50
Theft 339 243 305 310 259 214 265 107 202 222
Motor vehicle theft 13 21 8 12 22 15 31 22 33 35
Arson 4 3 1 - - - 1 - -
Parking violations
Traffic violations (includes DUI violations) 3,136 2,879 1,764 2,829 1,118 895 1,006 1,228 1,247 802
DUI violations 5,785 3,914 3,628 4,037 2,907 1,775 814 826 845 772
False alarm responses 71 30 21 33 33 21 15 14 23 22
200 76 582 532 538 565 578 612 588 538
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Function/Program 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continued)
Public Works
Streets
Street sweeping
Curb lane miles swept 2,002 788 1,839 1,962 1,769 2,134 1,974 2,001 1,874 2,513
Snowplowing
Number of snow events 32 14 21 46 22 12 11 25 25 15
Inches of snow fall NA NA NA 82 50 15 21 21 42 35
Right of way mowing
Acres mowed 75.00 75.50 78.00 72.50 70.00 80.60 81 87 89 90
Total number of parcel segments mow: 115 116 115 116 111 119 121 120 128 128
Sidewalk replaced/repaired (squares) 1,221 426 880 4,015 2,412 959 600 1,094 2,303 1,090
Regulatory signs installed 502 195 194 362 374 320 356 364 378 243
Garage
Number of PM services performed NA 291 500 484 479 468 440 550 500 500
Water (MGD)
Average daily consumption 2.500 2.600 3.194 2.760 2.290 2.155 2.000 2 2 2
Peak daily consumption 3.872 3.998 4.442 3.537 3.445 2.819 3.000 3 3 3
Water main breaks 76 66 85 107 76 80 54 81 59 49
Number of valves exercised 468 299 844 677 595 543 522 631 679 310
Water billing accounts
Residential 8,152 8161 8,168 8,157 8,152 8,144 8,131 8,132 8,137 8,140
Industrial/commercial 339 276 282 279 277 272 263 262 263 264
Municipal/church/school NA NA 86 90 88 81 76 77 74 75

NA - Information unavailable/program non-existent.

MGD - Million Gallons Daily
Data Source

Various City departments
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CITY OF OAK FOREST, ILLINOIS

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function/Program 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

ADMINISTRATION
Municipal building 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Fire stations 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

PUBLIC WORKS

Buildings 6 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7

Streets (miles) 152 152 152 152 152 152 152 152 152 152

Sidewalks (miles) 119 119 119 119 119 119 119 119 119 119

Street lights 650 650 650 650 650 650 650 650 650 650
WATER

Water mains (miles) 102 102 102 102 102 102 102 102 102 102
WASTEWATER

Sanitary sewers (miles) 102 102 102 102 102 102 102 102 102 102

Storm sewers (miles) 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60

Data Source

City capital asset records
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